Jennifer Galassi

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Thursday, October 21,2021 10:19 AM
Ta: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: Fwd: quick question - flyer

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Karie Spear <kspear @orangecountync.gov>

Date: October 20, 2021 at 1 1:23:55 AM EDT

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood @orangecountync.gov>, Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew @orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Tim Jones <tij yne.gov>, 721 I.com, Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@0range¢.ounrync 80V>, Robyn Wood <nvood@oranne4.oumync gov>, Quintana
Stewart <qstewart@orangecountync.gov>, Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>,
Margaret Campbell <mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>, Jamie Sykes
<jsykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

We have 8 incarcerated that wants the MAB tomorrow. One of those is questionable so we added him
to ask questions and hopefully agree.

Thank you,
Captain Spear

From: Katie Spear
Sent: Tuesday, Octaber 19, 2021 3:57 PM

Yo: Sheriff Charles d gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@orangecountync. gc\b
Ce: Tim Jones <tijt gov>; 721. hpjailmedical.com; Michae! Defranco

<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret
Campbell <mcampbell@arangecountync.gov>; lamie Sykes <]sykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

| will make copies and pass them out along with numbers on who wants the antigen. | will get those
emailed to you all tomarrow around noon time. Thank you all for your helpl|

Captain Spear

From: Sheriff Charles 8l <csblac ountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew <epettisrew@orangecauntync.gov>

Cc: Tim Jones <tijones auntync.gov>; Katie Spear <ksp FOV>;
7212@shplailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Rubvn Wood
<rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell <mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie
Sykes <[sykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

I'm fine with this
Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19, 2021, at | 1:49 AM, Erica Peuigrew
<gpettigrew @ordngecountync. gov> wrote:

Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Depariment
Medical Director, Oceupalional Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41:09 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedlcal.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood;
Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: quick question - flyer

Hi everyone -

Any concerns about this flyer? Hoping this can serve to get our info disseminated
to everyone today. Also trying to figure out how to get a Spanish version.

Thanks!

Erica

Erica Peltigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/slla

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNG Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Monday, Octaber 18, 2021 7:59 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 2212 @shpjallmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood;
Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - important

That sounds great. We'll gonna come tomorrow marning to strategize. Probably
around 9:30. Hoping that someone from jail leadership might be around at some
point to talk through options. It also seems like UNC will be able to find some
folks to come Thursday for a more tharough MAB run,

Also, | know Capt Spear's working hard on cohorting the new positives. Some key
tips:

- best practice is keeping only positives with positives - this is most important
first step

- good news is that you can put recently previously positive with new positives
(so that list of 23 can be housed with these new 13 - that's much better than
mixing them with anyone else)

- if there's a way to then figure out who was close contacts with those positives
and keep them quarantined together (but away from positives, away from new
intakes, and away from any person who is not a close contact), that's ideal.

We're looking forward to helping more tomarrow. It's a logic puzzle for sure, and
then you all have added constraints about cadefendants, space, etc.

Dr.P

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/eila

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

Fram: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:23:11 PM

Tot Erica Pettigrew

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood;
Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Come Tuesday and determine what measures you can work with. We will call
SHP and see they can have you some heip on Thursday. Hopefully we can make
this work for everyone

Sheriff 8

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Erica Pettigrew
<egettigrew@orangecoun VNC.EoV> wrote:

Thank you for these answers, Sheriff. | know Tuesday is very soon.
For context, this ball got rolling over the weekend but UNC, OCHD
and EMS were all able to scramble and find volunteers to help on

that day.

We certainly need to find a day that works for all teams invalved.
One thing to clarify - sorting out the new positives won't actually
have much impact on MAB because peaple are eligible whether
they are positive or just exposed.

Obstacles we'd have to avercome for Thursday (doable but | need
help):

1) We need a physician on site (I'm only a part time doc with the
health dept - | see clinic patients that Thursday afternaon, | asked



Dr. Grover and Dr. Wohl if they can volunteer time but they are
also busy clinically). Can SHP provide one?

2) UNC would need to be willing to be there/provide their MAB
stash {I'm checking)

3) And, of course, the sooner the treatment the better.

How about this: Could we have a couple of us come by tomorrow
{Tuesday) for a dry run and strategy session? We could do a few
administrations, get a better sense of how many peaple are
interested, help with any cohorting issues, and then (assuming we
can overcame #1 and #2) we can plan for full event Thursday?

Thanks for considering.

Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health al UNG Heaith Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Cc: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred;
Margaret Campbell; Jamle Sykes

Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Monaclonal antibadies (MAB)

This life ing medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for
another MAB day this Tuesday. Does that work for Jail
leadership? This is a very time-sensitive intervention.

We are all very much aware that this is time sensitive, however
Tuesday is very short notica cansidering we do not yet have the
results back as to wha has tested positive from the fast round of
testing. All that being said Thursday seems reasonable for
everyone involved, including but not limited to the folks at SHP.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it
can be used for COVID positive people as well as negative people
who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spoken about this and agreed that we wauld
use the same criteria as would be used for any other segment of
the populatian. If you meet the criteria you get it, if you don’t you
don’t. This also prevents an inmate fram feeling like they have to
accept the weatment.,

dersh:

We need logistical help from jail | ip to gize how to
get this medicine to all those who want it, Space was really tight
fast week. Other jails have brought it directly to pods. We just
need assistance thinking innovatively. Who can pregame with

us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday works)?
Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for
this? Dr. Grover {med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to
coordinate schedules but it is not easy since we have clinical
shifts.

Qur space has always been limited and we have to work within
those limitations. Gaing to the PODS to administer and abserve
the inmate for an hour is not feasible. Having thase who elect to
have the treatinent come inta the booking area and then be
housed in the large holding srea is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a ane pager you might be willing to
send back to everyone so they can understand what they would
be consenting to vs turning down.

Draft the “one pager” you are comfortable with and we will
revievs and approve.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and admini: d by the

medical staff of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply
sign up and get it shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-
term solution?

| cannat answer to what SHP will or will not agree to but we can
certainly explain the situation and see what they say.

Testing

Thank yau to everyone who helped make the mass testing

event last Thursday a success. | have not yet seen the results, but
as soon as we have them it s cruclal that jall and medical staff
work clasely with Robyn to cohort positives away from
negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns
voiced last week. Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen
testing pratacals asap?

1 will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don’t know what
concerns were voiced last week. If it’s about SHP's testing, [ would
have to ask them to send you their protocols.

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely
that the virus was introduced by staff. The spread of COVID into
7

distinct, non-mixing pods supports the separate conclusion that
the infection was promulgated across pods by staff.

To date, no meaningful contact tracing has been done by the
health department due to lack of requested information

like guard schedules. No staff member has been quarantined.
Please remember that quarantining those at highest risk of
turning positive is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be
over.

1 will get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request
was inade as to who all had worked, every rotation had cycled
through. So all squads had warked prior to our being in outbreak
status. All staff who tested positive were quarantined for 10 days
and returned to work after that period and no fever for 3 days.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails
answered. Robyn is one of our excellent clinical COVID nurses and
is the official liaison from OCHD on the jzil outbreak. Daily contact
is the minimum public health expectation during an outbreak,
even if it's a message that there are no new symptomatic or
positive people. How can we improve this? Many of our nursing
homes appreciated a set call time each day. If there is a better
way for us to communicate during your busy work days, please let
us know.

I'm not sure what communication has not been working. | have
checked with Major Jones and Captain Spear, neither of them
have been called or emailed about this matter.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn
needs to be called or emailed immediately {within that day) in
order to move quickly with mitigation strategies.



Wea have nat had any results of pesitive cases.

Again, please know we are working as hard as we can to address the
authreak and wa are mast concerned about bringing this ali to 3
successful concluslon

Respacttully,

Sheriff 8lackwood

From: Erica ig! i auntync.gov>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles d fack d Jntync.gov>;

Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear
<kspear@arangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Cc: Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood
<rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@crangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell

<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>
Subect: covid outbreak Jail updates - important

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so
long | tried to bold the things we need quick answers to, Thanks.

Monaclonal antibodies (MAB}

This life ing medicine cuts h ization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for
another MAB day this Tuesday. Does that work for Jall
leadership? This is a very time-sensitive intervention.

9

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it
can be used for COVID positive peaple as well as negative people
who were exposed.

d

We need logistical help from jail | hip to strategize how to
get this medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight
last week. Other jails have brought it directly to pods. We just
need assistance thinking innovatively. Who can pregame with

us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday works}?
Also, s it passible for the SHP medical director to be on site for
this? Dr. Grover {med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to
coordinate schedules but It is not easy since we have clinical
shifts.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to
send back to everyone so they can understand what they would
be consenting to vs turning down.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the
medical staff of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply
sign up and get it shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-
term solution?

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing

event [ast Thursday a success. | have not yet seen the results, but
as saon as we have them it is crucial that jail and medlcal staff
waork closely with Robyn to cohort pasitives away from
negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protacol concerns
voiced last week. Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen
testing protocals asap?

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

To date, nc meaningful contact tracing has been done by the
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
is the official liaison from OCHD on the jail outbreak. Dally contact
is the minimum public health expectation during an outbreak,
even if it's a message that there are no new symptomatic or
positive peaple. How can we improve this? Many of our nursing
homes appreciated a set call time each day. If there s a better
way for us to communicate during your busy work days, please let
us know.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn
needs to be called or emailed immediately (within that day) in
order to move quickly with mitigation strategies.

That's it for now. Please let me know any feedback on how we can
continue to work together on stamping this outbreak out.

Erica Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella
Medical Director, Orange Gounty Health Department
Medical Direclor, Occupational Health at UNG Health Care

Assistant Professor, University of Narth Carolina



Jennifer Galassi

From: Alicia Stemper

Sent: Friday, October 22, 2021 12:52 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: FW: missed the call

tn response to public information request:

From: rlstln Prehpp <kprehpp@orangeccunlyn: gov>
Sent: Friday, October 15, 2021 7:54 AM

To: Alicia Stemper <astemper@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Re: missed the call

| have an inquiry
about the detention center. She says she has talked to you at length. She wants to ask us the following. Don’t plan on
answering the one in red. | will be lucky if we can answer any of them as the CD team checks email about once a week if

atall. @:

Here are my questions:

«  Will you explain any of the COVID precautions that you are familiar with within the detention center?

* How has the health department worked with the detention center throughout the pandemic?

+ Do you feel that there was a mismanagement that lead to this particular outbreak?

¢ What are some priorities of the health department within the detention center and other cangregate
living facilities moving forward to prevent future outbreak?

« Is there anything else relevant to this situation you'd like for me to know?

If you could connect me with someone to answer these and/or just someane willing to give
brief statement on the matter that would be great.  would like to have it by tomorrow if possible. Thank
you!

Best,
Waverly
Waverly Mclver
The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill / 2024
Hussman School of Journalism and Media / Poiitical Science
The Daily Tar Heel / City Staff Writer

From: Alicia Stemper <astemper@orangecountync.gov>
Date: Thursday, October 14, 2021 at 5:03 PM

Ta: Kristin Prelipp <kpreli orangecountync.gov>
Subject: missed the call

<)

Alicia L. Stemper, Director of Public Information
QOrange County Sheriffs Office

106 East Margacet Lane

Hillsborough, NC 27278

(919)245-2963

Jennifer Galassi

Fram: Alicia Stemper

Sent: Friday, October 22, 2021 12:51 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: FW: Detention Center media inquiries

In response to public infarmation request:

From: Alicia Stemper

Sent: Wednesday, October 6, 2021 8:48 AM

Ta: Kristin Prelipp <kprelipp@orangecountync.gov>; Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael
DeFranco <mdefranco@or: gov>; Katie Benedyk <kb gOV;

Subject: RE: Detention Center media inquiries

Perfect. Thank you!

From: Kristin Prelipp <kprelipp@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 6, 2021 8:46 AM

To: Landan Weaver <iweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Katie
Benedyk <kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Alicia Stemper <astemper@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: Detention Center media inquiries

Thank youl | am cc’ing Alicia Stemper, PIO from Sheriff’s Office.

KP

From: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Date: Wednesday, October 6, 2021 at 8:31 AM

To: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>, Katie Benedyk <kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>
Cc: Kristin Prelipp <kprelipp@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: Detention Center media inquirles
76 total detainees have been vaccinated since 2/8/21.

Landon Weaver

Cammunity Paramedic Coardinator

Orange County Emergency Services

510 Meadov/lands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127 -

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 6, 2021 8:12 AM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Benedyk <kbenedyk@orangecountync,gov>
Cc: Kristin Prelipp <kprelipp@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: FW: Detention Center media inquiries

Hey there, how's it going. Wondering if you might have a sec to check on some numbers. Media inquiry to how many
individuals detained in the jail are vaccinated. Hard to say at any one moment, but would y’all have a number of
vaccines provided for incarcerated folks at the jail over the past 3-6 months? Or whenever we started going to the
detention center on a monthly basis? Ballpark is fine.

Thanks
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN

Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Ofﬁ;,c: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410} 349-7401
0 untyne.gav

improving health. Inspiring change.
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From: Alicia Stemper

Sent: Tuesday, Octaber 5, 2021 3:41 PM

To: Sarah Manfred; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Woad
Cc: Kristin Prelipp; Margaret Campbell

Subject: RE: Detention Center media inquiries

[ appreciate this — | don’t know how things are set up, but is there a caunt of # of vaccines used each time the OCHD
went into the jail? The reporter wants to know the number of inmates vaccinated at the monthly clinics.

A ballpark number will probahly suffice. In the absence of a static population base, | don’t think we can express anything
useful of a percentage of currently housed inmates who are vaccinated.

From: Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 5, 2021 3:13 PM

To: Michael DeFranco ountync.gav>; Robyn Waod <r di POV

Cc: Alicia Stemper ountync.gov>; Kristin Prelipp <kprelipp@orangec .8OV>; Margaret
Campbell <mcampbell @ ecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: Detentlon Center media inquiries

Lt spear did not know but FEELS it was 50% or more....robyn is trying to find out more info. She is also trying
ta find out the work schedules. Anything else she can ask {1 am on the phone w Robyn ahout something else)?

Sarah T. Manfred MPH, RN, BSN, PCCN
Communicable Disease Nurse
Orange County Heaith Department



smapfred@arangecountync.gov
019.245.2386

From: Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 05, 2021 3:09 PM

To: Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood orangecountync.gov>

Ce: AllclaStemper<astem er@orangecountync.gov>; Kristin Prelipp <k gov>; Marg
Campbell <mcampb LEOV>

Subject: RE: Detention Center media Inquliries

Hey there, hope you are both well. Just wondering if in the investigation thus far you have come across a # of
incarcerated individuals vaccinated?

Thanks for any input you have
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office; (919) 245-2077 / Mohile: (410) 349-7401
mdefranco@orngecountvnc.eov
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From: Kristin Prelipp

Sent: Tuesday, October 5, 2021 1:45 PM

To: Margaret Campbell; Michael DeFranco

Cc: Alida Stemper

Subject: FW: Detention Center meda Inquiries
Importance: High

Can you please help with this request?

Kristin Prelipp
¢ .

/ Public ion Officer
300 West Tryon St., Hillsborough, NC 27278

Office: 919-245-2462 | Mobile: 919-622-5876
kprelipp@orangecountync.gov

Pronouns: She/her/hers

From: Kristin Prelipp <kprelipp@orangecountync.gov>
Date: Monday, October 4, 2021 at 6:33 PM
To: Margaret Campbell <mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>, Michael Defranco

3

<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Detention Center media inquiries

Hello! Alicia Stemper, PIO for OC Sherriff's office, is getting lots of media inquiries about the outbreak at the jail.
Question:

Does the health department have record of the number of people residing in the detention facility who have received a
vaccine?

Thanks|

Kristin

Kristin Prelipp

Communlcations Manager/ Public Information Officer
300 West Tryon St., Hillsborough, NC 27278

Office: 919-245-2462 | Mobile: 919-622-5876
Pronouns: She/her/hers

Learn more about COVID-19 in Orange County:
https;//www.grangecountync.gov/Coronavirus
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FAMILY SUCCESS ALLIANCE

Jennifer Galassi

From: Alicia Stemper

Sent: Friday, October 22, 2021 12:48 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: FW: Community Calls
Importance: High

In response to public information request:

From: Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Friday, October 8, 2021 1:16 PM

To: Alicia Stemper <astemper@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Community Calls

Importance: High

Hi Alicla,
Hope you are doing wel this Fall Friday. | just got a call from a community member asking about procedure in the center
if an {nmate tests positive. Shall | direct this to you?

Thanks,
Quintana

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Orange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Alicia Stemper

Sent: Friday, October 22, 2021 12:48 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: FW: Needs Return Call

{n response to public information request:

From: Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Friday, October 8, 2021 3:51 PM

To: Alicia Stemper <astemper@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: FW: Needs Return Call

Alicia this is the call we received today.

Thanks,
Quintana

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Orange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412
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From: La Toya Strange

Sent: Friday, October 8, 2021 12:43 PM

To: Quintana Stewart <gstewart @orangecountync. gov>
Subject: Needs Return Call

What's the procedure in relation to the other inmates — inmate tested positive
Gina Lockfear
9192595400

Respectfully,

La Foya Strange
Qdniinistnative Qasistant to the Health Dinectar



Grange County Health Departiment
300 West Fugon Stacet
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919-245-2411
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Jennifer Galassi
From: Alicia Stemper
Sent: Friday, October 22, 2021 11:50 AM
To: Jennifer Galassi
Subject: FW: Our answers- if you have a sec let me know if OK
Follow Up Flag: Fallow up
Flag Status: Completed

Sending to you in response to public information request

From: Kristin Prelipp <kprelipp@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Friday, October 15, 2021 11:58 AM

To: Alicia Stemper <astemper@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Qur answers- if you have a sec let me know if OK

*  Willyou explain any of the COVID precautions that you are familiar with within the detention center? How has
the health department worked with the detention center throughout the pandemic?

Since the very beginning of the pandemic the Orange County strike team has visited all congregant living facilities
regularly ta offer guidance, make and conduct education sessions. The ion center and all cong
living facilities are at a high risk to spread COVID-19 due to the nature of living In close quarters and because many
people who are infectious are asymptomatic. More recently due to the outbreak the OCHD epidemiological team has
continues to be in close contact with the detention center staff to do contact tracing, testing, planning as well as
assuring that personal i (PPE}isin supply and is used properly. OCHD has been in touch
constantly throughout to keep them informed of the latest guidance and best practices.

* Do you feel that there was a mismanagement that lead to this particulor outbreak?
We know that people in congregant living settings are more at risk for contracting COVID-19 and that the delta variant is
very contagious. No matter how careful you are there is always the possibility there will be the intraduction of a highly
contaglous disease in a congregant living situation. The detention center and OCHD work tagether to produce the best
autcomes. During the outbreak OCHD has been in constant communication with the medical staff at the detention
center as well as their leadership. We have also invited our partners at the North Caralina Department of Health and
Human Services (NCDHHS) to offer additional ideas and guidance. NCDHHS has a lot of experience working in
congregant living situations across the state and we always have more to learn.

s What are some of the health within the
Jacilities moving forward to prevent future outbreak?
We will continue to work closely with all cangregant living facilities as we have done throughout the pandemic.

center and other congregate living

Kristin Prelipp

Communications Manager/ Public Infarmation Officer
300 West Tryon St., Hillsborough, NC 27278

Office: 919-245-2462 | Mobile: 919-622-5876
kprelipp@orangecountync.gov

Pronouns: She/her/hers

Learn more about COVID-19 in Orange County:

https://www.orangecountync.gov/Coronavirus
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Jennifer Galassi
From: Katie Spear
Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 2:14 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi
Subject: requested emails

From: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 6:23 PM

To: Anderson Whitted <awhitted@orangecountync.gov>; Antonio Cartnail <ACartnail @orangecauntync.gov>; Howard
Blough <hblough@orangecountync.gov>; Kendrick Moore <KkMaore@orangecountync.gav>; Roldan Milan
<rmilan@orangecountync.gov>; Sharon Durham <sdurham@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear
<kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Brent Pearley <bpearley@orangecountync.gov>; Anna Kennedy
<akennedy@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: Fwd: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <cpettigrew @orangecountyne. sov>

Sent; Wednesday, October 13, 2021, 9:19 PM

To: Katie Spear; Michael DeFranco; Landon Weaver; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen @dhhs.nc.cov); Wilson-Merritr, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; 72 12@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you for this - it's very helpful.

To would be great to review the protocol you're using with rapids because I suspect it's backwards. If someone
has symptoms and tests positive on a rapid, a confirmatory PCR is not needed and shouldn't be sent. If someone
with symptoms tests negative on a rapid, then a confirmatory PCR test needs to be done before we can be
assured that person is truly negative and put them back into the general population. I'm happy to look over it if
it can be sent.

I'm assuming that these positives were tested for symptoms, so that means we would still count those two as
true positives, Robyn or the rest of our team can talk this through with y'all.

Thanks everyone

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JO, MPH she/her/hers/alla

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina




From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 5:18:33 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Michael DeFranco; Landon Weaver; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

Ce: Robyn Waod; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

| have attached the list of the anes that tested positive with the rapld test and had a PCR test done as well.
PCR test came back negative.

Thank you for being patient with me on getting this completed.
Katie

From; Erica il epettif LEOV>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:56 PM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Landon Weaver
<lweaver@arangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@arangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Chartes Blackwood
csblack 4

gov>

Ce: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@arangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedvk@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re; COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thanks everyone. Do we have an updated positive list so we know who not to swab?

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/herhers/alla

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health al UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolfina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:41:23 PM

To: Michael Defranco; Landon Weaver; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Waod; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

Subject; RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Okay Sounds gaod. | will make sure everything is together and | will notify everyone of what time you will be getting
here. Thank you ali for helping this come together.

Spear

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:36 PM

To: Landan Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@o gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@agrangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <astewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@®aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

Hi alt,

Yeah Landan, you are correct. If we are going to send to the State then we go through the online system ETOR, so just
having that [nformation Captain Spear will be super helpful so we can quickly input it and then generate the requisition
to accompany the specimen,

What are we thinking for timing? We get to the detention Center between 0900-0930?

Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN

Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Departme
Office: (919) 245-2077 / \lohde (.uo) 349-7401
mde(RNcU@onNEeoUNtyIC KoY

Improving health. Inspiring change.

CONFIDENTIALITY NQTICT: All email messayes, Including any attachments, generated from or received by this site are the property of Orange County
Government and are considerwd public domain subject to tho North Caralina Public Rexand Law. The Orange County Health Department transmits

imal confidential client fpatient i via email, and any d review, use, discl ion is prohibited. I you are not the
intended recipient, pleuse contact the sender by reply email und destrog all coples of iginal message. 1f you beli has
disclosure, please contact Carla Julian, OCHD HIPAA Privacy and Security Officer, at ciuljan@aningesountye.gor:

From: Landon Weaver

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:30 PM

To: Katle Spear; Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Woad; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.q.allen@dhhs.nc,gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com; Zglg@shgjal]medlca com; Katie Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Whichever is easler for y'all should be just fine {correct me if 1 am wrong, Health folks). | think it will all have to be
redone online after the fact either way.

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Coardinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsbarough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:24 PM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erlca

Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
d@oran

gov>
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Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manired <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <astewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw®aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katle Benedyk

<kbenedvk@grangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

| have a copy of the ones we do & | take up to the Mayo St focatian. Wil that work? | can get those filled out if that will
make everything smoother?

From: Landon Weaver <|lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:21 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tllones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@arangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra g.allen@dhhs.ne.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wiison-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Subect: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

As far as the information goes, it looks like the entire requisition process is online now. We will just take care of that on
the back end. The following is the demographic info needed for each individual:

e Full name

* Date of Birth
*  Sex

* Race

s Ethnicity

Even if there Is just one sheet of paper for each unit/pod that has all of the individuals within listed out with thase
details, I think that would work just fine in lieu of folders. Whatever method works best for your folks.

Thanks,
Landon

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Caordinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsbarough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Katie Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:51 PM
To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica

ig <epettij gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblack £OV>
Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
4
{myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g. dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <astewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpijailmedical.com; Katie Benadyk
<kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you Landon. | can help fill out forms as soon as we can get them.

What time do you think would work for you?

From: Landan Weaver <lweaver@arangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:34 PM
To: Michael DeFranco <mdefr

igrew@: gov>; Tim Jones
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>
Sub]ect: RE: COVID Outhreak Recommendatlons

gov>; Katie Spear <kspear gov>; Erica Pettigrew
gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

The previous process was pretty efficient from our perspective. Unless anyone on the Detention Center side
recommends any adjustments to the plan, | would recommend the following:

Items requested of Detention Center staff for testing team:
« C isition form for each individual to be tested
o Mike: Could you send them a requisition form with what needs to be completed? Previously, we
would fill out the common portions of a requisition form and send that copy as a PDF for that
specific population (Detention Center address, Physician info etc.}, but 1 am unable to locate the
Jorm online anymore.
¢ C J isition forms
individuals are within
»  (2) double decker rolling carts (the plastic ones that | believe are typlcally used for meal transport}

d into falders pertaining to the specific units/pods that the

Other than staff to escort us, that should be ali we need internally.
tandon

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Coardinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hilishorough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@: .gov>; Erica ig epettil gov>; Tim Jones




<tii gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangeco .gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

{myra.g allen@dhhs.nc.gav} <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpijailmedical.com; Landon Weaver
<lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Benedyk <kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Captain Spear (apologies for the incorrect title on the previaus email)

Landon Weaver and Katie Benedyk have been added onto this email. Landon as you might recall was part of the original
Strike Team and will be running Lead. He, Katie, Sarah Manfred and myself will be responsible for testing, as well as
Patti’s involvement as Detention Center RN. We will provide the State testing kits and Katie has generously offered to
transport the specimens to Raleigh after testing is completed.

Landon, if you have any details that you could share with the Detention Center Team as far as information prepped
ahead of time, please do.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department .

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdefrinco@qangeconntyne.gov
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilsen-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;

ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Who will supply the testing kits and be responsible for doing the testing?
Captain Spear

Fram: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 1:58 PM

To: Katie Spear <ks .gov>; Erica igrew <epet Jrangecountync.gov>; Tim Janes

<ti gov>; Sheriff Charles <csblackwoad@orangecor .gOV>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.govs; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.all nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson- itt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpijsilmedical.com
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Major Spear, hope you all are doing ok today. Please et me know how you would like to proceed as far as timing
tomorrow and testing the detention center.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdelmnco@omagecuuntvne.gov
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From: Katie Spear

Sent; Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

Cc: Robyn Waad; Michael DeFranco Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; 722@shpiailmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Is the swike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Get Quttook for Andraid

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gav>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

bl 0d@ gov:
Ce: Robyn Woad <rwood@orangecountyne.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@grangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.alien@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-mesritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandow@aol.com>; 7212@shpiallmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

You are welcome to structure the testing however you'd like. If you need our team, then we may not have the
capacity to spend the entire day. We'll already stretched pretty thin trying to rally troaps to help. Mike can
speak more to what's possible.

Erica Pettigraw, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/alia

Medical Director, Orange Gounty Health Depariment
Medical Director, Occupationial Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Prafessor, University of North Carolina

From; Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 7:53:04 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim lones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Sublect: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations
Can this mass testing be done with the inmates being tested in the morning and staff around 4 pm?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutlook for Aundroid

From: Erica Pettigrew <epattigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecauntync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
ountync.gov>

C:. Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manifred

<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

ewandpw@®aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you for a productive call yesterday. We appreciate a close partnership in order to work toward our
shared goal of stamping out this COVID outbreak as quickly as possible. Please see previous email below for
more details on these recommendations.

- All inmates and staff who are physically present in the jail within the last two weeks, regardless of
vaccination status, must be tested as soon as possible (ideally within the next 48 hours) with a PCR test.

- It's crucial to immediately separate any positives from negatives, even if they have been housed together.
Pasitives can be with other positives.

- Any positive rapid antigen test is considered a real positive during an outbreak and does not need
confirmatory testing.

- Anyone with symptoms needs an immediate test. If a rapid antigen test is positive, no confirmatory test
should be done. The person is positive. If a rapid antigen test is negative, a confirmatory PCR test needs to be
sent. If this is a staff member, they cannot be at work until they have a negative PCR test.

- Please notify OCHD via phone or email of any new positives the day that they are received.

- As much as possible, limit staff from working with bath COVID positive and negative folks.

- Close and timely responses are crucial for contact tracing to happen. We need a daily check-in at

minimum. We have still not received guard schedules and other info r d almost two weeks ago. Please
know that even one day delay during a COVID outbreak can end up extending the outbreak by weeks.

Please let us know how we can help. Given the extreme time sensitivity, we are planning on assisting with
mass testing this Thursday for staff and inmates. We need to be in touch tomorrow {Wed) for pregame. Who
is our point person?

E]

Thank you,

Dr. Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange Gounty Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Caralina

From; Quintana Stewart

Sent: Thursday, October 7, 2021 8:53 AM

To: Katie Spear; 'tjones@orangecountync.gov'

Cc: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred
Subject: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Goad Morning Lt. Spears & Captain Jones,

The Orange County Health Department is reaching out to provide support and guidance in light of the angoing
COVID-19 outbreak at the Orange County Detention Facility. We want to assist the Detention Center (staff &
inmates) and Southern Partners to prevent further spread and decrease impact as much as possible for all that
have tested positive for COVID-19. We know from our efforts throughout this Pandemic that timely reporting
of contacts allows us to effectively contact trace and contain further spread.

Please share this with Patty from Southern Partners and let her know that OCHD is on standby and ready to
assist.

At this point, these are our official OCHD recommendations:

TESTING & REPORTING

¢ All staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

*  Allincarcerated individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours

¢ After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine the frequency
of testing.

¢ The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in the last week.

*  All positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
¢ Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic (one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
loss of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal congestion, diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills,
vomiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests.
. ic staff must be excluded from work and undergo PCR testing.

POSITIVE TEST RESULTS
*  Positive staff must be excluded from work until cleared by the Orange County Health Department.



«  Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from Individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuais can be cahorted together.

«  If anyane who is unvaccinated is identified as a ciose contact (exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the last date of exposure and again on day 5, 6, or 7 from last exposure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
o All positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitaring (at least one set
of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals ta the hospital in case
of worsening symptoms.
« Al positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclonal
antibody infusions and those who screen positive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms.

o
a:]
m

Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
at all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when Interacting with known positive or
y ic incarcerated individual
e Surgical masks need to be provided to all individuals in the jail. Education and emphasis on the
importance of masks needs to be provided.
«  Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a celi with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Orange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412

[ ¢

TH OEPARTMENT
improving heolth. Inspiring change.

Jennifer Galassi

Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, Octaber 21, 2021 1:06 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 6, 2021 10:50 AM
Ta: Robyn Woad <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sublect: RE: following up

Sorry it has taken so long. Yes it has been quite busy. The only 2 officers that have tested positive that have been around
the inmates are

From: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 6, 2021 10:25 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: following up

Dear Lt, Spear,

1 am following up re: the officer’s schedule for the week of 9/25. | know that you are quite busy, but it is a matter of
some urgency that we look at officers who may have been working closely with the staff members wha have gone on to
test positive, particularly those who are not fully vaccinated,

If there is someone else that | should reach out to for this information, please let me know.

Thank you for all that you are doing to keep your staff and inmates safe.

Best,
Robyn

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 1:33 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: Requested email

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Get Outlook for Aadroid

From: k gov <kspear itync.gov>

Sent: Thursdav, October 21, 2021 1:32:56 PM

To: Sarah Manfred .gov>; Erica Pettigr pettigt gov>; Sheriff
Charles Blackwoaod <csblackwood @arangecountync. gov>

Ce: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 721 dical.com <721. ilmedical.com>; Michael
DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecauntync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewar gov>; Campbell b gov>; Jamie Sykes

<jsykes@orangecountync.gov>; Howard Blough <hblough@orangecountync.gov>; Grover, Joseph M
<joseph_grover@med.unc.edu>; Katle Benedyk <kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Re: Testing

Tuesday will be gaod. I will let everyone know here.

‘Thank you,
Spear

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutlook for Android

From: Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 1:30:53 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettig! pettigl gov>; Sheriff Charles
Blackwoad gov>
Cc: Tim Janes <tf gov>; 721 i ical.com <7212@shpjallmedical.com>; Michael

DeFranco <mdefran gov>; Robyn Woad <r gov>; Quintana Stewart
<qstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell <mcamgpbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamle Sykes
<jsykes@arangecountync.gov>; Howard Blough <hblough@orangecountync.gov>; Grover, Joseph M
<joseph_grover@med.unc.edu>; Katie Benedyk <kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Testing

Dear Captain Spear,

Katie (paramedic/vaccinator) and | (communicable disease nurse) can test on Tuesday 10/26 around 9

am. We prefer the morning because we have to place requisitions for each sample, match the requisitions
with the specimens and drive them ourselves ta the state lab in Raleigh. We’d only need one officer to
accompany us to each pod for testing and hope to be dane within 2 haurs as we do not need to test anyone
who has already tested positive during this outbreak.

Thank you.
Best,

Sarah T. Manfred MPH, RN, BSN, PCCN
Communicable Disease Nurse

Orange County Health Department
smanfred@orangecountync gov
919.245.2386

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 4:03 PM
To: Erica Ig) gov>; Sheriff Charles 8lackwood
<cshlackwoud@orangec0untync gov>
Ce: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 721 It dical.com; Michael DeFranco

or gov>; Robyn Waod <r gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred qmanfred@orangecountync gov>; Margaret Campbelt
<mc gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsyk gov>; Howard Blough
(hblough@omngecountync gov>; Grover, loseph M <Joseph_grover@med.unc. edu>
Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

| have got together with the nurse and Lt. Blough. We are in agreeance that it will not be possible to do both the MAB
and mass PCR testing. We will need to schedule another day and time for PCR testing. One thought is can the PCR
testing be done during the evening hours? There is nat as much activity going on with the staff/nurse, as in we could be
a flittle more efficient and not have to rush through, making sure all paperwork and samples are labeled correctly. Just a
thought.

Thank you,
Captain Spear

From. Enca F g .ZOV>

Sent: Wednesday, Octcber 20, 2021 1:57PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gav>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Ce: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountyne.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael Defranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<astewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@arangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <[svkes@orangecountync.gov>; Grover, loseph M

<loseph grover@med.unc.edu>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

Thank you for that Eeedback [ can certainly understand their hesitation, particularly given the historical

itted against bt ions by medical professionals. And I certainly don't want anyone
to feel coerced in any way. It's just hard 1o see people turn down potentially life-saving treatment that T would
be lining my mom or my brather up first thing if they needed it, you know?

We do what we can do, offer it and go from there,



Sarah on our team had a great idea - since weekly testing is the recommendation in an outbreak setting, shall we
do another testing event tomorrow concurrent with the few MABs? How hard would it be to pull that off, given
that we'll be there with a team anyway? We'll have around 15 less people to test than last week anyway, given
the new positives.

‘Thanks for considering,

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange Gounty Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Caralina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 12:22:02 M

To: Erica Pettigrew; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

We just added another one. So maybe they will have changed minds tanight...

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:41 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwoad@orangecountyne.gov>
Cc: Tim Jones <tij: ountync.gov>; 721 jailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.zov>; Robyn Waod <rwaod@arangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@ocrangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@arangecountync.gov>; lamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

Hi Katie -

Only 82!! That's shocking. Out of 85 or so eligible people, only 8 wanted this life saving medication...I'm
worried that this flyer perhaps didn't convey how important it can be. The appointments at UNC are typically
filling up like gangbusters. What sorts of reasons did you hear about people declining it? How can we increase
uptake? Perhaps since we were planning on a big team there all day tomorrow we could do some medical talks
so that people can understand. Open to any ideas. Feeling bad that we have a big team volunteering.

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

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:23:55 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwaod; Erica Pettigrew

Cc: Tim Jones; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Waod; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

We have 8 incarcerated that wants the MAB One of those Is 50 we added him to ask questions

and hopefully agree.

Thank you,
Captain Spear

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:57 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@arangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Tim Jones <tii itync.gov>; 721 jailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@ocrangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@arangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <sykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

1 will make copies and pass them out along with numbers on who wants the antigen. ! will get those emailed to you all
tomorrow around noon time. Thank you all for your help!!

Captain Spear

Fram: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <¢sblackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM
To: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@arangecountync.gov>

Ce: Tim lones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpiailmedical.com;

Michael DeFranco <md ountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <r gov>; Quintana Stewart
<astewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred fred@orangecountync.gov>; g Campbell
<mcampbeli@arangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <{sykes@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

I'm fine with this
Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19, 2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <epettierew @orangecountync.eov> wrote:

Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Depariment
Medical Diractor, Occupational Health at UNG Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Caralina

From: Erica Pettigrew
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41:09 AM
To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpijailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; amie Sykes
Subject: quick question - flyer

Hi everyone -

Any concerns about this flyer? Hoping this can serve to get our info disseminated to everyone
today. Also trying to figure out how to get a Spanish version.

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

From:; Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 7:59 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Tim lones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - important

That sounds great. We'll gonna come tomorrow morning to strategize. Probably around 9:30.
Hoping that someane from jail leadership might be around at some point to talk through
options. It alsa seems like UNC will be able to find some folks to come Thursday for a more
thorough MAB run.

Also, | know Capt Spear's working hard on cohorting the new positives. Some key tips:

- best practice is keeping only positives with positives - this is most important first step

- good news is that you can put recently previously positive with new positives (so that list of 23
can be housed with these new 13 - that's much better than mixing them with anyone else)

- if there's a way to then figure out who was close contacts with those pasitives and keep them
quarantined together (but away from positives, away from new intakes, and away from any
person who is not a close contact), that's ideal.

We're looking forward to helping more tomorrow. it's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you all
have added constraints about codefendants, space, etc.

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
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From: Sheriff Charles 8lackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:23:11 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jai! updates - important

Come Tuesday and determine what measures you can work with. We will call SHP and see they
can have you some help on Thursday. Hopefully we can make this work for everyone

Sheriff 8
Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

wrote:

Thank you for these answers, Sheriff. | know Tuesday is very soon. For context,
this ball got rolling over the weekend but UNC, GCHD and EMS were all able to
scramble and find volunteers to help on that day.

We certainly need to find a day that works for all teams involved. One thing to
clarify - sorting out the new positives won't actually have much impact on MAB
because people are eligible whether they are positive or just exposed.

Obstacles we'd have to overcome for Thursday (doable but | need help):
1) We need 2 physician on site {I'm only a part time doc with the health dept - |
see clinic patients that Thursday afternoon, | asked Dr. Grover and Dr. Wohl if

they can volunteer time but they are also busy clinically). Can SHP provide one?

2) UNC would need to be willing to be there/provide their MAB stash (I'm
checking)

3) And, of course, the sooner the treatment the better.

How about this: Could we have a couple of us come by tomorrow (Tuesday) for a
dry run and strategy session? We could do a few administrations, get a better
sense of how many people are interested, help with any cohorting issues, and
then {assuming we can overcome #1 and #2) we can plan for full event
Thursday?

Thanks for considering.

Erica



Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/alla

Medical Director, Orange County Health Depariment
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNG Heallh Care
Assistant Prafessor, University of North Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katle Spear; 7212@shpiatimedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Manaclonal antibodies (MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very time-sensitive
intervention.

We are all very much aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuesday is very
short notice considering we do not yet have the results hack as to who has
tested positive from the last round of testing. All that being said Thursday seems
reasonable for everyone invalved, including but not limited to the tolks at SHP,

Just about every incarcerated person Is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID positive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spaken about this and agreed that we would use the same
criteria as would be used for any ather segment of the population. If you meet
the criteria you get it. if you den’lL you don't, This also prevents an inmate from
feeling like they have to accept the tieatment,

We need logistical help from jail leadership to strategize how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight last week, Other jails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday
works)? Also, Is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but
it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Qur space has always been limited and we have to wark within those fimitations,
Going Lo the PODS to administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not
feasible. Having thase who elect to have the treatment come into the booking
area and then be housed In the large holding area Is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning
down,

Oraft the ~“ane pager” you are comfortable with and we wiil review and approve.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the jall. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

{ connot answer to what SHP will or will not agree 1o but we can cestainly explain
the situation and see what they say.

Testing

Thank you to everyone wha helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a
success. | have not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it is crucial
that jall and medical staff work ciosely with Robyn to cohart positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

1 have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

1 will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don’t know what concerns were
vaiced fast week. If it's about SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send you
thel protocols.

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus
was introduced by staff. The spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods
supports the separate conclusion that the infection was promulgated across
pads by staff.

To date, na meaningful contact tracing has been done by the health department
due to lack of requested information like guard schedules. No staff member has
been quarantined. Please remember that quarantining those at highest risk of
turning positive is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be over.

| will get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the requast was made as to
wha alt had worked, avery rotation had cycled through. So all squads had worked
prior ta our being in outbreak status, All staff who tested positive were
quarantined for 10 days and returned to wark after that period and no fever for
3 days.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered.
Robyn is one of our excellent clinical COVID nurses and s the official liaison from
OCHD on the jail outbreak. Daily contact is the minimum public health
expectation during an outbreak, even if it's a message that there are no new
symptomatic or positive people. How can we improve this? Many of our nursing
homes appreciated a set call time each day. If there is a better way for us to
communicate during your busy work days, please let us know.

I'm not sure what communication has not been working. | bave checked with
Major Janes and Captain Spear, neither of them have been called or emalled
about this matter.

When a new pasitive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be
called or emailed immediately {within that day) in order to move quickly with
mitigation strategies.

We have not had any results of positive cases.

Again, please know we are working as hard as we can to address the aulbreak and we
ara most concerned about bringing this all to a successtul conclusion

Respectfully,

Sheriff Blackwood

From: Erica g i ar gOV>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles d < d gov>; Tim Jones
<tllones@or: gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@or: gOV>;

7212@shpjailmedical.com
Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood

{5 tync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewant@orangecountync.gov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred@or .gov>; Marg Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so long | tried to
bold the things we need quick answers to., Thanks.

Monoclonal antibodies {(MAB}
This lif ing medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for anather MAB
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very ti ith
intervention.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID positive peaple as well as negative people who were exposed.

We need ical help from jail | ta ize how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly {assuming Tuesday
works)? Also, Is it possible for the SHP medical directar to be an site for this?
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Dr. Grover {med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but
it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning
down.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the Jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a
success. | have not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them itis crucial
that jail and medical staff work closely with Rabyn to cohort positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

I have not heard further about the testing protacol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocals asap?

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
pods by staff.

To date, no meaningful contact tracing has been done by the health department
due to lack of requested information like guard schedules. Na staff member has
been quarantined. Please remember that quarantining those at highest risk of
turning positive is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be over.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emalis answered.
Robyn is one of our excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from
OCHD an the jail outbreak. Dally contact is the minimum public health
expectation during an outbreak, even if it's a message that there are no new
symptomatic or positive people. How can we improve this? Many of our nursing
homes appreciated a set call time each day. if there is a better way for us to
communicate during your busy wark days, please let us know.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be

called or emailed immediately (within that day) in order to move quickly with
mitigation strategies.

That's it for now. Please let me know any feedback on how we can continue to
work together on stamping this outbreak out.
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

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 1:04 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 11, 2021 5:51 PM

To: Landan Weaver <lweaver
Subject: Re: Detention Center Vax 10/12/21

gov>; 721 ilmedical.cam

Sure thing, T will have numbers in the morning.
Thank you!

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Get Qutlook for Android

From: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 11, 2021 5:48:39 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpiailmedical.com>
Subject: Detention Center Vax 10/12/21

Hey Katie,

Just writing to let you know that we are still planning on coming out your way tomorrow at 1000 for the
monthly COVID vaccination unless you advise otherwise. Like usual, we will plan on primarily using Janssen but
will also bring Moderna and Pfizer for your second doses and whatnot.

Let me know if ya'll need anything else from us before then,
Landon

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Coardinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

©:919-245-6127

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 2:12 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, Octaber 21, 2021 2:11 PM

To: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: daily check in

Yes ma’am went smoothly. We have already set Tuesday, October 26™, for our next mass PCR testing with staff and
residents.

Answers are in RED.

Thank you,
Spear

From: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 1:37 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: daily check in
Hello Captain Spear,
I hope the MAB administration event went smoothly this morning. Just checking in for our usual....

Any new cases/newly symptomatic people today? No

How many guard tests are still outstanding? | have 2 left that I'm waiting on the paperwork
Any health status changes among the positives? No

Any close contacts between guards and positive Incarcerated people? Mo just narmal routine
Any questions | can help with? Mot at this time

Qs wNe

Hope you have a great Thursday.

Robyn

Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 1:04 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 7:39 AM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Good morning

Good morning Landon!l We have 8 that want the vaccine today.

Thank you,

ﬁalntain. Katie 6,oea'¢
QOrange County Detention Center
125 Court St

Hillsborough, NC 27278

Office: 919-245-2958

Cell: 919-417-1477



Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 1:01 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject requested emails

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:17 PM

To: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettlgrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim
Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles k d gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecnuntyn: gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wllson Mernn AnitaD <anlta .wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewar gov>; l.com; 7212@sh dical.com; Landon Weaver
<lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Benedyk <kbenedvk@orzngecountync gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

This sounds good however, the time is the hard part. [nmate was it's easier in the morning but hard for officers,
especially the ones working nights. It would be easier for officers closer to shift change time, which is at 4:30/5 pm. Our
afternoons are more hectlc for inmates, since we have 1* appearances at 2 pm then dinner at 4.

Spear

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear gov>; Erica Pettig epettigr untync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood d@: fov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Landon Weaver
<lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Benedyk <kbened! orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Captain Spear (apologies for the incorrect title on the previous email}

Landon Weaver and Katie Benedyk have been added onto this email. Landon as you might recali was part of the original
Strike Team and will be running Lead. Ke, Katie, Sarah Manfred and myself will be responsible for testing, as well as
Patti’s involvement as Detention Center RN. We will provide the State testing kits and Katie has generously offered to
transport the specimens to Raleigh after testing is completed.

Landon, if you have any details that you could share with the Detention Center Team as far as information prepped
ahead of time, please do,

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department
Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdefunco@omngecountyncgoy
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intended. ndplrnl pluu cantact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message. If you believe there bas been an inappopriate
disclosure, please contact Carla Julian, OCHD HIPAA Privacy and Security Officer. at ciulian@orangecountvc.eav.

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Woad; Sarah Manfred A!Ien Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gav); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com;

Subject: RE: COVID Oumreak Recommendaljnns

Who wilt supply the testing kits and be responsible for doing the testing?

Captain Spear

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 1:58 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epetti grew@orangecoungnc gov>; Tim Jones

<tljones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwoad <csblac ountync.gov>
Cc: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Aller, Myra

{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpijailmedical.com
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Major Spear, hope you all are doing ok today. Please let me know how you would like to proceed as far as timing
tomorrow and testing the detention center.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Qffice: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
miq_rmmmmmmmm
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Memitt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; mmmmm@m

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Is the strike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutlook tor Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <gpettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
csblacl gov>

Cc: Rabyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred

<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

ewandpw(®aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpijailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

You are welcome to structure the testing however you'd like. If you need our team, then we may not have the
capacity to spend the entire day. We'll already stretched pretty thin trying to rally troops to help. Mike can
speak more to what's possible.

Erica Pettigrew, MD, UD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupalional Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Katle Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 7:53:04 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Woad; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@®aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Sub]ect: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Can this mass testing be done with the inmates being tested in the morning and staff around 4 pm?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Ger Outlook for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <gpetti gOV>

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear gov>; Tim Jones <ti
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gav>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com <7212@shp| ailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

-ountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Thank you for a praductive call yesterday. We appreciate a close partnership in order to work toward our
shared goal of stamping out this COVID outhreak as quickly as possible. Please see previous email below for
more details on these recommendations.

- Allinmates and staff who are physically present in the jail within the last two weeks, regardless of
vaccination status, must be tested as soon as passible (ideally within the next 48 hours) with a PCR test.

- It's crucial to immediately separate any positives from negatives, even if they have been housed together.
Positives can be with other positives.

- Any positive rapid antigen test is considered a real positive during an outbreak and does not need
confirmatory testing.

- Anyone with symptoms needs an immediate test. If a rapid antigen test is positive, no canfirmatory test
should be done. The person is positive. If a rapid antigen test is negative, a confirmatory PCR test needs to be
sent. If this is a staff member, they cannot be at work until they have a negative PCR test.

- Please notify OCHD via phone or email of any new pasitives the day that they are received.

- As much as possible, limit staff from working with both COVID positive and negative folks.

- Close and timely responses are crucial for contact tracing to happen. We need a daily check-in at

minimum. We have still not received guard schedules and other info requested almost two weeks ago. Please
know that even one day delay during a COVID outbreak can end up extending the outbreak by weeks.

Please let us know how we can help. Given the time itivity, we are planning on assi with
mass testing this Thursday for staff and inmates. We need to be in touch tomorrow (Wed) for pregame. Who
is our point person?

Thank you,

Dr. Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Depariment
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNG Health Gare
Assistant Professor, University of North Caralina

From: Quintana Stewart

Sent: Thursday, October 7, 2021 8:53 AM

To: Katie Spear; 'tjones@orangecountync.gov'

Ce: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred
Subject: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Good Morning Lt. Spears & Captain Jones,



The Orange County Health Department is reaching out to provide support and guidance in light of the ongaing
COVID-19 outbreak at the Orange County Detention Facility. We want to assist the Detention Center (staff &
inmates) and Southern Partners to prevent further spread and decrease Impact as much as passible for all that
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

®  All staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

*  Allincarcerated individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours

¢ After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Heaith Department will determine the frequency
of testing.

*  The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in the last week.

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
¢ Symptomatic staff must be excluded from work and undergo PCR testing.

POSITIVE TEST RESULTS
*  Positive staff must be excluded from work until cleared by the Orange County Health Department.
¢ Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuals can be cohorted together.
+ Ifanyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact (exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the last date of exposure and again on day S, 6, ar 7 fram last exposure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
* Al positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals to the haspital in case
of worsening symptoms.
s All positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclonal
antibody infusions and those who screen positive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms.

o
D
m

Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
at all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when interacting with known pasitive or
symptomatic incarcerated individuals.
¢ Surgical masks need to be provided to all individuals in the jail. Ed ion and emphasis on the
importance of masks needs to be provided.

|

¢ staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Orange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412

< Cler LY
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 1:00 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear
Sent: Wednesday, October 13,2021 4:01 PM

To: Erica Pettigr pettig! gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountyne.gov>; Landon
Weaver <l gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
black gOoV>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g. nc.gov) <myra.g. nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <qstewart@orar gov>; p com; 721 jail com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedyk@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

1 am working on that now.

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:56 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Landon Weaver
<lweaver gov>; Tim Jones <tjs gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.ne.gov>; Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecauntync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212 @shpiailmedical.com; Katie 8enedyk
<kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thanks everyone. Do we have an updated positive list so we know who not to swab?

Erica Pettigrew, MB, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/elia

Medical Direclor, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNG Health Gare
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:41:23 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Landon Weaver; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Okay Sounds good. | will make sure everything is together and | will notify everyone of what time you will be getting
here. Thank you all for helping this come together.

Spear

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:36 PM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epetti ountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tij £0v>; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita. ilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw(@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedvk@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Hiall,

Yeah Landan, you are correct. If we are going to send to the State then we go through the online system ETOR, so just
having that information Captain Spear will be super helpful so we can quickly input it and then generate the requisition
to accompany the specimen.

What are we thinking for timing? We get to the detention Center between 0900-0930?
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410} 349-7401
mdefrmaco@arngecountyac.gov
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From: Landon Weaver

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:30 PM

To: Katie Spear; Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Waad; Sarah Manfred Allen, Myra (myra 4a.allen@dhhs,nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anlta D; Quintana Stewart;
_\EBQLMLLL_II\ ; Katie Benedyk
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendalions

Whichever is easier for y'all should be just fine {correct me if | am wrong, Heaith folks). I think it will 2l have to be
redone online after the fact either way.

Landon Weaver
Community Paramedic Coordinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.



Hillsborough, NC 27278
M: 919-441-2659
0:919-245-6127

me- Katle Spear <k§gg§ @ @_ugecoungnc.g >
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:24 PM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica
Pettigrew <epettij gov>; Tim Jones <tij ountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com; Katle Benedyk
<kbenedyk@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

| have a copy of the ones we do & | take up to the Mayo St location. Will that work? | can get those filled out if that will
make everything smoother?

From: Landon Weaver <|weaver@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:21 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco .gow>; Erica igl
<apettigrew@or: gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

d@ gov>

Ce: Robvn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g. dhhs.nc.gov} <myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
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

«  Fullname

e Date of Birth

. Sex
® Race
*  Ethnicity

Even if there is just one sheet of paper for each unit/pod that has all of the individuals within listed out with those
details, | think that would work just fine in lieu of folders. Whatever method works best for your folks.

Thanks,
Landon

Landon Weaver
Community Paramedic Coardinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278
M: 919-441-2659
Q: 919-245-6127

me- Katie Spear <ksgezr@orangg:oungnc.g p

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:51 PM

Ta: Landon Weaver <iweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountyne.gov>; Erica
Pettigrew <gpettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tiiones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@®aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you Landon. | can help fill out forms as soan as we can get them.

‘What time do you think wauld work for you?

Froi ndon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:34 PM

To: Michael DeFranco <mdefr gov>; Katie Spear
<epettigr gov>; Tim Jones <tij
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@®aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

gov>; Erica Pettigrew
gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

The previous pracess was pretty efficient from our perspective. Unless anyone on the Detention Center side
recommends any adjustments to the plan, | would recommend the following;

items requested of Detention Center staff for testing team:
»  Completed requisition form for each individual to be tested
o Mike: Could you send them a requisition form with what needs to be completed? Previously, we

would fill out the common portions of a requisition form and send that copy as a POF for that
specific population (Detention Center address, Physician info etc.), but | am unable to locate the
form online anymore.

*  Completedr ition forms

individuals are within
s {2) double decker rolling carts {the plastic ones that 1 belleve are typically used for meal transport)

into folders pertaining to the specific units/pods that the

Other than staff to escort us, that should be all we need internally.
Landon

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Caordinater
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear 1c.gov>; Erica Pettigs <epettig gov>; Tim Janes
<tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Landon Weaver
<|weaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katle Benedyk <kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE; COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Captain Spear (apalogies for the incorrect title on the previous email)

Landon Weaver and Katie Benedyk have been added onto this email. Landon as you might recall was part of the original
Strike Team and will be running Lead. He, Katie, Sarah Manfred and myself will be respansible for testing, as well as
Patti’s invalvement as Detention Center RN. We will provide the State testing kits and Katie has generously offered to
transport the specimens to Raleigh after testing is completed.

Landon, if you have any detalls that you could share with the Detention Center Team as far as information prepped
ahead of time, please do.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410} 349-7401
mdefmnco@orngecountyne.gov

»
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

Ta: Michael Defranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jom_s' Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra ler ; Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpfallmedical,com

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

To: Katle Spear gov>; Erica igr <ege(t|grew@orangecoungnc gov>; Tim Jones
<tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles k d <c gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <nuood@orangecoungmc.g ov>; Sarah Manfred <smanired@omngecoungnc gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g. hs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@arangecountync.gov>; ewandgw@aol.com 7212@shpiailmedical.com
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Major Spear, hope you ail are doing ok today. Please let me know how you would like to proceed as far as timing
tomorrow and testing the detention center.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services M:mager

Orange County Health Depsrtm

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (m) 349-7401
mdefranco@orangecountyne.gov
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: All email messages, including any attachments, generated from or received by this site are the property of Orange County
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From: Katle Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones‘ Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw®aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID QOutbreak Recommendations

Is the sirike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outlook for Audroid

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@grangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM
To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Cc: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
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ewandpw®aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>
SubJect: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

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
Medical Diractor, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 7:53:04 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Woad; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;

Can this mass testing be done with the inmates being tested in the morning and staff around 4 pm?

Seat from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Get Qutlook for Android

Fram: Erica gt <epettigrew@or .EOV>
Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Janes <tij
<esblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountyne.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.govs;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

gov>; Sheriff Charles B

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

- It's crucial to i diately separate any positives from negatives, even if they have been housed together.
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

Erica Peltigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Direclor, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of Narth Carolina

Fram: Quintana Stewart

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

The Orange County Health Department is reaching out to provide support and guidance in light of the ongoing
COVID-19 outbreak at the Orange County Detention Facility. We want ta assist the Detention Center (staff &
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
* Al staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

*  Allincarcerated individual: gardless of status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours

®  After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine the frequency
of testing.

¢ The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in the last week.
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*  Ali positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
*  Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic (one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
loss of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal congestion, diarrhea, headache, muscie aches, chills,
vomiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests.
*  Symptomatic staff must be excluded from work and undergo PCR testing.

POSITIVE TEST RESULTS
¢ Positive staff must be excluded from work until cleared by the Orange County Health Department,
*  Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuals can be cohorted together.
* Ifanyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact (exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
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
of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals to the hospital in case
of worsening symptoms.
*  All positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclonal
antibody infusions and those who screen positive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms.

©
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Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
at all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when interacting with known positive or
ic incarcerated i
¢ Surgical masks need to be provided to all individuals in the jail. Education and emphasis on the
importance of masks needs to be provided.
* Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

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

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 12:59 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject requested emails

Attachments: COVID +.xlsx

Fram: Katie Spear
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 5:19 PM
To: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Landon
Weaver gov>; Tim Jones <tils gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

cshlack d EOV>
Cc: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <qstewar gov>; l.com; 721 Imedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

1 have attached the list of the ones that tested positive with the rapid test and had a PCR test done as well.
PCR test came back negative.

Thank you for being patient with me on getting this completed.
Katie

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@arangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:56 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranca <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Landon Weaver
<lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gav>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <astewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov> .

Subject; Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thanks everyone. Do we have an updated positive list so we know who not to swab?

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Diractor, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of Norih Garolina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:41:23 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Landon Weaver; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g hhs.nc.gov); Wil Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;

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
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Janes <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwoad
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov} <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita O <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aal.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Hiall,

Yeah Landon, you are correct. If we are going to send to the State then we go through the online system ETOR, so just
having that information Captaln Spear will be super helpful so we can quickly Input it and then generate the requisition
to accompany the specimen.

What are we thinking for timing? We get to the detention Center between 0900-09307

Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN

Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department
Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
nmmmmnsmnmmm

?
4 T
B M‘.ALTN CEPARTMENT

Improving heaith. inspiring change.

Al emml messages, including any attachments, generated from or received by this site are the property of Orange County
d subject to the Nonhuml(na Public Rm-rd Law, The Orange County Health Department transinits
inimal i il, and any is prohibited. I you are not the
inteuded recipient, plus: contact the sender by reply email an:.lv.lstrny all mpm of the. ungmn] message. 1(you beliove there has been an inappropriate
losure, please contact Carla Jullan, OCHD HIPAA Privacy and

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTIC
ander

From: Landon Weaver

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 3:30 PM

To: Katie Spear; Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred Allen, Myra (myra g.allen@dhhs.nc.gav); Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aal.com; ; Katle Benedyk
Subject: RE: COVID OuIbreak Recommendauons

Whichever is easler for yall should be just fine (correct me if [ am wrong, Health folks). [ think it will all have to be
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

To: Landon Weaver <jweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica
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
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpi jailmedical.com; Katle Benedyk
<kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

1 have a capy of the ones we do & | take up to the Mayo St location. Wil that work? | can get those fllled out if that will
make everything smoother?

From: Landun Weaver <Iwaaver orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:21 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epetti gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod
<csblackwaood @orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Rabyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gav>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewar gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE; COVID Outbreak Recommendations

As far as the information goes, it looks like the entire requisition process is online now. We will just take care of that an
the back end. The following is the demographic info needed for each individual:

« Fuliname

¢ Date of Birth
s Sex

* Race

«  Ethnicity

Even if there is just ane sheet of paper for each unit/pod that has all of the individuals within listed out with those
details, | think that would work just fine in lieu of folders. Whatever method works best for your folks.

Thanks,
Landon

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Caardinator
Orange Caunty Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:51 PM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver .gov>; Michael DeFranca <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica
epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

csblackwood@orangecoungnc gOV>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

‘myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov} <myra.g.all hs.nc.gov>; Wil: Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedyk@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you Landon. | can help fill out forms as scon as we can get them.

What time do you think would work for you?

From: Landon Weaver <iweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:34 PM

To: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew

<egenlgrew@orangecoungync gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
d@orangecountync.gov>

C:. Robyn Wood <r | - gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

(myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g. dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita O <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiallmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedyk@aorangecountync.gov>

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
. G isition form for each idual to be tested
o Mike: Could you send them a requisition form with what needs to be completed? Previously. we

would fill out the common portians of a requisition form and send that copy as a PDF for that
specific population (Detention Center address, Physician info etc.), but I am unable to locate the
form onfine anymore.

LI o isition forms

individuals are within
+  (2) double decker rolling carts (the plastic ones that | belleve are typically used for meal transport}

{ into folders pertaining to the specific units/pods that the

Other than staff to escort us, that should be all we need Internally.



Landon

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Coardinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillskorough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@arangecountync.govs; Erica igrew <epettij gov>; Tim Janes
<Li gov>; Sheriff Charles csblack @+ gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Landan Weaver
<lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Benedyk <kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations
Captain Spear (apologies for the incorrect title on the previous email)

Landon Weaver and Katie Benedyk have been added onto this email. Landon as you might recall was part of the original
Strike Team and will be running Lead. He, Katie, Sarah Manfred and myself will be responsible for testing, as well as
Patti's involvement as Detention Center RN. We will provide the State testing kits and Katie has generously offered to
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
mdefrancy@omngvennntync.oy
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From: Katie Spear
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwoad
Cc: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.qg.allen@dhhs.nc,qov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;

ewandpw@aol.com; mz.@.hma_llm&@]._qm
Subject: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

Who wili supply the testing kits and be responsible for doing the testing?

Captain Spear

From: Mlchael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecnuntync gOV>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 1:58 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones

<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.govs; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Major Spear, hope you all are doing ok today. Please let me know how you would like to proceed as far as timing
and testing the ion center.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mabile: (410) 349-7401
mdefrunco@orangecountvnc.gov
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Janes; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra,q.alien@dhhs.nc,qov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;

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

To: Katte Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@arangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
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<cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <mvra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

You are welcome to structure the testing however you'd like. If you need our team, then we may not have the
capacity to spend the entire day. We'll already stretched pretty thin trying to rally traops to help. Mike can
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

Cc: Rabyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212 @shpiailmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Can this mass testing be done with the inmates being tested in the morning and staff around 4 pm?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outlaok for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <gpettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katie Spear gov>; Tim Jones <tij
di oV

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecoun gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred

ountyne.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw®aol.com>; 7212@shpiailmedical.com <7212@shpiailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

ountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Thank you for a productive call yesterday. We appreciate a close partnership in order to work toward our
shared goal of stamping out this COVID outbreak as quickly as possible. Please see previous email below for
more details an these recommendations.

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

- Anyone with symptoms needs an immediate test. if a rapid antigen test is positive, no confirmatory test
should be done. The person is positive. If a rapid antigen test is negative, a confirmatory PCR test needs to be
sent, If this is a staff member, they cannot be at work until they have a negative PCR test.

- Please notify OCHD via phone or email of any new positives the day that they are received.

- As much as possible, limit staff from working with bath COVID positive and negative folks.

- Close and timely respanses are crucial for contact tracing to happen. We need a daily check-in at

minimum. We have still not received guard schedules and other info requested almost two weeks ago. Please
know that even one day delay during a COVID outbreak can end up extending the outbreak by weeks.

Please let us know how we can help. Given the extreme time sensitivity, we are planning on assisting with
mass testing this Thursday for staff and Inmates. We need to be in touch tomorrow {Wed) for pregame. Who
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



= Allincarcerated Individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours

o After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine the frequency
of testing.

o The only individuals exempted from testing are thase who are known to be positive in the last week.

¢ All positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
o Anyone {staff or inmate) that Is symptomatic {one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
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
s Positive staff must be excluded from work until cleared by the Orange County Health Department.
+  Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuals can be cohorted together.
o Ifanyone who Is unvaccinated Is identified as a close contact (exposed ta COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the last date of expasure and again on day 5, 6, or 7 from fast exposure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
«  All positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals to the hospital in case
of worsening symptoms.
«  All positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclonal
antibody infusions and those who screen positive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms.

o
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+  Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
at all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when interacting with known positive or
symp ic incarcerated individual

«  Surgical masks need to be provided to all individuals in the jail. Education and emphasis on the
importance of masks needs to be provided.

s Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Orange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillshorough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412

HEATH DEPRRTIENT
tmproving health. inspiring change.

GEs~

Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, October 21,2021 12:58 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:20 PM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Sublect: RE: Rosters

Yes sir | will get that together

Fram: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 9:12 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Ce: Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Rosters

Morning Katie,

Would it be possible to get a copy of the names of inmates as they correspond to Pods? We shredded all of
the documents after submitting test results on Thursday. Sorry for the trouble,

Thanks in advance,
Landon

Jennifer Galassi

Katie Spear

Thursday, October 21, 2021 12:58 PM
Jennifer Galassi

requested emails

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:33 PM

To: Robyn Wood <r d gov>; 721 dical.com
Cc: Tim lones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>

SubJect: RE: Daily check In

We have not had any more positive cases (staff or in-custody) since 10/12/2021. However, we have 1 thatis the hospital
with covid pneumonia. He was taken last night.

The staff that did not come on Thursday, resuits are slowly coming back and I'm getting copies.

So far all negative,

Fram: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Monday, Octaber 18, 2021 1:21 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Subject: Daily check in

Hello Captain Spear and Nurse Patty,

1 am checking in today to determine whether you are aware of any additional positive Incarcerated people or staff,
determine the health status of currently positive people, and to assist with any questions related to coharting positives.
For those officers/staff who did not test at your facility with OCHD, it Is important as well that we review their PCR
testing.

IF it is helpful to you, we can try to arrange a dally time to speak at your convenience.

Best,

Robyn Woad

‘OCHD Covid response nurse
919 667 5448



Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 12:58 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 6:36 PM

To: Robyn Wood <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Re: CONFIDENTIAL

I'have talked with the nuise and let her know about the positives on the list. We are trying to figure out where
we can move people. Space is limited and some of them are "allergic” to each other.

Thank you for sending the results and I will get the names of the officers together.
Katie

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutlook tor Androic

From: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 5:17:02 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: 7212 @shpjallmedical.com <7212@shpijailmedical.com>; Michael Defrance <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: CONFIDENTIAL

Captain Spear,
| am glad to hear that remaining staff have been asked to get PCR testing, that is very helpful.

I have just invited you to a secure share which contains the results of our most recent testing effort. Please let me know
right away if you have any difficulty accessing the spreadsheet through secure share, as it is a matter of urgency.

Our immediate recommendations include:
1. Separating known positive cases from negatives.
2. Identifying any unvaccinated staff that have had clase contact with positive inmates. | know that you do not
ity have staff inati ion, so please let me know asap if any guards have had close contact,

and | can cross check against guard vaccine status. Close contact is defined as 15 cumulative minutes within 6
feet of a COVID positive person over 24 hours. In a situation such as this, it would not have to be 15 min in
proximity to the same positive inmate, and it may be eastest to think in terms of cumulative exposure to ANY
positive person.

3. Identifying all close contacts of pasitive persons, and quarantining unvaccinated inmates who have been
exposed.

We know that your facility faces unique challenges with cohorting, and space in generat. | am available to speak this
afternoon to address any questions you may have, and will follow this email with a voicemail to ensure you have access
to the secure share in a timely manner.

Thanks far working with us to get ahead of this outbreak.

Robyn Wood
OCHD COVID response nurse
919 667 5448

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 4:40 PM

To: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: Daily check in

‘Yes ma’am everyone got testing here or somewhere else. | made it clear it was PCR testing not rapid testing.

From: Robyn Wood <fwoed@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 4:18 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: Daily check in

Thank you so much for your reply. | wili be in touch shortly as we get results from last week's testing.
I want to confirm as well that all staff have gotten PCR testing, regardless of vaccine status.
|'am very sorry to hear that one of the inmates has been hospitalized. Please keep us up to date on his condition.

Robyn Wood
OCHD COVID response nurse
919 667 5448

From: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:33 PM

To: Robyn Woad <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Ce: Tim Jones <tliones@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: Daily check in

We have not had any more positive cases {staff or in-custady) since 10/12/2021. However, we have 1 that is the haspital
with covid pneumonia. He was taken last night.

The staff that did not come on Thursday, resuits are slowly coming back and I'm getting copies.

So far all negative.

From: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.govs>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 1:21 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@crangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpijailmedical.com
Subject: Daily check in

Hello Captain Spear and Nurse Patty,

| am checking in today to determine whether you are aware of any additional positive incarcerated people or staff,
determine the health status of currently positive people, and to assist with any questions related to cohorting positives.
Far those officers/staff who did not test at your facility with OCHD, it is important as well that we review thelr PCR
testing,

Ifit s helpful to you, we can try to arrange a daily time to speak at your convenience.

Best,

Robyn Wood

OCHD Covid response nurse
919 667 5448
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Jennifer Galassi
From: Katie Spear
Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 12:57 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi
Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 6:42 PM

To: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Re: CONFIDENTIAL

Sure you can call my cell since I have already gone.
919-417-1477

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Quilook for Android

From: Robyn Wood <rwoed@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 6:36:55 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL

Thank you. Would it be helpful to speak this evening?
Robyn

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Monday, Octaber 18, 2021 6:36 PM

To: Robyn Wood <rwor orangecountync.gov>

Ce: 7212@shplallmedical.com; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Re: CONFIDENTIAL

I'have talked with the nurse and let her know about the positives on the list. We are trying to figure out where
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
Get Qutluk for Android

From: Robyn Wood <rwood@orzngecountync.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 5:17:02 PM
To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>



Ce: 7212@shpiailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: CONFIDENTIAL

Captaln Spear,
1 am glad to hear that remaining staff have been asked to get PCR testing, that is very helpful.

| have just invited you to a secure share which contains the results of our most recent testing effort. Please let me know
right away if you have any difficulty accessing the spreadsheet through secure share, as it is a matter of urgency.

Our immediate recommendations include:

1. Separating known positive cases from negatives.

2. Identifying any unvaccinated staff that have had close contact with pasitive inmates. | know that you do not
necessarily have staff vaccination information, so please let me know asap if any guards have had close contact,
and | can cross check against guard vaccine status. Close contact is defined as 15 cumulative minutes within 6
feet of 3 COVID positive person over 24 hours. in a situation such as this, it would not have to be 15 min in
proximity to the same positive inmate, and it may be easiest to think In terms of cumulative exposure to ANY
positive person.

3. Identifying all close contacts of positive persons, and quarantining unvaccinated inmates who have been
exposed.

We know that your facility faces unique challenges with cohorting, and space In general. | am available to speak this
afternoon to address any questions you may have, and will follow this email with a voicemail to ensure you have access
to the secure share in a timely manner.

Thanks for working with us to get ahead of this outbreak.

Robyn Woad
OCHD COVID response nurse
919 667 5448

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 4:40 PM

To: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecauntync.gov>
Subect: RE: Daily check in

Yes ma'am everyone got testing here or somewhere else. | made it clear it was PCR testing not rapid testing.

From: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 4:18 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: Daily check in

Thank you so much for your reply. | will be in touch shortly as we get results from last week's testing.
| want to conflrm as well that all staff have gotten PCR testing, regardless of vaccine status.
1 am very sorry to hear that one of the inmates has been hospitalized, Please keep us up to date on his condition.

Robyn Wood
OCHD COVID response nurse
919 667 5448

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:33 PM

To: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Cc: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: Daily check in

We have not had any more positive cases (staff or in-custody) since 10/12/2021. However, we have 1 that is the hospital
with covid pneumonia. He was taken last night.

The staff that did not come on Thursday, results are slowly coming back and I'm getting copies.

So far all negative.

Fram: Robyn Woad <rwood@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 1:21 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecauntync.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Subject: Daily check in

Hello Captaln Spear and Nurse Patty,

| am checking in today to determine whether you are aware of any additional positive incarcerated people or staff,
determine the health status of currently positive people, and to assist with any questions related to cohorting positives.
For those officers/staff who did not test at your facllity with OCHD, it is important as well that we review their PCR
testing.

If it Is helpful to you, we can try to arrange a dally time to speak at your convenience.

Best,

Robyn Wood

OCHD Covid response nurse
919 667 5448

Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 12:56 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 11:32 AM

To: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: daily check in 10/19

Thank you!
From: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gav>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 11:28 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: daily check in 10/19

Okay, will get back to you.
robyn

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 11:18 AM

To: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: daily check in 10/19

| need something for both positive and negative, | will also put a copy in their medical chart.

From: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 11:17 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: daily check in 10/19

Fantastic, thanks.

| will ask Mike whether we have hard copies. | am not sure, as this was only shared digitally with me. | will get back with
you an this.
To clarify, do you want something you can present to Incarcerated people who have tested positive??

Rabyn

From; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 10:58 AM

To: Rabyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: daily check in 10/19

Is there any way f can get a hard copy of the test that have come back so far? | have some here that do not believe
anything unless it's in black & white.

See responses in RED.

Thank you,
Spear

From: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 9:48 AM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Subject: dally check in 10/19

Good marning Captain Spear,
Checking In this morning, as we discussed. Please let me know:

1. Any new pasitives amang staff or inmates (apart from the ones | sent you yesterday). No new cases

2. Any folks with symptoms cansistent with COVID that are being tested/have been newly tested and have results
pending No

3. Any updates on your hospitalized patient, any other hospltal transfers No other hospital patients, the one in the
hospltal in in ICU NOT on 3 ventilator

4. Any questions | can heip with related to grouping positives/grouping close cantacts/testing? Talking with Or.
Pettigrew and staff this morning, jail staff is working on movement

Good luck today, and thanks again for all that you are dolng-1 am available most of today to talk as needed.

Robyn
919 667 5448



Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 12:56 PM
Ta: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:57 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Black d <c: di gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Ce: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 721 com; Michael DeFranco

<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<qstewart@orangecauntync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Camphell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

I will make copies and pass them out along with numbers an who wants the antigen. | will get thase emailed to you all
tomorrow around noon time. Thank you all for your help!!

Captain Spear

From: Sheriff Charles Black d <cshlack £OV;

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.govs>

Cc: Tim Jones <ti gov>; Katie Spear <k gov>; 721 jailmedical.com;
Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@arangecountyne.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<astewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; lamie Sykes <] svkes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject; Re: quick question - flyer

I'm fine with this
Sheriff B

Sent trom my iPhone

On Oct 19,2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <epettierew @orangecountync.gov> wrote:

Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Pettigrew, MD, 4D, MPH she/her/hers/elia
Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
1

Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41:09 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim lones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: quick question - flyer

Hi everyone -

Any concerns about this flyer? Hoping this can serve to get our info disseminated to everyone
today. Also trying to figure out how to get a Spanish versian.

Thanks!

Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH  shehershers/ella

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

Ce: Tim fones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - Important

That sounds great. We'll gonna come tomorrow morning to strategize. Probably around 9:30.
Hoping that someone from jail leadership might be around at some paint to talk through
options. It also seems like UNC will be able to find some folks to come Thursday for a more
thorough MAB run.

Also, | know Capt Spear's working hard on cohorting the new positives. Some key tips:

2 .

- best practice is keeping only positives with positives - this is most important first step

- good news is that you can put recently previously positive with new positives (so that list of 23
can be housed with these new 13 - that's much better than mixing them with anyone else)

- if there's a way to then figure out who was close contacts with those positives and keep them
quarantined together {but away from pasitives, away from new intakes, and away from any
person who is not a close contact), that's ideal.

We're looking forward to helping more tomorrow. It's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you all
have added constraints about codefendants, space, etc.

Erica Pettigrew, MO, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/elia

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupatianal Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:23:11 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew

Ce: Tim lones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpijgilmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Come Tuesday and determine what measures you can work with, We will call SHP and see they
can have you some help on Thursday. Hopefully we can make this work for everyone

Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@arangecountyne.gov>
wrote:

Thank you for these answers, Sheriff. | know Tuesday is very soon. For context,
this ball got rolling over the weekend but UNC, OCHD and EMS were all able to
scramble and find volunteers to help on that day.

We certalnly need to find a day that works for all teams involved. One thing to
clarify - sorting aut the new positives won't actually have much impact on MAB
because people are eligible whether they are positive or just exposed.

Obstacles we'd have to overcome for Thursday {doable but | need help):

1) We need a physician on site (I'm only a part time doc with the health dept - |
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
then (assuming we can overcome #1 and #2) we can plan for full event
Thursday?

Thanks for considering.

Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella
Medical Director, Orange Counly Health Department
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Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Bfackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

Ta: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpi ailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Monoclonal antibodies {(MAB)

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
short notice considering we do not yet have the results back as to who has
tested positive from the last round of testing. All that being said Thursday seems
reasonahle for everyane involved, including but not limitad to the folks al SHP.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID posltive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spoken about this and agreed that we would use the same
criteria as would be used for any other segment of the population. If you meet
the criteria you get it, if you don't you don't. This also prevents an ininate from
feeling like they have Lo accept the treatment.

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
waorks)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
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Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but
it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Our space has always been limited and we have to wark within those limitations,
Going to the PODS to administer and obseive the inmate for an hour is not
feasible. Having thase who elect to have the treatment come info the booking
area and then be housed in the large halding area is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning
down.

Draft the “ane pager” you are corntortable with and we will review and approve,

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

| cannat answer ta what SHP will or will not agree to but we can certainly explain
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
that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to cohart positives away
from negatlves, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protacol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

f will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don't know what cancerns were
voiced last week. If it's about SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send you
their pratocols,

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus
was Introduced by staff. The spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods
supports the separate canclusion that the infection was promulgated across
pods by staff.

To date, no meaningful cantact tracing has been done by the health department
due to lack of requested information like guard schedules. No staff member has
been quarantined. Please remember that quarantining those at highest risk of
turning positive is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be over.

1 will get you a copy ot the schedule but by the time the request was made as ta
who all had worked, every rofation had cycled thiough. 5o all squads had woiked
prior to our being in outbresk status. All statf whe tested positive were
quarantined for 10 days and returned to work after that periad and na fever for
3 days.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered.
Robyn is one of our excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from
OCHD on the jail autbreak. Daily contact is the minimum public health
expectation during an autbreak, even if it's a message that there are no new
symptomatic or positive people. How can we improve this? Many of our nursing
homes appreciated a set call time each day. If there is a better way for us to
communicate during your busy work days, please let us know.

'm not sure what communication has not been working. | have checled with
Major Jones and Captain Spear, neither of tham have been called or emailed
about this matter.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be
called or emailed immediately (within that day) in order to move quickly with
mitigation strategies.

We have nat had any results of positive cases.

Again, please know we are working as hard as we can to addrass the outbreak and we
are most concemed about bringing this all ta a successful conchusion.

Respectiully,

Sheriff Blackwood

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@arangecountync.gov>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles d <csbtac gov>; Tim Jones
<tljones@arangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>;
7212@shpiallmedical.com

Ce: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood
<rwood@orangecountvac.gov>; Quintana Stewart <astewart@orangecountync.gov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so long [ tried to
bold the things we need quick answers to. Thanks.

Monoclonal antibodies (MAB)

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
COVID positive people as well as negative peaple who were exposed.

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
warks)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
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

“Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a
success. | have not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it is crucial
that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to cohort positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

I'have not heard further about the testing protacol concerns voiced last week.
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
OCHD on the jail outbreak. Daily contact is the minimum public heaith
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

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person Is found, Robyn needs to be
called or emailed immediately {within that day) in order to move quickly with
mitigation strategies.

That's it for now. Please let me know any feedback on how we can continue to
work together on stamping this outbreak out,

Erica Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH shesher/hers/elia

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department

Medical Director, Occupaticnal Health at UNC Health Care

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

Sent: Tuesday, Octaber 19, 2021 4:46 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 721 it com; Michael DeFranco

<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@arangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart

<qstewart@orangecountync gov>, Sarah Manfred gOV>; Campbell
3 Jamie Sykes <jsy gov:

Subect: RE: MAB resource for s(aff

Thank you and I wiil share this information with the staff.

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 4:43 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov: ,Sherlrfcharles Black d <csblack di pov>
Ce: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 721 h ical.com; Michael DeFranco

<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Waod <rwood@arangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecauntync £ov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell

£OV>; Jamie Sykes <j; gov>
Subject: MAB resource for staff

Excellent. The flyer serves its purpose, although clearly 1 did not go to school for graphic design.

I wanted to make sure that staff know how to get MAB if they need it, too. They can simply call 888-850-2684
and UNC w:II get them taken care of right away They can also have their personal physician refer to them to
I N

Thank you all. Today was a success - 3 of the 5 people offered MAB took us up on it, and we had some great
planning discussions for our big day Thursday.

Dr.P

Erica Peltigrew, MD, JO, MPH  she/her/hers/elia

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Oirector, Qccupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina




From: Katie Spear Sent from my iPhone
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:56 PM
To: Sherlff Charles Blackwood; Erica Pettigrew

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret On Oct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Campbell; Jamie Sykes wrote:

Sub)ect: RE: quick question - flyer

Thank you far these answers, Sheriff. | know Tuesday is very soon. For context,
this ball got rolling over the weekend but UNC, OCHD and EMS were alf able to
scramble and find volunteers to help on that day.

| will make copies and pass them out along with numbers on who wants the antigen. | will get those emailed to you all
tomorrow around noan time, Thank you all for your help!|

Captain Spear
We certainly need to find a day that works for all teams involved. One thing to
clarify - sorting out the new positives won't actually have much impact on MAB

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM because people are eligible whether they are positive or just exposed.
To: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
€c: Tim Jones <t gov>; Katle Spear <kspear gov>; 721 i com; Obstacles we'd have to overcome for Thursday (doable but | need help):
Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@arangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbelt 1) We need a physlcian on site ('m only a part time dac with the health dept - |
<mcampbell@arangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsvkes@orangecountync.gov> see clinic patients that Thursday afternoon, | asked Dr. Grover and Dr. Wohl if
Subject: Re: quick question - fiyer they can volunteer time but they are also busy clinically). Can SHP provide one?
I'ru fine with this 2) UNC would need to be willing to be there/provide their MAB stash (I'm
Sheriff B checking)
Sent from my iPhone
3) And, of course, the sooner the treatment the better.
On Oct 19,2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <¢pettigrew@orangecountync.gov> wrote: How about this: Could we have a couple of us come by tomorrow {Tuesday) for a

dry run and strategy session? We could do a few administrations, get a better
sense of haw many people are interested, help with any cohorting issues, and

Spanish version, hot off the presses N
then (assuming we can overcome #1 and #2) we can plan for full event

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/ella Thursday?
Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care Thanks for considering.

Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew Erica

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41:09 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes Assistant Professor, University of North Garalina

Subject: quick question - flyer

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Hi everyone - Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM
To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpijailmedical.com
Any concerns about this flyer? Hoping this can serve to get our info disseminated to everyone Cc: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Waod; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret.
today. Also trying to figure out how to get a Spanish version. Campbell; Jamie Sykes
Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important
Thanks!
Monoclonat antibodies (MAB)
Erica This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.
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Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/elia This Tuesday 10/19
Medical Director, Orange County Health Deparment We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for anather MAB

Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care

Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very time-sensitive
intervention.

From: Erica Pettigrew We are all very much aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuesday is very

Sent: Monday, Octaber 18, 2021 7:59 PM short notice considering we do not yet have the results back as to who has

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood tested pasitive from the last round of testing, All that being said Thursday seems

Cc: Tim lones; Katle Spear; 7212@shpjallmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana reasonable for everyone involved, including but not limited to the folks at SHP

Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covld outbreak jall updates - Important Just about every incarcerated persan is eligible for this because it can be used for

COVID positive people as well as negative people who were exposed.
That sounds great. We'll gonna come tomorrow morning to strategize. Probably around 9:30.

Hoping that someone fram jail leadership might be araund at some point to talk through Quintana and I have spoken about this and agreed that we would use the same
options. It also seems like UNC will be able to find some folks to come Thursday for a more

criteria as would be used for any other segment of the population, If you meet
thorough MAB run.

the criteria you get it, if you don't you don't. This also prevents an inmate from
. feeling like they have to accepl the treatment.
Also, | know Capt Spear's working hard on cohorting the new positives. Some key tips:

. . N - N We need | ical help from jail | to how to get this
-best practlc.e Is keeping only positives with Posmves -Fhls Is .most important first step medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails
- good news is that you can put recentlx previously positive w:t{n new poslt}ves (so that list of 23 have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
can be housed with these new 13 - that's much better than mixing them with anyone else) Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly {assuming Tuesday

- if there's a way to then figure out who was close contacts with thase positives and keep them works)? Also, is it passible far the SHP medical directar to be an site for this?

quarantined together (but away from pasitives, away from new intakes, and away from any Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but

person who is not a close contact), that's ideal. it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

We're looking forward to helping more tomorrow. It's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you all Qur space has always baen limited and we have to work within those limitations.

have added constraints about codefendants, space, etc. Going to the PODS to administer and chserve the inmate for an hour is not
feasible. Having those who elect to have the treatment come into the baoking

or.p area and then be housed in the large holding area is the best appreach,

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
Medical Director, Orange County Health Department everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning

Medical Director, Occupational Heallh at UNG Health Care down,
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

Draft Lhe “one pager" you are comfortable with and we will review and approve.
From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:23;:11 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew

Ce: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212 @shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranca; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Ideally this medicine shauld be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

| cannat answer ta what SHP will or will not agree to but we can certainly explain

Come Tuesday and determine what measures you can work with. We will call SHP and see they the situation and see what they say.

can have you some help on Thursday. Hopefully we can make this work for everyone
Testing

Sheriff B Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a
success. | have not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it is crucial
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that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to cohort positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

I have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapld antigen testing protocols asap?

| will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don't know what concerns were
voiced last week. If it's about SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send you
their protocols.

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus
was introduced by staff. The spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods
supports the separate conclusion that the infection was promuigated across
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
turning positive is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be over,

1 will get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request vas made as to
whao all had worked, every rotation had cyrled through. So all squads had worked
prior to our being in outbrezk status, All staff who tested positive were
quarantined for 10 days and returned to work after that period and no fever for
3 days,

We cantinue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered.
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

I'm not sure what communication has not been working. | have checked with
Major Jones and Captain Spear, neither of them have been called or emailed
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

Again, plaase know we are working as hard as vie can Lo address the outhreak and wa
Jre most concerned abaout bringing this all to a successful conclusion.
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
that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to cohort pasitives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

I have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Wha can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

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
waork together on stamping this outbreak out.

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

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>;
7212@shpjailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood
<rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell

<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: covid outbreak jall updates - important

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
day this Tuesday. Daes that work for jall leadership? This is a very time-sensitive
intervention.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID positive people as well as negative people who were exposed,

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
it is not easy since we have clinical shifts,

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

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 12:55 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 5:42 PM

To: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountyne.gov>
Subject: Re: Hard copy resuits

I received them and printed thent off.

Thank you

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

From: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountyne.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 5:04:45 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@grangecountync.gov>
Subject: Hard copy results

Hello Captain Spear,

Mike DeFranco just uploaded a very large file to secure share that should aliow you to print off “hard copies” of all the

currently available results. Let me know if you have any trouble with it.

1 will be in touch tomorrow morning as usual, but am available for questions any time.

Rabyn
919 667 5448



Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 12:55 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 8:59 AM
To: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: check in

Goad morning so far it's Is good. Hope your day has started off good.

{ have the answers on RED, Thank you again for everything.

From: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 8:54 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: check in

Good morning Captain Spear,

Hope your day is off to a good start.

Checking in

Any newly or positive d persons? Not at this time

. Any newly symptomatic or positive staff? No

. Significant health change/add| hospital transfers for any of the positive folks? None
Any updates on your hosplitalized person? He is a little better, Having him sit up In a chair and breathing Is
improving.

5. Of the staff that OCHD did not test last week, how many results are still outstanding? In other wards, we need to

know how many have yet to test or provide results. | have 4 that | am waiting on. So far all negative.

AWNR

Thanks again, call me any time

Robyn
919 667 5448

Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 12:54 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi

Subject: requested emails

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:13 AM
To: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: Some other things to keep in mind

Yes the mass testing on Thursday, they are negative but showed symptoms today and rapid is positive. 1 has lost taste &
smell

From: Robyn Wood <rwoad@arangecauntyne.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:18 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@crangecountync.gov>
Subject; RE: Some other things to keep in mind

What do you mean the printouts? Like, the testing they had through OCHD Is negative, but they are newly positive??

r

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:17 AM
To: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sublect: RE: Some other things to keep in mind

the print outs | have are negative

From; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:14 AM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: Some other things to keep in mind

Could you please provide their names, so | can look their results up in NCEDSS? You can add them to the secure share if
you prefer to work that way.

Thanks so much-

From: Katle Spear <kspear@arangecountynec.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 20, 2021 11:12 AM
To: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: Some other things to keep in mind

Yes ma’am sorry. 2 incarcerated & they are in the same cell, they are the only ones in that cell.

From: Robyn Wood <fwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 10:36 AM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: Some other things to keep in mind

Is that a 2? Among incarcerated people?

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 10:34 AM

To: Robyn Wood <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>
SubJect: Re: Some other things to keep in mind

Robyn just got an update. 12 new posirives...

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

From: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 9:42:53 AM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Some other things to keep in mind

Captain Spear,

One thing we need to focus on quickly is identifying guards who may have close contact with positive incarcerated
people. | understand this is chalienging in your setting. But particularly if you know there has been a recent altercation
or other situation where the staff member has closer than usual contact with anyone who is positive or symptomatic we
should follow up immediately.

1 aisa want to encourage the use of standardized PPE for staff. We know that surgical masks offer more protection than
fabric masks or gaiters, and it Is definitely preferable that all staff use them. The gold standard of course are N95 masks
that have been professlonally fit tested, but | am not sure whether those are avallable to you.

Thanks again-
Robyn

2
Jennifer Galassi
Fram: Katie Spear
Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 12:53 PM
To: Jennifer Galassi
Subject requested emails

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 4:03 PM
To: Erica g pettige gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwoad
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Ce: Tim Jones gov>; 721 ji dical.com; Michael DeFranco
gov>; Robyn Wood gov>; Quintana Stewart

<qgstewart@orangecauntync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsy gov>; Howard Blough

<hblough@orangecountync.gov>; Grover, loseph M <joseph_grover@med.unc.edu>

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

{ have got together with the nurse and Lt. Blough. We are in agreeance that it will not be paossible to do both the MAB
and mass PCR testing. We will need ta schedule another day and time for PCR testing. One thought is can the PCR
testing be dane during the evening hours? There is not as much activity going on with the staff/nurse, as in we could be
a little more efficient and not have to rush through, making sure all paperwork and samples are fabeled correctly. Justa
thought.

Thank yau,
Captain Spear

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 1:57 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles
Ce: Tim Janes <tii ountync.gov>; 721 jailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Rabyn Waod <rwood@arangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@arangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>; Grover, loseph M
<joseph_grover@med.unc.edu>

Subject: Re: quick question - fiyer

Thank you for that feedback. I can certainly und  their hesitation, particularly given the historical

it 1 against vulnerable populations by medical professionals. And I certainly don't want anyone
to feel coerced in any way. It's just hard to see people turn down potentially life-saving treatment that I would
be lining my mom or my brother up first thing if they needed it, you know?

‘We do what we can do, offer it and go from there.



Sarah on our team had a great idea - since weekly testing is the recommendation in an outbreak setting, shall we
do another testing event tomorow concurrent with the few MABs? How hard would it be to pull that off, given
that we'll be there with a team anyway? We'll have around 15 less people to test than last week anyway, given
the new positives.

Thanks for considering,

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/eila

Medical Director, Orange Cotinty Health Depariment
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, Univarsity of North Carolina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 12:22:02 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Tim lones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

We just added another one. So maybe they will have changed minds tonight...

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:41 AM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <¢shlackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Cc: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael Defranco

ountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@arangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@arangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsvkes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

Hi Katie -

Only 821! That's shocking. Out of 85 or so eligible people, only 8 wanted this life saving medication...I'm
wotried that this flyer perhaps didn't convey how important it can be. The appointments at UNC are typically
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, UD, MPH she/har/hers/eila

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Ocoupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of Narth Garolina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:23:55 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood; Erica Pettigrew

Cc: Tim Jones; 7212@shojailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; lamie Sykes

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

We have 8 Incarcerated that wants the MAB One of those Is 5o we added him to ask questions

and hopefully agree,

Thank you,
Captain Spear

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:57 PM

To: Sheriff Charles 8l; csblac gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; 7212 @shpijailmedical.com; Michael Defranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood @orangecountyne.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@ gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

1 will make copies and pass them out along with numbers on who wants the antigen. | will get those emailed to you all
tomorrow around noon time. Thank you all for your help!!

Captain Spear

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM
To: Erica igrew <epettigrew® Ntync.gov>
Ce: Tim Jones <tiiones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjaillmedical.com;
Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
gov>; Jamie Sykes <{sykes@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

T'm fine with this
Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19,2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew @orangecountync.gav> wrote:

Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Depantment
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41:09 AM
To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim fones; Katie Spear; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; lamie Sykes
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, UD, MPH she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Garolina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Monday, Octaber 18, 2021 7:59 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedcal.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbeil; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - important

That sounds great. We'll gonna come tomorrow morning to strategize. Probably around 9:30.
Hoping that someone from jail leadership might be around at some point to talk through
options, It also seems like UNC will be able to find some folks to come Thursday for a more
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
can be housed with these new 13 - that's much better than mixing them with anyone else}

- if there's a way to then figure out who was close contacts with those positives and keep them
quarantined together {but away from positives, away from new intakes, and away from any
person wha is not a close contact), that's ideal.

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
Stewart; Sarah Manired; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

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

Thank you for these answers, Sheriff. [ know Tuesday is very soon. For context,
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

Qbstacles we'd have to overcome for Thursday (doable but | need help):
1) We need a physician on site {I'm only a part time doc with the health dept - |
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

How about this: Could we have a couple of us come by tomorrow {Tuesday) for a
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



Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hersalia

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

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katle Spear; 7212@shpijallmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; famie Sykes

Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Monaclonal antibodies (MAB)

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
tested positive from the last round of testing. Al that being said Thursday seems
reasonable for everyone involved, including but notlimited to the folks at SHP.

lust about every incarcerated person Is eligibie for this because it can be used for
COVID positive peaple as well as negative people who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spoken about this and agreed that we would use the same
criteria as would be used far any other segment of the population. If you meet
the criteria you get it, if you don’t you don't. This also prevents an inmate from
feeling like they have to accept the tieatment,

We need logistical help from Jail leadership to strategize how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other Jails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoathly {assuming Tuesday
works)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS}) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but
it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Qur space has ahways been imited and we have to work within those limitations.
Going to the PODS to administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not
feasible. Having those who alect to have the treatment come into the booking
area and then be haused in the farge holding area is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning
down.

Draft the “one pager” you are comfartable with and we will review and approve

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

I cannot answer to what SHP will ar will not agree o but we can certainly explain
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

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

1 will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don’t know what concerns were
voiced last week. If it's about SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send vou
their protocols.

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing
Based on the limited information we've received it's mast likely that the virus

was introduced by staff. The spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods
supports the separate conclusion that the infection was promulgated across
pods by staff,

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

| wilt get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request was made as ta
who all had worked, every rotation had cycled through. $o all squads had worked
priar ta our being in outbreak status. All staff who tested positive were
quarantined for 10 days and returned o work after that period and no fever for
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

J'm not sure what communication has not been working. | have checked with
Major Jones and Captain Spear, neither of them have been called or emalled
about this matter,

When a new positive staff or incarcerated persan is found, Robyn needs to be
called or emailed immediately (within that day) in order to move quickly with
mitigation strategies.

We have not had any results of positive cases.

Again, please know we are working as hard as we can to address the outbrask and we
are mast concened about bringing this all to a successful conclusion,

Respectiully,

Sherlf Blackwood

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwoad <csblackwood@orangecauntync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijone: ountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear our HOV>;
7212@shpfailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood
<rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.2ov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbelt
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so long ! tried to
bold the things we need quick answers to. Thanks,

Monaclonal antibodies (MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very tim itit
intervention.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID positive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

We need | ical help from Jail leadership to ize how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was reaily tight last week. Other jails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday
waorks)? Also, Is it passible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but
it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone 5o they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning
down.

\deally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
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
success. | have not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it is cruciat
that jall and medical staff wark closely with Robyn to cohart positives away
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

Ta date, no meaningful contact tracing has been done by the health department
due to lack of requested information like guard schedules, No staff member has
been quarantined. Please remember that quarantining those at highest risk of
turning positive is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be over.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emalils answered.
Robyn is one of our excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official lialson from
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
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When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to he
called or emailed immediately (within that day) in order to move quickly with
mitigation strategies.

That's it for now. Please let me know any feedback an how we can continue to
work together on stamping this outbreak out.

Erica Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella
Medical Diractor, Orange Gounty Health Depariment
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

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwaod; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Ca Michael DeFranco: Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell
Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's sa long | tried to bold the things we need
quick answers to. Thanks.

Monoclonal antibodies (MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19
We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB day this Tuesday. Does that
work for jail hip? This is a very ti itive intervention.

Just about every incarcerated persan is eligible for this because it can be used for COVID positive people as
well as negative people who were exposed.

We need lagistical help from jail leadership to strategize how to get this medicine to all those who want it.
Space was really tight last week. Other jails have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking
innovatively. Wha can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday works)? Also, Is it
possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this? Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are
trying to coordinate schedules but it is nat easy since we have clinical shifts.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to everyone so they can understand
what they would be cansenting to vs turning down.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff of the jail. The medication is
free and SHP can simply sign up and get it shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event fast Thursday a success. | have not yet seen
the results, but as soon as we have them It Is crucial that jall and medical staff work closely with Robyn to
cohort positives away from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week. Wha can get us a copy of the
rapid antigen testing pratocols asap?

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus was introduced by staff, The
spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods supports the separate conclusion that the infection was
promulgated across pods by staff,

To date, no meaningful contact tracing has been done by the health department due to lack of requested
information like guard schedules. No staff member has been quarantined. Please remember that quarantining
those at highest risk of turning positive is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be over.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered. Robyn is one of our excellent
clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from OCHD on the jail outbreak. Daily contact is the minimum
public health expectation during an outbreak, even if it's a message that there are no new symptomatic or
positive people. How can we improve this? Many of our nursing homes appreciated a set call time each day. If
there is a better way for us to communicate during your busy work days, please let us know.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be called or emailed immediately
(within that day) in order to move quickly with mitigation strategies.

That's it for now. Please let me know any feedback on how we can continue to work together on stamping this
outbreak out.

Erica Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupalional Health at UNG Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carofina



Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 7:31 AM

Ta: Tim Janes

Subject: FW: covid outbreak jail updates - important

This shart notice on coming in to give shots is hard on the nurse's let alone the squads, | know it's time sensitive. We can
try to get inmates to take the shot but if they refuse we can’t help that. As for not getting information from me | have
answered everything but employee names (I asked you about that) maybe not as fast as they would like but it was as far
as | can remember same day. Just let me know and t will email the names ta Robyn. | did give her the names of the 3
that were positive.

| can’t answer for the medical director over SHP...

rica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

From:

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Black d <csb gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Katle
Spear <kspear gov>; 7212@shpjail com

Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@urangecountync gov>; Robyn Waod <rwoad@arangecountync.gov>; Quintana
Stewart <qstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfredi gov>; Campbell

<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so long | tried to bold the things we need
quick answers to. Thanks.

Monoclonal antibodies (MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19 .
We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB day this Tuesday. Does that
work for Jail leadership? This is a very time-sensitive intervention.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for COVID positive people as
well as negative people who were exposed.

We need logistical help from jail ) hip to strategize how to get this medicine to all those who want it.
Space was really tight last week. Other jails have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking
innovatively. Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday works)? Also, is it
possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this? Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are
trying to coordinate scheduies but it is nat easy since we have clinical shifts.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to everyone so they can understand
what they would be consenting to vs turning down.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff of the jail. The medication is
free and SHP can simply sign up and get it shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a success. | have not yet seen
the results, but as soon as we have them it is crucial that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to
cohart positives away from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

I have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week, Who can get us a copy of the
rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus was introduced by staff. The
spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods supports the separate conclusion that the infection was
promulgated across pods by staff.

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

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Rabyn needs to be called or emailed immediately
(within that day) in order to move quickly with mitigation strategies.

That's it for now. Please let me knaw any feedback on how we can continue to work together on stamping this
outbreak out.

Erica Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH  she/her/hers/alla

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupationat Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Garolina

Jennifer Galassi

From: Quintana Stewart

Sent: Thursday, October 7, 2021 11:06 AM
To: Tim Jones

Subject: FW: COVID Outbreak Recommendations
Impartance: High

Captain Jones,
The original message bounced back. I mistyped your address.

UNC and OCHD are trying to figure out how to get the monaclonal antibodies over to the inmates that are eligible who
have tested positive. Antibodies have to be administered within a 10-day window of symptam onset so the group is
trying to work quickly. We've not been able to reach Patty this morning from Southern Health Partners. Can you assist
with getting from the ion center and hern Health Partners on a call today at 1pm with UNC?

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

Sent: Thursday, October 7, 2021 8:54 AM

To: Katie Spear<kspear@or gov>; 'tj goV' <tj gov>
Cc: Erica igr .gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@arangecountync.gov>; Michaet DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: COVID Outbreak Recommendatians

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
have tested paositive for COVID-19. We know from our efforts throughaut this Pandemic that timely reporting
of cantacts allows us to effectively contact trace and contain further spread.

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

* Allincarcerated individuals, regardless of ination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours
After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine the frequency
of testing.
* The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be pasitive in the last week.
* Al positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
* Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic (one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
toss of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal congestion, diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills,
vomiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests.
¢ Symptomatic staff must be excluded from work and undergo PCR testing.

POSITIVE TEST RESULTS
¢ Positive staff must be excluded from work until cleared by the Orange County Health Department.
* Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuals can be cohorted together.
¢ Ifanyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact {exposed to COVID-18 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the last date of exposure and again on day 5, 6, or 7 from last expasure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
¢ All positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals to the hospital in case
of worsening symptoms.
* Al positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclonal
antibody infusions and those wha screen positive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms.

o
o
Im

* Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks at
all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when interacting with known positive or
symptomatic incarcerated individuals.

* Surgical masks need to be provided to all i
importance of masks needs ta be provided.

* Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

in the jail. Ed 1and is on the



Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

QOrange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 4:43 PM

To: Katie Spear; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ca Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: MAB resource for staff

Excellent. The flyer serves its purpose, although clearly | did not go to schaol for graphic deslgn.

| wanted to make sure that staff know how to get MAB if they need it, too. They can simply call 888-850-2684
and UNC will get them taken care of right away. They can also have their personal physician refer to them to
UNC. https://www.unchealthcare.org/coronavirus/monoclonal-antibody-infusion-thera|

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
Medical Diractor, Occupational Heallh at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Garolina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:56 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood; Erica Pettigrew

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: quick question - fyer

1 will make coples and pass them out along with numbers on who wants the antigen. | willl get those emailed to you all
tamorrow around noon time. Thank you all for your helpt!

Captain Spear

Fram: Sheriff Charles Black d <csblack d gOV>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM
To: Erica Pettlg pettigi gov>
Ce: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <ksp gov>; 721. dical.com;
Michael DeFranco gov>; Robyn Woad <r gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred angec gov>; Campbell

mc b gov>; lamie Sykes <jsyk .gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

I'm fine with this

Sheriff B
Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19, 2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <gpetigrew @orangecountyne.gov> wrote:

Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange Gounty Health Depariment
Medical Director, Occupalional Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professar, University of North Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41:03 AM

Yo Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpfallmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Waod; Quintana
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  shetherhers/elia

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

Ta: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpiailmedical.cam; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - important

That sounds great. We'll gonna come temorrow merning to strategize. Probably around 9:30.
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

- best practice is keeping only positives with positives - this is most impartant first step
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
quarantined together (but away from pasitives, away from new intakes, and away from any
person wha is not a close contact), that's ideal.

We're looking forward to helping more tomorrow. It's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you all
have added constraints about cadefendants, space, etc.

Dr.P

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Diractor, Occupalional Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Prafessor, University of North Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:23:11 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew

Ce: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covld outbreak jail updates - important

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
because people are eligible whether they are positlve or just exposed.

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



2) UNC would need to be willing to be there/provide their MAB stash {I'm
checking)

3) And, of course, the sooner the treatment the better.

How about this: Could we have a couple of us come by tomorrow {Tuesday} for a
dry run and strategy session? We could da a few administrations, get a better
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

Ce: Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Monoclonal antibodies (MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to caordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very time-sensitive
intervention.

We ara all very much aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuesday is very
short notice considering we do not vet have the results back as to who has
tested positive fram the last round of testing. All that being said Thursday seems
reasonable for everyone involved, including but not timited to the foiks at SHP.

lust about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID positive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

Quintana and t have spoken about this and agreed that we would use the same
criteria as would be used for any other seagment of the population. If you meet
the criteria you get it, if you don’t you don’t. This atso prevents an inmate from
teeling tike they have ta accept the treatment.

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

Qur space has always been limited and we have to work within those limitations.
Going to the PODS to administer and observe the inmate far an haur is nat
feasible. Having those who elect to have the treatment come into the baoking
area and then be housed in the large holding area is the best approach,

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning
down.

Draft the "one pager” vou are comfartable with and we will review and approve.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

1 cannot answer to what SHP will or will not agree to but we can certainly explain
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

fwill have to defer to Quintana on this as | dan't know what cancerns were
voiced last week. If it's about SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send you
their protoculs.

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

I'will get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the requast was made as to
who all had worked, every rotation had cycled through. So all squads had worked
prior ta our being in outbreak status. All staff whao tested positive were
quarantined for 10 days and returned ta work after that period and no fever for
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
Major Jones and Captain Spear, neither of them have been calied or amailed
about this matter.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be
called or emailed immediately (within that day) in order to move quickly with
mitigation strategies.

We have not had any resuits of positive cases.

Again, please know we a1e working as hard as we can to address the vutbraak and we
are mest concerned ahout bringing this all to a successful conchusion

Respecifully,

Sheriff Blackwoad

From: Erica Pettigrew <gpettigrew@agrangecountync.gov>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwaod <csbiac ountync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>;
7212@shpjailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood
<rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@arangecountync.gov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@crangecountync.gov>

Subject: covid outbreak jall updates - important

Hi everyone -
Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so long | tried to
bold the things we need quick answers to. Thanks.
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Manoclonal antibadies (MAB)

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

We need logistical help from jail | to ize how to get this
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
that jail and medicai staff work closely with Robyn to cohort positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

I have not heard further about the testing protacol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

Outhreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

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
Robyn is one of our excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the officlal liaison from
OCHD on the Jail outbreak. Daily contact is the minimum puhlic health
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
Asslstant Professor, University of North Carolina
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood;
Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: quick question - flyer

Attachments: ocjailMABenglishflyer2.docx

Hi everyone -

Any concerns about this flyer? Hoping this can serve to get our info disseminated to everyone today. Also
trying to figure out how to get a Spanish version.

Thanks!
Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/elia

Medical Director, Orange County Health Depariment
Medical Directar, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 7:59 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah
Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak fail updates - important

That sounds great. We'll gonna come tomorrow morning to strategize. Probably around 9:30. Hoping that
someone from Jail leadership might be around at some point to talk through options. It alsa seems like UNC
will be able to find same folks to come Thursday for a more thorough MAB run.

Also, | know Capt Spear's working hard on cohorting the new positives. Some key tips:

- best practice is keeping anly positives with positives - this is most important first step

- good news is that you can put recently previously positive with new positives (so that list of 23 can be
housed with these new 13 - that's much better than mixing them with anyone else)

- if there's a way to then figure out who was close contacts with those positives and keep them quarantined
together {but away from positives, away from new intakes, and away from any person who is not a close
contact), that's ideal.

We're looking forward to helping more tomorrow. It's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you all have added
constraints about codefendants, space, etc.

Dr.P

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professar, University of North Caralina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:23:11 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Woed; Quintana Stewart; Sarah
Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Come Tuesday and determine what measures you can work with. We will call SHP and see they can have you
some help on Thursday. Hopefully we can make this work for everyane

Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov> wrote:

Thank yau for these answers, Sheriff. | know Tuesday is very soon. Far context, this ball got
rolling over the weekend but UNC, OCHD and EMS were all able to scramble and find
volunteers to help on that day.

We certainly need to find a day that works for all teams involved. One thing to clarify - sorting
out the new positives won't actually have much impact an MAB because people are eligible
whether they are positive or just exposed.

Obstacles we'd have ta overcome for Thursday {doable but | need help):
1) We need a physician on site {I'm only a part time doc with the health dept - | see clinic

patients that Thursday afternoon, | asked Dr. Grover and Or. Woht if they can volunteer time
but they are also busy clinicaily). Can SHP provide one?

2) UNC would need to be willing to be there/provide their MAB stash (I'm checking)

3) And, of course, the sooner the treatment the better.

How about this: Could we have a couple of us come by tomorrow (Tuesday) for a dry run and
strategy session? We could do a few administrations, get a better sense of how many people

are interested, help with any cahorting issues, and then (assuming we can overcome #1 and #2)
we can plan for full event Thursday?

Thanks for considering.
Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JO, MPH she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupalional Health at UNC Health Gare
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Manday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes
Subject: RE: covid outbreak Jail updates - fmportant

Monaclonal antibodies (MAB)
This ifi ing medicine cuts h ization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19
We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB day this
Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very time-sensitive Intervention.

We are all very much aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuesday is very short notice
cansidering we do not yet have the results back as to who has tested positive from the last
raund of testing. All that being said Thursday seems reasonable for everyone involved,
including but not limited o the folks at SHP

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for COVID
pasitive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spoken about this and agreed that we would use the same criteria as
wiould be used for any other segment of the population. If you meet the criteriz you get it, if
vou don't you don’t. This also prevents an inmate from feeling like they have to accept the
treatment.

We need logistical help from jail leadership to strategize how to get this medicine to all those
who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails have brought it directly to pods. We
just need assistance thinking innovatively. Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go
smoothly {assuming Tuesday warks)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on
site for this? Dr. Grover {(med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but it
is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Qur space has always been limited and we have to work within those limitations. Going to the
PODS ta administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not feasible, Having those who elect
to have the treatment come into the booking area 2nd then be housed in the large holding arca
is the best approach.



We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to everyone so they
can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning down.

Draft the “ona pager” you are comiortable with and we will review and approve.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff of the Jail. The
medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it shipped. How can we pursue this
better longer-term solution?

| cannot answer to what SHP will or will not agree ta but we can certainly explain the situation
and see what they say.

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a success. | have
not yet seen the results, but as saon as we have them it is crucial that jail and medical staff
wark closely with Robyn to cohort positives away from negatives, as well as contact tracing
staff.

1 have not heard further about the testing protacel concerns voiced last week. Who can get us
a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

1 will have to defer ta Quintana an this as [ don’t know what concerns were voiced last week. If
it's about SHP's testing, | wauld have to ask thern ta send you their protocols,

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus was introduced
by staff. The spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pads supports the separate canclusion
that the infection was promulgated across pods by staff,

To date, no meaningful contact tracing has been done by the health department due to lack
of requested information like guard schedules. No staff member has been quarantined. Please
remember that quarantining those at highest risk of turning positive is one of the fastest ways
for an outbreak to be over.

| will get you a copy of the schedute but by the time the request was made as to who all had
worked, avery rotation had cycled through. So all squads had worked prior to our being in
outbreak status, All staff who tested positive were quarantined for 20 days and returned to
work after that period and no fever for 3 days.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered. Robyn is one of our
exceilent clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from OCHD on the jail outbreak. Daily
contact is the mini public health ion during an outbreak, even if it's a message
that there are no new symptomatic or positive people. How can we improve this? Many of our
nursing homes appreciated a set call time each day. If there is a better way for us to
communicate during your busy work days, please let us know.

I'mi not sure what communication has not been working. [ have chackad with Major Jones and
Captain Spear, neither of them have been catled or emailed about this matter.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be called or emailed
immediately (within that day} in order to move quickly with mitigation strategies.

We have not had any results of positive cases.

Again, pleasa know we ar2 working as hard as we can to address the outbreak and we are most
concernad ahout bringing this all to a successful conclusion.

Respectiully,

Sheriff Blackwood

From: Erica F igr epettigi gov>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Black d gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <ksp: gov>; 721 dical.com

Ce: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood

<rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
gov>; Campbell gOV:

Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so long | tried to bold the things
we need quick answers to. Thanks.

Monaclonal antibodies (MAB)

This fife-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19
We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB day this
Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very ti itive intervention.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for COVID
positive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

We need logistical help from jail leadership to strategize how to get this medicine to all those
who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails have brought it directly to pods. We
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just need assistance thinking innovatively. Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go
smoothly (assuming Tuesday works)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on
site for this? Dr. Grover {med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but it
is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to everyone so they
can understand what they would be cansenting to vs turning down.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff of the jail. The
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
not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it is crucial that jail and medical staff
work closely with Robyn to cohort positives away from negatives, as well as contact tracing
staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week. Who can get us
a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

Qutbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus was introduced
by staff. The spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods supports the separate conclusion
that the infection was promulgated across pods by staff.

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
excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from OCHD on the jail outbreak. Daily
contact is the minimum public health expectation during an outbreak, even if it's a message
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
immediately (within that day) in order to move quickly with mitigation strategies.
That's it for now. Please let me know any feedback on how we can continue to work together

on stamping this outbreak out.

Erica Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH  she/her/hers/ella
Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care

Assistant Professar, Universily of North Carolina



Jennifer Galassi

From: April Walker <awalker@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2021 3:29 PM

To: Alicia Stemper <astemper@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Jennifer Cooper-Smith <jcooper-smif gav>
Subject: FW: County Jail/ COVID Question

Good afternaon, Alicia.

Our call center staff received a call regarding COVID outbreak at the county jail. | thought I'd pass this
information along to you. If there is anything specific you would ike for the call center staff to refay to callers
regarding this outbreak please let me know.

Thank you.

Besi regards,

April Walker-Warren

Epic System Coordinator
Phone: 919.245.2376 / Fax: 919.644.3312

awalker@orangecountync.gov
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CONFIDENTIALITV NOT(CE All email messages, i mcludmg any altachmants, generaled from or received by this site are the propety of Orange
.t 1o the North Garolina Public Record Law. Tha Orange County Health Department
transmts minimal conlldullal ‘client/patient Informafion via email, and any unautharized review, use, disclosure or distribution s prohibited. If you are not
the intanded reciplent, plaasa contact the sndar by reply emal and destroy all coples of the ariginal niessags, I you bafieve thers has been an
inappropriala disclosure, please conlact Carla Julian, OCHD HIPAA Privacy and Securty Offier, et clulan@oranaecountyne.qov.

From: Quintana Stewart <gstewart@grangecountync.gov>

Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2021 3:17 PM

To: April Walker <awalker@orangecountync.gov>; Victoria Hudson <vhudson@crangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: County Jail/ COVID Question

Alicia Stemper from the Sheriff's office has been handling calls about the Jall Outbreak.

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Orange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412
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From: April Walker

Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2021 3:15 PM
To: Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Victorla Hudson <vhudson@orangecountync.gov>
SubJect: FW: County Jall/ COVID Question

Good afternoon,

How should call center handle complaints such as this when It's related to a county facllity?
Besr regards,

April Walker-Warren

Epic System Coordinator

Phone; 919.245.2376 / Fax: 919.644.3312
awalker@grangecountync.goy

tmproving health. insairing change.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTIGE: All smail messages, including any attachments, generated from of recaived by this sie are the properly of Orange
Counly Govemment and are considered public domain subjed to the North Caralina Publio Record Law. The Oranga County Health Deparimant
\ransmits minimal confidential clientpatlent information wia email, and any unautharized review, use, disclosura of distribution s prohibited. It you are nat
the intended raciplent, please conlact the sendar by reply email and destroy all copies of tha ariginel message. It you befieve thers has besn an
Inapproprale disclosure, please contact Carla Julian, OGHD HIPAA Privacy and Security Officer, at gjullan@arangecouniync. gov.

From: Jennifer Caoper-Smith <jcooper-smith@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2021 3:09 PM

To: April Waiker <awalker@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: County Jail/ COVID Question

HI April,

1 had a caller wanting to find answers & lodge a complaint against the following facility:

Hilisborough county jail and the handling of positive inmates, lack of Cleaning/sanitizing exposure areas between
repopulation, removing positive inmates from the general population which is putting everyone else at risk.

Angela Parks

919-597-1442

| have already taken the llberty of forwarding Ms. Parks the comalaint link and advised her to be as descriptive as
possible and that the county will reach out to the facility, not her. She understands but also has questions regarding the
procedures that are set in place for quarantining/isolation in the county jails.

Please let me know if there is a resource | can forward to her, if possible as we were both unable to find anything online.
Thanks,

Jennifer Cooper-Smith,
Vaccine Support- Call Center
919-913-8088 Ext. 7202

www. YourSporYourShot.ne.gov

https:, w.orangecountync.gov/Caronavirus
hutps:/iw £0v/2617/Vaccing
hetp://www.orangecountyoc.gav/245 | /Testing
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 8:00 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ca Tim Janes; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjallmedical.com; Michael Defranca; Robyn Wood;
Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - important

That sounds great. We'll gonna come tomorrow morning to strategize. Probably araund 9:30. Hoping that
someone from Jail leadershlp might be around at some point to talk through optians. It also seems like UNC
will be able to find some folks to come Thursday for a more thorough MAB run.

Also, | know Capt Spear's working hard on cohorting the new positives. Some key tips:

- best practice Is keeping only positives with positives - this is most important first step

- good news is that you can put recently previously pasitive with new positives (so that list of 23 can be
housed with these new 13 - that's much better than mixing them with anyone else)

- if there’s a way to then figure out who was close contacts with those positives and keep them quarantined
together (but away from positives, away from new intakes, and away from any person who Is not a close
contact), that's ideal,

We're looking forward to helping more tomorrow. It's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you all have added
constraints about codefendants, space, etc,

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

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Rabyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah
Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covld outbreak jail updates - important

Come Tuesday and determine what measures you can work with. We will call SHP and see they can have you
some help on Thursday. Hopefully we can make this work for everyone

Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone



On Oct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew @orangecountync.gov> wiote:

Thank you for these answers, Sheriff. T know Tuesday is very soon. For context, this bail got
rolling over the weekend but UNC, OCHD and EMS were all able to scramble and find
volunteers to help on that day.

We certainly need to find a day that works for all teams involved. One thing to clarify - sorting
out the new positives won't actually have much impact on MAB because people are eligible
whether they are positive or just exposed.

Obstacles we'd have to overcome for Thursday (doable but I need help):

1) We need a physician on site (I'm only a part time doc with the health dept - I see clinic
patients that Thursday afternoon, I asked Dr. Grover and Dr. Wohl if they can volunteer time but
they are also busy clinically). Can SHP provide one?

2) UNC would need to be willing to be there/provide their MAB stash (I'm checking)

3) And, of course, the sooner the treatment the better.

How about this: Could we have a couple of us come by tomorrow (Tuesday) for a dry run and
strategy session? We conld do a few administrations, get a better sense of how many people are

interested, help with any cohorting issues, and then (assuming we can overcome #1 and #2) we
can plan for full event Thursday?

‘Thanks for considering.

Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/ella
Medical Director, Orange County Health Department

Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Heaith Care
Assistant Professor, University of Nosth Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Ce: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbelf; Jamie Sykes
Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Monoclonal antibadies (MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19
We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB day this
Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very ti ive intervention.

We are all very much aware that this is time sensitive, howaver Tuesday is very short notice
considering we do not yet have the results back as te who has tested positive from the last

round of testing. All that being said Thursday seems reasonable for everyone involved,
including but not limited to the folks at SHP.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used far COVID
positive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spoken aboul this and agreed that we would use the same criteria as
would be used for any other segment of the population. If you meet the criteria you get it, it
you don't you don’t. This also prevents an inmate from feeling like they have to accept the
freatment.

We need logistical help from jail leadership to strategize how to get this medicine to all those
who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails have brought it directly to pods. We
just need assistance thinking innovatively. Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go
smoathly (assuming Tuesday works)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be an
site for this? Dr. Grover {med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but it
is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Qur space has alvays beean limited and we have to work within those limitations. Going to the
PODS to administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not feasible. Having those who elect
to have the treatment come into the booking area and then be housed in the large holding area
is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to everyone so they
can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning down.

Draft the “ane pager” you are comfortable with and wa will review and approve.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff of the jail. The
medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it shipped. How can we pursue this
better longer-term solution?

I cannot answer to what SHP will or will not agree to but we can certainly explain the situation
and see what they say.

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a success. | have
not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it is cruclal that jall and medical staff
work closely with Robyn to cohort positives away from negatives, as well as contact tracing
staff.

I have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week. Who can get us
a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

| will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don’L know what concerns were voiced Jast week. If
it's about SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send you their protacols.

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus was introduced
by staff. The spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods supports the separate conclusion
that the infection was promulgated across pads by staff.

To date, no meaningful contact tracing has been done by the health department due to lack
of requested information like guard schedules. No staff member has been quarantined. Please
remember that quarantining those at highest risk of turning positive is one of the fastest ways
far an outbreak to be over.

Iwill gat you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request was made as to whe all had
worked, every rotation had cycled through. So all squads had warked prior to our being in
outbreak status. All staff who tested positive were quarantined for 10 days and returned to
work after that period and no fever for 3 days,

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered. Robyn is one of our
excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official lizison from OCHD on the jail outbreak. Daily
contact is the mini public health ion during an outbreak, even if it's a message
that there are no new symptomatic or pasitive people. How can we improve this? Many of our
nursing homes appreciated a set call time each day. If there is a better way for us to
communicate during your busy work days, please let us know.

I'm not sure what commwunication has not been working. | have checked with Major fones and
Caprain Spear, neither of them have been called or emailed sbout this matter.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be called or emailed
immediately (within that day) in order to move quickly with mitigation strategies.

We have not had any results of pesitive cases.

Again, plaase know we are working 2s hard as we ¢an to addrass the autbrenk and we are most
concarnad about bringing this all 1a a successful conclusion.
Respectfully,
From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM
To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblac gov>; Tim Jones
<tljones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@ gov>; 721 jail com
Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood
<rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@arangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred

di ountync.gov>; g Campbell | g gov:
Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

f Blackwood

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it’s so long | tried to bald the things
we need quick answers to. Thanks.

+
Monaclonal antibodies {MAB)
This life ing medicine cuts hospi ion need by 80%.
This Tuesday 10/19
We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB day this
Tuesday. Does that work for jail | This is a very ti itive intervention.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for COVID
positive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

We need logistical help from Jail leadership to strategize how to get this medicine to all those
who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails have brought it directly to pads. We
just need assistance thinking innovatively. Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go
smoothly (assuming Tuesday works)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on
site for this? Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but it
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
not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it Is crucial that jail and medical staff
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
nursing homes appreciated a set call time each day. If there Is a better way for us to
communicate during your busy work days, please let us know.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs ta be called or emailed
immediately (within that day) In order to move quickly with mitigation strategies,
That's it for now. Please et me know any feedback on how we can continue to work together

on stamping this outbreak out.

Erica Pettigrew
Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  sheherhers/ella
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

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:23 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew

Ca Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood;
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

On Oct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew @urangecountync.gov> wrote:

Thank you for these answers, Sheriff. I know Tuesday is very soon. For context, this ball got
rolling over the weekend but UNC, OCHD and EMS were all able to scramble and find
volunteers to help on that day.

We certainly need to tind a day that works for all teams involved. One thing to clarify - sorting
out the new positives won't actually have much impact on MAB because people are eligible
whether they are positive or just exposed.

Obstacles we'd have to overcome for Thursday (doable but I need help):

1) We need a physician on site (T'm only a part time doc with the health dept - I see clinic
patients that Thursday afternoon, Tasked Dr. Grover and Dr. Wohl if they can volunteer time but
they are also busy clinically). Can SHP provide ane?

2) UNC would need Lo be willing to be there/provide their MAB stash (I'm checking)

3) And, of course, the sooner the wreatment the better.

How about this: Could we have a couple of us come by tomorrow (Tuesday) for a dry run and
strategy session? We could do a few administrations, get a better sense of how many people are
interested, help with any cohorting issues, and then (assuming we can overcome #1 and #2) we
can plan for full event Thursday?

Thanks for considering.

Erica

Erica Psttigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella
Medical Director, Orange County Health Department

1

Medical Director, Occupalianal Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Prolessor, Universily of North Caralina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

Yo: Erlca Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Ce: Michael DeFranco; Rabyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes
Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Monoclonal antibodies (MAB}

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19
We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS far anather MAB day this
Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This s a very time-sensitive Intervention.

We are 2ll very inuch aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuesday is very short natice
considering we do not yet have the results back as to whao has tested positive from the last
round of testing. All that being said Thursday seems reasonable for everyone involved,
including but not limited ta the folks at SHP.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for COVID
positive people as well as negative peaple who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spoken about this and agreed that we would use the same criteria as
would be used for any other segment of the population. If you meet the criteria you get it, if
you don’t you don’f, This also prevents an inmate from feeling like they have to accept the
treatment,

We need logistical help from jail leadership to strategize how to get this medicine to all those
who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails have brought It directly to pods. We
just need assi: e thinking | tlvely. Who can preg; with us to have Tuesday go
smoothly (assuming Tuesday works)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on
site for this? Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying ta coordinate schedules but it
is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Qur space has always been limited and we have to work within those limitations. Gaing to the
PODS to administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not feasible. Having those wha elect
to have the treatment come into the booking area and then be housed in the large holding area
is the best approach

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to everyone so they
can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning down.

Draft the “one pager” you are comfortabie with and we will review and approve.

|deally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff of the jail. The
medication Is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it shipped. How can we pursue this
better longer-term solution?

| cannot answer 1o what SHP will or will not agree to but we can certainly explain the situation
and see what they say

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a success. | have
not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it s cruclal that jail and medical staff
work closely with Robyn to cohort positives away from negatives, as well as contact tracing
staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns vaiced last week. Who can get us
a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

1 will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don’t know what concerns were voiced last week. IT
it's about SHP's testing, t would have to ask themn to send you thelr protocals,

Qutbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus was intraduced
by staff. The spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods supports the separate canclusion
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
for an outbreak to be over,

1 wifl get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request was made a5 to who all had
worked, every ratation had cycled through. So all squads had worked prior to our being in
outhreak status. All staff who tested positive wers quarentined for 10 days and retumed to
work after that period and ne fever for 3 days.

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

I'm not stre what communication has not been working. | have checked with Major Jones and
Captain Spear, neither of themt have heen called or emailed about this matter.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be called or emailed
immediately (within that day) in order to move quickly with mitigation strategies.

We have nat had any results of positive cases.



Again, please know we are viorking as hard 3s we can to address the outbreak and we are most
concarnad about bringing Lhis all Lo a successiul conclusion.

Respectiully,

Sheriff
From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@arangecountync.gov>
Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Black d

keood

gov>; Tim Jones

gov>; Katie Spear <kspear gov>; 721 jail com
Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood
<rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <qstewart@arangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell <mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so lang | tried to bold the things
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
Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very til itive intervention.

lust about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for COVID
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
smoothly (assuming Tuesday warks)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical directar to be on
site for this? Dr. Grover {med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but it
is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to everyone sa they
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
not yet seen the resuits, but as soon as we have them it is crucial that jail and medical staff
work closely with Robyn to cohort positives away from negatives, as well as contact tracing
staff.

I have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week. Who can get us
a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocoals asap?

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing
Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus was introduced

by staff, The spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods supports the separate conclusion
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

We continue to struggle at times ta have phone calls and emails answered. Robyn is one of our
excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from OCHD on the jail outbreak. Daily
contact is the minil public health during an outbreak, even if it's a message
that there are no new symptomatic or positive people. How can we improve this? Many of our
nursing homes appreciated a set call time each day. If there is a better way for us to
communicate during your busy work days, please let us know.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be calied or emailed
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
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNGC Heaith Care
Assistant Prafessor, University of North Caralina

Jennifer Galassi

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 2:06 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Ce: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell;
Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid autbreak jail updates - important

Thank you for these answers, Sherift. I know Tuesday is very soon. For context, this ball got rolling over the
weekend but UNC, OCHD and EMS were all able to scramble and find volunteers to help on that day.

We certainly need to find a day that works for all teams involved. One thing to clarify - sorting out the new
positives won't actually have much impact on MAB because people are eligible whether they are positive or just
exposed.

Obstacles we'd have to overcome for Thursday (doable but I need help):

1) We need a physician on site (I'm only a part time doc with the health dept - 1 see clinic patients that
Thursday afternoon, I asked Dr. Grover and Dr. Wohl if they can volunteer time but they are also busy
clinically). Can SHP provide one?

2) UNC would need to be willing to be there/provide their MAB stash (I'm checking)

3) And, of course, the sooner the treatment the better.

How about this: Could we have a couple of us come by tomorrow (Tuesday) for a dry run and straregy session?

We could do a few administrations, get a better sense of how many people are interested, help with any
cohorting issues, and then (assuming we can overcome #1 and #2) we can plan for full event Thursday?

Thanks for considering.

Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH  she/her/hers/ella
Medical Oirector, Orange County Health Department

Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, Octaber 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes
Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

This life lization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB day this Tuesday. Does that
work for jail leadership? This is a very time-sensitive intervention.

We are alf very much aware that this Is time sensifive, howaver Tuesday is very short notice considering we do
not yat have the results back as to who has tested positive from the last round of testing. All that being said
Thursday seems reasonable for everyone involved, including but not fimited to the folks at SHP,

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for COVID positive people as
well as negative people who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spaken about this and agreed that we wauld use the same criteria as would be used for
any other segment of the population. If you meet the critaria you getit, if you don’t you don’t. This alsa
prevents an inmate from feeling like they have to accept the treatment.

We need logistical help from jail leadership to strategize how to get this medicine to all those who want it.
Space was really tight last week. Other jails have braught it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking
innovatively. Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly {assuming Tuesday works)? Also, is it
possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this? Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are
trying to coordinate schedules but it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Our space has always been limited and we have to work within those limitations. Gong to the PODS to
administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not feasible. Having those who elect to have the treatment
coma into the booking area and then be housed in the large holding area is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to everyone so they can understand
what they would be consenting to vs turning down.

Dralt the "one pager” you are comfortable with and we will review and approve,

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff of the jail. The medication is
free and SHP can simply sign up and get it shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

I cannot answer to what SHP will or will not agree to but we can certainly explain the situation and see what
they say,

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a success. | have not yet seen
the results, but as soon as we have them it is crucial that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn ta
cohort positives away from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

I'have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week. Who can get us a copy of the
rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

1 will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don’t know what concerns were voiced last week. If it's about SHP’s
testing, | would have to ask therm te send you their protocals.

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
those at highest risk of turning positive is ane of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be over.

| wilf get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request was made as to who all had worked, every
rotation had cycled thraugh. So all squads had worked prior to our being in autbreak status. Al staff who
tested positive were quarantined for 10 days and returned to work after that period and no fever for 3 days.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered. Robyn is one of our excellent
clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from OCHD on the jail outbreak. Daily contact Is the minimum
public health expectatlon during an outbreak, even if it's a message that there are no new symptomatic or
positive people. How can we improve this? Many of our nursing homes appreciated a set call time each day. If
there is a better way for us to communicate during your busy work days, please let us know.

I'm not sute what communication has not heen working. | have checked with Major Jones and Captain Spear,
neither of them have been called or emailed about this matter

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be called or emailed immediately
(within that day) in order to move quickly with mitigation strategies.

We have not had any results of positive cases.

Again, please know we are working as hard 25 we can Lo addrass the quthreak and we are most coricerned about
bringing this all to 3 successful conclusion

Respectfully,

Sheriff Blackwood ~
From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblach gov>; Tim Jones
Spear <kspear gov>; 721, i ical.com

Ce: Michael Defranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana
Stewart <qstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecauntync.gov>

Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

i ountync.gov>; Katie

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates, Full of crucial details but since it's so long | tried to bold the things we need
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
well as negative people who were expased.

We need logistical help from Jall leadership to gize how to get this medicine to all those who want it.
Space was really tight fast week. Other jails have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking
innovatively. Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday works)? Also, Is it
possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this? Or. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are
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
the results, but as soon as we have them it Is crucial that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to
cohart positives away from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protacol concerns voiced last week. Who can get us a copy of the
rapid antlgen testing protocals asap?

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

Communilcation

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

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be caled or emailed immediately
{within that day) in order to move quickly with mitigation strategies.

That's it for now. Please let me know any feedback on how we can continue to wark together on stamping this
outbreak out.

Erica Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Directar, Orange Gounty Health Department
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

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 10:03 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Ce: Michael DeFranco; Rabyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell;
Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Manoclonal antibodles (MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19
We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB day this Tuesday. Daes that
work for jail leadership? This is a very time-sensitive intervention.

We are all very much aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuesday is very short notice considering we do
not yet have the results back as to who has tested positive from the last round of tasting. All that being said
Thursday seems reasonahle for everyone invalved, including but not limited to the folks at SHP.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for COVID positive people as
well as negative people who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spoken about this and agreed that we viould use the same criteria as would be used for
any other segment of the population. If you meet the criteria you get it, if you don't you don't. This 3lso
prevents an inmate from feelfing like they have to accept the treatment.

We need logistical help from jail leadership to strategize how to get this medicine to all those who want it.
Space was really tight last week. Other jalls have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking
innovatively. Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday works)? Also, is It
possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this? Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are
trying to coordinate schedules but it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Our space has always been limited and we have to work within those limitations. Going to the PODS to
administer and observe the inmate for an haur is not feasible. Having those who elect to have the treatment

come into the booking area and then be housed in the large halding area is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to everyone so they can understand
what they would be consenting to vs turning down.

Draft the “one pager” you are conifartable with and we will review and approve.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff of the jail. The medication is
free and SHP can simply sign up and get it shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

| cannot answer to what SHP will or will not agree to but we can certainly explain the situation and see what
they say.



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

! have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week. Who can get us a copy of the
rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

1 will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don't know what concerns were voiced last week. If it's about SHP's
testing, | would have to ask them to send yau their protocols.

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing
Based on the limited information we've received it's mast likely that the virus was introduced by staff. The

spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods supports the separate conclusian that the infection was
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

1 will get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request was made as to who ail had worked, every
rotation had cycled thiough. So all squads had worked prior to our being in outbreak status. All stafl who
tested positive were quarantined for 10 days and returned to work after that period and no fever for 3 days.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered. Robyn is one of our exceilent
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

F'm not sure what communication has nat been working. | have checked with Major Jones and Captain Spear,
neither of them have been called or emailed about this matter.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be called or emailed immediately
{within that day) in order to move quickly with mitigation strategies,

We have not had any results of positive cases.

Agam, please know we are working as hard as we can to address the outbreak and we are most concer ned ahout
bringing this alf to 3 successful canciusion.

Raspacttully,
Sh

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Black d gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Katie
Spear <kspear gov>; 721 com

Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Woad <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana
Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfr gOV>; g Campbell

<mcampbeli@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Hi everyone -

Here are the fatest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so fong | tried to bold the things we need
quick answers to. Thanks.

Monoclonal antibadies (MAB)

This life fing medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

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

We need logistical help from jail leadership to strategize how to get this medicine to ail those who want it.
Space was really tight last week. Other jails have braught it directly to pads. We just need assistance thinking
innovatively. Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday works)? Also, Is it
possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this? Dr. Grover {med director of OC EMS) and | are
trying ta coordinate schedules but it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to everyone so they can understand
what they would be consenting to vs turning down.

Ideally this medicine shouid be provided and administered by the medical staff of the jail. The medication is
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

1 have not heard further about the testing protacol concerns voiced last week. Who can get us a copy of the
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
promulgated acrass pads by staff.

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
clinical COVID nurses and is the official fiaison from OCHD on the jail outbreak. Daily contact is the minimum
public health expectation during an outbreak, even if it's a message that there are no new symptomatic or
positive people. How can we improve this? Many of our nursing homes appreciated a set call time each day. If
there is a better way for us to communicate during your busy work days, please let us know.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Rebyn needs to be called or emailed immediately
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

Medical Director, Orange Gounly Health Department
Medical Director, Occupaticnal Health at UNG Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina
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Jennifer Galassi
From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood
Sent: Sunday, October 17,2021 11:13 PM
To: Erica Pettigrew; Jamie Sykes
Ce: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranca; Robyn Wood;
Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell
Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - important

I have received your questions and will be working to get the answers to you before COB Monday. Thanks for
your patience.

Sheriff Blackwood

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 17,2021, at9:33 PM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew @orangecountync.gov> wrote:

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so long | tried to bold the things
we need quick answers ta. Thanks.

Manaclonal antibodies (MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB day this
Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very time-sensitive intervention.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for COVID
positive people as well as negative people who were exposed.



We need logistical help from Jail leadership to strategize how to get this medicine to all those
who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other Jalls have brought it directly to pods. We
just need e thinking innc ly. Who can preg: with us to have Tuesday go
smoothly (assuming Tuesday works)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on
site for this? Dr. Grover {med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but it
is not easy since we have clinlcal shifts.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to everyone so they
can understand what they wauld be consenting to vs turning down.

tdeally this medicine should be provided and d by the medical staff of the jail. The
medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it shipped. How can we pursue this
better longer-term solution?

Testin

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a success. | have
not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it is crucial that jail and medical staff
wark closely with Robyn to cahort positives away from negatives, as well as contact tracing
staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week, Who can get us
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

To date, na meaningful contact tracing has been done by the health department due to lack
of requested information like guard schedules. Na staff member has been quarantined. Please
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
excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from OCHD on the Jail outbreak. Daily
contact Is the minimum public health expectation during an outbreak, even if it's a message
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

That's it for now. Please let me know any feedback on how we can continue to wark together
on stamping this outbreak out.

Erica Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/hsr/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Depariment
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Gare
Assistant Professor, University of Narth Carolina

Jennifer Galassi
—

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 9:20 PM

To: Katie Spear; Michael DeFranco; Landon Weaver, Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt,
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; dp |.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie
Benedyk

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you for this - it's very helpful.

Tt would be great to review the protocol you're nsing with rapids because I suspect it's backwards. If someone
has symptoms and tests positive o a rapid, a confirmatory PCR is not nesded and shouldn't be sent. If someone
with symptoms tests negative ou a rapid, then a confirmatory PCR test needs to be done before we can be
assured that person is truly negative and put them back into the general population. I'm happy to look over it if
it can be sent,

TI'm assuming that these positives were tested for symptoms, so that means we would still count those two as
true positives. Robyn or the rest of our team can talk this through with y'all.

‘Thanks everyone

Erica Peltigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/ella

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

To: Erica Pettigrew; Michael Defranco; Landon Weaver; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
d l.cam; 721 jailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

| have attached the list of the ones that tested positive with the rapid test and had a PCR test done as well. Shotts &
Parnell’s PCR test came back negative.

Thank you for being patient with me on getting this completed.
Katle

From: Erica gl <epettig gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:56 PM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Landon Weaver
gov>; Tim Jones <tij; gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g lhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@or: gov>; p ol.com; 721! ji dical.com; Katfe Benedyk

<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thanks everyone. Do we have an updated positive list so we know who not to swab?

Etica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

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

To: Michael DeFranco; Landon Weaver; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Shexiff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Woad; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw®@aol.com; 7212@shpiaiimedical.com; Katie Benedyk

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
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
lackwood @ ROv:

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountyne.2ov>; Allen, Myra

‘myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D <ani ita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjallmedical.com; Katle Benedyk
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

Office: (912) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdefranco@orangecountyiie.gov

improving health. inspiring change.
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From: Landon Weaver

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:30 PM

To: Katie Spear; Michael DeFranco, Erica Pemgrew Tim ]ones' Shenrf Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Waad; Sarah Manfred Allen, Myra lle ); Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
_w_mmm,gqm ical.com; Kalle Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Whichever is easler for y'all should be just fine (correct me if | am wrong, Health folks). I think it will all have to be
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

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Erica
Pettigrew <epettigrew ountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@or untync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Weod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@arangecountyne.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>.
Quintana Stewart <gstewa rangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

I have a copy of the ones we do & | take up to the Mayo St location. Will that work? [ can get those filled out if that will
make everything smoother?

From: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:21 PM

To: Katie Spear ountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
epettigr orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.atlen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@®aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendatlons

As far as the information goes, it looks like the entire requisition process is online now. We will just take care of that on
the back end. The following is the demographic info needed for each individual:

+  Fullname

* Date of Birth

*  Sex
* Race
*  Ethnicity

Even if there is just one sheet of paper for each unit/pod that has all of the individuals within fisted out with those
details, I think that would work just fine in lieu of folders. Whatever method works best for your folks.

Thanks,
Landon

Landon Weaver

‘Community Paramedic Coardinatar
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Katie Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, Qctober 13, 2021 2:51 PM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefr orangecountync.gov>; Erica
Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.govs; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov} <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

Thank you Landon. | can help filt out forms as soon as we can get them,

What time do you think would work for you?

From: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:34 PM

To: Michael Defranco <mdefranco@ar: c.60V>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountyic.gov>; Erica Pettigrew

c.2ov>; Tim Jones <tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
blackwood@; gov:

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov}) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-i -meiritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@®aol.com; 7212@shpijailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

The previous process was pretty efficient from our perspective. Unless anyone on the Detention Center side
recommends any adjustments to the plan, [ would recommend the following:

Items reguested of Detention Center staff for testing team:

s Completed requisition form for each individual to be tested
© Mike: Cauld you send them a requisition form with what needs to be completed? Previously, we

would fill out the common portians of a requisition form and send that copy as a PDF for that
specific population (Detention Center address, Physiclan info etc.), but 1 am unable to locate the
form oniine anymore.

¢ G requisition forms

individuals are within
+  (2) double decker rolling carts (the plastic ones that | believe are typically used for meal transport)

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

Fram~ Mlchael DeFranco <mdefranco orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear <k _gov>; Erica igl epetti .gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Black d <csh d@. 1c.g0V>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwgod@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Man(red <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov} <m1ra.g.allen@dhhs nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Landon Weaver

<lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Benedyk <kbenedyk .BOV>
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Captain Spear (apologies for the incorrect titie on the previous email)

Landon Weaver and Katie Benedyk have been added onto this email. Landon as you might recall was part of the original
Strike Team and will be running Lead. He, Katle, Sarah Manfred and myself will be responsible for testing, as well as
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
s@orangecountyng. go
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Rabyn Waod; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.q.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol,com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Subject: RE: COVID Outhreak Recommendations
Who will supply the testing kits and be responsible for doing the testing?
Captain Spear

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 1:58 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@arangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csbiac d@arangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <r gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

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

19) 245+ 2077 / \ioh : (410} 349-7401
a
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sherlff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Waod; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Mermitt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shplailmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Is the suike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutlook for Android

From: Erica Pettig epettigrew@ _E0V>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM

Ta: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tljones@orangecountync.gov>; Sherlff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov] <myra g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shplailmedical.com <7212 shpijailmedical.com>

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

Cc: Robyn Woad; Michael DeFranco; Sarah fred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com

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
Sent: Tuesday, Octaber 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@o: gov>; Tim Jones <tij
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Cc: Robyn Wood <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra ‘myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

" Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpiailmedical.com <7212@shpiailmedical.com>
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
more detalls on these recommendations,

- All inmates and staff who are physically present in the jail within the last two weeks, regardtess of
vaccination status, must be tested as soon as possible {ideally within the next 48 hours) with a PCR test.

- It's crucial to immediately separate any pasitives from negatives, even if they have been housed together.
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
should be done. The person Is positive. If a rapid antigen test is negative, a confirmatory PCR test needs to be
sent. If this is a staff member, they cannot be at work until they have a negative PCR test.

- Please notify OCHD via phone or email of any new pasitives the day that they are received.

- As much as possible, limit staff from working with both COVID positive and negative folks.

- Close and timely responses are crucial for contact tracing to happen. We need a dally check-in at

minimum. We have still not received guard schedules and other info requested almost two weeks ago. Please
Kknow that even one day delay during a COVID outbreak can end up extending the outbreak by weeks,

Please let us know how we can help. Given the time itivity, we are planning on with
mmass testing this Thursday for staff and inmates. We need to be in touch tomarrow {Wed) for pregame. Who
is our paint person?

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

To: Katie Spear; "tjones@arangecountync.gov'

Cc: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred
Subject: COVID Outhreak Recommendations

Good Morning Lt. Spears & Captain Jones,

The Orange County Health Department is reaching out to provide support and guidance In light of the ongoing
COVID-19 outbreak at the Orange County Detention Facility. We want to assist the Detention Center (staff &
Inmates) and Southern Partners to prevent further spread and decrease impact as much as possible for ali that
have tested positive for COVID-19. We know from our efforts throughout this Pandemic that timely reporting
of contacts allows us to effactively contact trace and contain further spread.

Please share this with Patty from Southern Partners and let her know that OCHD is on standby and ready to
asslst.

At this point, these are our official OCHD recommendations:

TESTING & REPORTING

o All staff, regardiess of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

o Allincarcerated individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours

«  After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine the frequency
of testing.

«  The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positlve in the last week.

*  All positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
s Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic {one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
loss of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal congestion, diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills,
vomiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests.
e Symptomatic staff must be excluded from work and undergo PCR testing.

POSITIVE TEST RESULTS
«  Positive staff must be excluded from work until cleared by the Orange County Health Department.
«  Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuals can be cohorted together.
«  Ifanyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact (exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs ta quarantine for 10 days from the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the last date of exposure and again on day 5, 6, or 7 from fast exposure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
«  All positive and symptomatic Individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring {at least one set
of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals to the haspital in case
of worsening symptoms.
o Al positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclonal
antibody infusions and those who screen positive need to have medical care fer MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms.

)
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Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks

at all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when interacting with known positive or
ic incarcerated individual

«  Surgical masks need to be provided to all individuals in the jail. Education and emphasis on the

importance of masks needs to be provided.

9

o Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Orange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hilisborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412
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HEALTH DEPARTMENT

Improving health. Inspiring change.

nEE"



Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 5:19 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew, Michael DeFranco; Landon Weaver; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles
Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g. allen@dhhs ne. gov] Wilson-Merritt,
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; dp Lcom; 7212@st dical.com; Katie
Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations )

Attachments: COVID +.xlsx

1 have attached the list of the ones that tested positive with the rapid test and had a PCR test done as well. Shotts &
Parnell’s PCR test came back negative.

Thank you for being patient with me on getting this completed.
Katie
Fram: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent; Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:56 PM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Landon Weaver
<lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.govs>; Sheritf Charles Blackwood
black N ov:

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.ailen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wil ne.govs;
Quintana Stewart <q gov>; d com; 721 jail al.com; Katie Benedyk
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

Okay Sounds good. I will make sure everything is together and t will notify everyone of what time you will be getting
here. Thank you all for helping this come together.

Spear

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:36 PM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver gov>; Katie Spear <kspear gov>; Erica Pettigrew

<epettigr .gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.zov>; ewandpw@®aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
‘bened gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Hiall,

Yeah Landon, you are correct. If we are going to send to the State then we go through the online system ETOR, so just
having that Information Captain Spear will be super helpful so we can quickly input it and then generate the requisition
ta accompany the specimen.

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
mdcfrane@orangeeountyne.or
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From: Landon Weaver

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:30 PM

To: Katie Spear; Michael Defranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwoad

Cc: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@d| c,gav); Wilsen-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;

ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
Subject: RE: COVID Outhreak Recommendations

Whichever Is easier for y'all should be Just fine (correct me i | am wrong, Health folks). | think it will all have to be
redone online after the fact either way.

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Caardinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

Fram: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:24 PM

To: Landan Weaver <iweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecauntync.gov>; Enca

Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Janes <tij; gov>; Sheriff Charles

<cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwacd@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

(myra.g.allen@dhbs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita,wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangec gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
bened ountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

I'have a copy of the ones we do & | take up to the Mayo St location. Will that work? | can get those filled out if that will
make everything smoother?

From: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:21 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <md: gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.govs; Sheriff Charles Bla
<csblackwood@orangecountyng.gov>

Cec: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecauntync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov} <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

As far as the information goes, it looks like the entire requisition process is anline now. We will just take care of that an
the back end. The foilowing is the demographic info needed for each individual:

«  Fullname

+  Date of Birth
* Sex

¢ Race

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
QOrange Caunty Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:51 PM

To: Landon Weaver <|weaver@arangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefrar .gov>; Erica
Pettigrew <epettij ountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijs intync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<cshlackwood@orangecountyne.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwo ecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov} <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wil Merritt, Anita D <anita.wil: ritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
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

What time do you think wauid work for you?

From: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:34 PM

To: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.s v>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettig, ountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@or: gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212 @shpiailmedical,com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

The previous process was pretty efficient from our perspective. Unless anyone on the Detention Center side
recommends any adjustments to the plan, | wouid recommend the following:

ltems requested of Detention Center staff for testing team:

¢ Completed requisition form for each individual to be tested
o Mike: Could you send them a requisition form with what needs to be completed? Previously, we

would fill out the comman portlons of a requisition form and send that copy as a PDF for that
specific population (Detention Center address, Physician info etc.), but I am unable to Jocate the
form oniine anymore.

¢ Completed requisition forms organized inta folders pertaining to the specific units/pods that the

individuals are within
*  (2) double decker rolling carts (the plastic ones that | believe are typically used for meal transport}

Other than staff to escort us, that should be all we need internaly.
Landon

Landon Weaver

Community ParamedIc Coordinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsbarough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127



From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigy untync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sherlff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecoul .EOV>

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

Captain Spear {apologies for the incorrect title on the previous email)

Landon Weaver and Katie Benedyk have been added onto this email. Landon as you might recall was part of the ariginal
Strike Team and will be running Lead. He, Katie, Sarah Manfred and myself will be responsible for testing, as well as
Patti's involvement as Detention Center RN, We will provide the State testing kits and Katie has generously offered to
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

tmproving health Inspiring change.
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From: Katie Spear
: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM
: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
lobyn Waod; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Mvrd (mvyra.q.allen@dhhs,nc.qov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
)

Mm-:_@ggls_m,
Subject: RE: COVID Quthreak Recommendaﬂons
Who will supply the testing kits and be responsible for doing the testing?

Captain Spear

From: Ml:hael DeFranco ;mdefranco@orangemunm:.gow
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 1:58 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@0qrangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones

<tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Rabyn Wood <rwood@orangecauntync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212 @shpijailmedical.com

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Major Spear, hope you all are doing ok taday. Please Jet me know how you would like to proceed as far as timing
and testing the lon center.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Departme:

Office: (919) 2.45-2077 / Mobnle (4 10) 349-7401
mdefrancu@oringesountync gov
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From: Katie Spear

Sent; Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

Yo Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Rabyn Waod; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra,g,allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilsan-Meritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol,com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Ts the saike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutlook for Android

Fram; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tiiones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecauntync.gov>; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw(@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpiailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

Subect: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

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
Madical Director, Occupational Health al UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Caralina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 7:53:04 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Rabyn Waod; Michael Defranco; Sarah fred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.all hhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
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

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettisrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tiiones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
HOV>

Cc: Robyn Woad <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred

<smanfred@orangecountync.gav>; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov} <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpjalimedicai.com <7212@shplailmedical.com>

Subject; Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you for a productive call yesterday. We appreciate a clase partnership in order to work toward our
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH sheher/hers/ella

Madical Director, Orange County Health Department
Madical Diractor, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

Fram: Quintana Stewart

Sent: Thursday, October 7, 2021 8:53 AM

To; Katie Spear; 'tjones@orangecountync.gov'

Cc: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Woad; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred
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
have tested pasitive for COVID-19. We know from our efforts throughout this Pandemic that timely reporting
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

o All staff, regardless of vaccination status, need ta undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

*  All incarcerated individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours

s After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department wili determine the frequency
of testing.

«  The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in the last week.

«  All positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS



*  Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic (one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
loss of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal congestion, diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills,
vomiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests. )

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
*  Ifanyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close cantact (exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
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

]
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
¢ Surgical masks need to be pravided ta all individuals in the jail. Education and emphasis on the

importance of masks needs to be provided.
¢ Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Grange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412
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Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw®aol.com; 7212 @shpijailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

Hiall,

Yeah Landon, you are carrect. If we are going to send to the State then we go through the online system ETOR, so just
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

Orange County Health Department.

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdefmnco@aorangecountync.gov
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 4:01 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Michael DeFranco; Landon Weaver; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles
Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; AIlen Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt,
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; p l.com; 721 jailmedical.com; Katie
Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

[ am warking on that now.

From; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:56 PM
To Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Landon Weaver

gov>; Tim Jones <tij ync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
black ync.gov>
Cc: Robyn Woad <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecauntync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g. .nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <qstewar gov>; l.com; 721 com; Katie Benedyk

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

Cc: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Okay Sounds goad. | will make sure everything is together and | will notify everyone of what time you will be getting
here. Thank you all for helping this come together.

Spear

From: Michae! DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:36 PM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@arange ync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigr .gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod
<csblackwood@orangecountyne.gov>

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

Cc: Rabyn Wood; Sarah Manfred Allen Myra (myra q.allen@dhhs,nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com; ; Katie Benedyk
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendaﬂons

Whichever is easier for y'all should be just fine {correct me if { am wrong, Health folks). | think it will all have to be
redone online after the fact either way.

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Caordinator
QOrange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 918-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

Fro atie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:24 PM
To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov; Erica
igrew <gpettigr gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod
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
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212 @shpiailmedical.com; Katie 8enedyk

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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
epetti gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred @arangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov} <myra.g.allen@dhhs.ac.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

As far as the information gaes, it looks like the entire requisition process is online now. We will just take care of that on
the back end. The following is the demographic info needed for each individual:

*  Fuil name

¢ Date of Birth

e Sex
* Race
o Ethnicity

Even If there Is just one sheet of paper for each unit/pod that has all of the individuals within listed out with those
details, | think that would work just fine in lieu of falders. Whatever method works best for your folks.

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

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranca <mdefranco@o .gov>; Erica
igrew <epettigrew® gov>; Tim Jones <tii ountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

C: gov:




Cc: Rabyn Wood <qwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov} <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpijailmedical.com; Katle Benedyk
<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you Landon. | can help filt out forms as saon as we can get them.

What time do you think would work for you?

Fram: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:34 PM

To: Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@arangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecauntync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gav>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@®aol.com; 7212@shplailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

The previous pracess was pretty efficient from our perspective. Unless anyone on the Detention Center side
recommends any adjustments to the plan, t would recommend the following:

Items requested of Detention Center staff for testing team:
«  Completed requlsition form for each Individual to be tested
o Mike; Could you send them a requisition form with what needs to be completed? Previously, we

would fill out the common portions of a requisition form and send that copy as a POF for that
specific population (Detention Center address, Physician info etc.), but am unable to locate the
form anline anymore.

. G quisition forms

individuals are within
«  (2) double decker rolling carts (the pfastic ones that | believe are typically used for meal transport)

into folders pertaining to the specific units/pods that the

Other than staff to escort us, that should be ail we need internally.
Landon

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Coordlnator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>; Erica igl <epettigr untync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tljones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <cshlackwood@orangecout .BOV>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.alten@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.witson- -merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
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
Patti's involvement as Detention Center RN. We will provide the State testing kits and Katie has generously affered to
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

‘Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mabile: (410) 349-7401
mdefrncy@orngeTVNILIOY.
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred Allen, Myra (myra.q.allen@dhhs,nc,gov); Wilsen-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;

ewandpw@aol.com;
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Reoommendaﬂons
Who will supply the testing kits and be responsible for doing the testing?

Captain Spear

From: Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 1:58 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.goy>; Tim Jones
<tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Rabyn Wood <rwoad@orangecountyne.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita O <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@®@aol.com; 7212@shplailmedical.com
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Malor Spear, hope you all are doing ok today. Please fet me know how you would like to praceed as far as timing
tomorrow and testing the detention center.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdefranco@orangecountyncatoy.
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra,g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Meritt, Anita D;
Quintana Slewart ewandpw@aol.com; shpjallmedi

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Is the suike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Get Qutlook for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigr gOV>

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM

To: Katie Spear gov>; Tim Janes <til gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

<cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gav>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@®aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212 @shplailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

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

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael Defranco; Sarah fred; Allen, Myra {myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
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

From; Erica Pettigr .EOV>

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Janes <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood @orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Rabyn Wood <rwaod@orangecountyne.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecauntync.gov>; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@aoal.com <ewandpw@®aal.com>; 7212 @shplailmedical.com <7212 @shpjallmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you for a productive call yesterday. We appreciate a close partnership in order to work toward our
shared goal of stamplng out this COVID outbreak as quickly as possible. Please see previous email below for

more details on these recommendations.

- All inmates and staff who are physically present in the jail within the last two weeks, regardless of
vaccination status, must be tested as soon as posslble {ideally within the next 48 hours) with a PCR test.

- It's crucial to immediately separate any positives fram negatives, even if they have been housed together.
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
mass testing this Thursday for staff and inmates. We need to be in touch tomorrow (Wed} for pregame. Who
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

Cc: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Woaod; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred
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

At this paint, these are our official OCHD recommendations:

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
vomiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests,
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
* Ifanyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact (exposed to COVIDTIB for 15 cumulative minutes),
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
¢ All positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclonal
antibody infusions and those who screen positive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms.

°
a-l
m

Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
at all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when interacting with known positive or
ymp ic incarcerated indi
*  Surgical masks need to be provided to all individuals in the jail. ion and
importance of masks needs to be provided.
*  Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

on the

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

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 3:56 PM

To: Katie Spear; Michael DeFranco; Landon Weaver; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ca Rabyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g. aIIen@dhhs ncgov), Wilson-Merritt,
Anita O; Quintana Stewart; p l.com; 721 dical.com; Katie
Benedyk

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thanks everyone, Do we have an updated positive list 50 we know who not to swab?

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

Ce: Robyn Woad Sarah fred; Allen, Myra (myra.g. nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
l.com; 721 com; Katie Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Okay Sounds good. ! will make sure everything is together and | will notify everyone of what time you will be getting
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

epettigr gov>; Tim Jones gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
bl: gov>
Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <qstewar gov>; d| com; 721,
<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

com; Katie Benedyk

Hiall,

Yeah Landon, you are correct. if we are going to send to the State then we go through the online system ETOR, so just
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
mdeftanco@orangecountync.goy

Improving health. lnspiring change.
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intended recipient, please contact the sender by rq'lly email and dcstmv all copies uf the ariginal message. 1f you helieve Where has been an inappropriate
disclasure, please contact Carla Julian, OCHD HIPAXA Privacy and Security Officer, at

From: Landon Weaver

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:30 PM

To: Katie Spear; Michael Defranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim ]unes, Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Waad; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra ); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com; ;Jz@shmai medical,com; Katie Bencdyk

Subject: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recammendaunns

Whichever is easier for y'all should be just fine {correct me if | am wrong, Health folks). | think it will all have to be
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
Pettlgrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim lones <tliones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<cshlackwood@arangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc ov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedvk@arangecountync.gov>

Sublect: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

I have a copy of the ones we do & | take up to the Maye St location. Wil that work? | can get those filled out if that will
make everything smoother?

From: Landon Weaver <jweaver@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:21 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew

epetti gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood




csblackwood @« 20>
Ce: Robyn Woad <rwood@orangecauntync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
'myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@®aol.com; 7212@shplailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>
Subect: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

As far as the informatlan goes, it looks like the entire requisition process is online now. We will just take care of that on
the back end. The following is the demographic info needed for each individual:

*  Fullname

* Date of Birth

. Sex
* Race
e Ethnicity

Even if there is just one sheet of paper for each unit/pod that has all of the individuats within listed out with those
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

To: Landan Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michaej DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountyne.gov>; Efica
Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tiiones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.ov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewar - gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank yau Landon. | can help fill out forms as soon as we can get them.

What time do you think wouid work for you?

From: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:34 PM

To: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles 8lackwood
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<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anlta D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewar rangec gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

k d .goV>
Sublect: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

The previous process was pretty efficient from our perspective. Unless anyone on the Detention Center side
recommends any adjustments to the plan, | would recommend the following:

tems requested of Detention Center staff for testing team:
¢ Completed requisition farm for each individual to be tested
o Mike: Cauld you send them a requisition form with what needs to be completed? Previausly, we

would fill out the common portions of a requisition form and send that copy as a PDF for that
specific population (Detention Center address, Physician info etc.), but 1am unable to locate the
farm online anymore.

LI d isi forms

individuals are within
o (2) double decker ralling carts {the plastic anes that | believe are typically used for meal transport)

d into folders pertaining to the specific units/pods that the

Other than staff to escort us, that should be all we need internally.
Landon

Landon Weaver

‘Community Paramedic Caordinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Or.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Michael DeFranco <mdelranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@ gov>; Erica epett; ountync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync, ; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwuod orangeco -EOV>

Cc: Robyn Waod <rwood@u[angecoungmc.g ; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Alfen, Myra
myra.g allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <amta wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewar ync.gov>; dpw@zol.com; 721 ilmedical.com; Landon Weaver
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
mdefmnco@omnEecounivICEQY

~
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Woad; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (,mu@l_en@ht&nsﬂ_x), Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpial ]medlca .com

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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@arangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Rabyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw®aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com

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
mdefunco@omngccountnegov
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From: Katle Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Janes; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.q.allen@dhhs.nc.qov); Wilson-Meritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol,com; _uma_ﬂmsm.c_m

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Is the strike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Get OQutlook for Audroid

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM
To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecquntync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecauntync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Ce: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfr gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Qulntana Stewart <gs(ewan@orangecoungnc HOV>;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 721 dical.com <721 ical.com>

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

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim lanes; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc. ov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw®@aol.com; 7212@shpiallmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID OQutbreak Recommendations

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
To: Katie Spear <kspear gov>; Tim lones

st d LOV:

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwaad@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra {myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212 @shpijailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

ountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles

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
vaccination status, must be tested as saon as passible (ideally within the next 48 hours) with a PCR test.

- It's crucial to i ly separate any positives from r , even if they have been housed together.

Positives can be with other positives.

- Any positive rapid antigen test is cansidered a real positive during an outbreak and does not need
confirmatory testing.

- Anyone with symptoms needs an immediate test. If a rapid antigen test is positive, no confirmatory test
should be done. The person is positive. If a rapid antigen test is negative, a confirmatory PCR test needs to he
sent. If this is a staff member, they cannot be at work until they have a negative PCR test.

- Please notify OCHD via phone or email of any new positives the day that they are received.

- As much as possible, limit staff from working with both COVID positive and negative falks.

- Close and timely responses are crucial for contact tracing to happen. We need a daily check-in at

minimum. We have still not received guard schedules and other info requested almost two weeks ago. Please
know that even one day delay during a COVID outbreak can end up extending the outbreak by weeks.

Please let us know how we can help. Given the extreme time itivity, we are planning on assisting with
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

To: Katile Spear; 'tjones@orangecountync.gov'

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
COVID-19 outhreak at the Orange County Detention Facility. We want to assist the Detention Center (staff &
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

¢ Allincarcerated individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours

¢ After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine the frequency
of testing.

¢ The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be pasitive in the last week.

* Al positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
®  Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic {one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
loss of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal congestion, diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills,
vomiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests.
¢  Symptomatic staff must be excluded from work and undergo PCR testing.

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
¢ Allpositive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
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
atall times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when interacting with known positive or
ic incarcerated individ
*  Surgical masks need to be provided to all individuals in the jail. Education and emphasis on the
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

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 3:41 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Landon Weaver, Erica Pettigrew; Tim Janes; Sheriff Charles
Blackwood

Ca Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra {myrag. allen@dhhs nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt,
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; d l.com; 721 dical.com; Katie
Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Okay Sounds good. | will make sure everything is together and | will notify everyone of what time you wili be getting
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
pettigrew@or gov>; Tim Jones gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
. gov:

Cc: Robyn Wood <r d gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g. nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@or: BOV>; l.com; 721: com; Katie Benedyk

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

OTce- (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdefmncp@orangecountync.gav.
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From: Landon Weaver

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:30 PM

To: Kalie Spear; Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn WOOd Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra c.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandj znz@inmﬂlmgml&m; Katle Benedyk

Subject: RE. COVID Quthreak Recommendations

Whichever is easier for y'all should be just fine {correct me if t am wrong, Health folks). | think it will all have to be
redone online after the fact elther way.

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Coordinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 915-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:24 PM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@arangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica
Pettigrew <gpettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Rabyn Waod <rwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
‘myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Katle Benedyk
<kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

SubJect: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

I have a copy of the ones we do & | take up to the Mayo St location. Will that work? | can get those filled out if that will
make everything smoother?

From: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:21 PM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@grangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erlca Pettigrew

epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

gov>

Cc- Robyn Woed <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <astewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw(@aol.cam; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

As far as the information goes, it loaks like the entire requisition process is online now. We will just take care of that on
the back end. The following is the demographic info needed for each individual:

« Fullname
*  Date of Birth
s Sex
2
¢ Race
e Ethnicity

Even if there s just ane sheet of paper for each unit/pod that has all of the individuals within listed out with those
detalls, | think that would work just fine in lieu of folders. Whatever method works best for your folks.

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

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecauntync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Erica

Pettigrew <egettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
BOV>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <mvra.g.allen@dhhs.ne.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.witson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedyk@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendatlons

Thank you Landon. | can help fill out forms as saon as we can get them.

‘What time do you think would work for you?

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
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson- merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiallmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedyk@orangecount ov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

The previous process was pretty efficient from our perspective. Unless anyone on the Detention Center side
recommends any adjustments ta the plan, | would recommend the following:

Iterns requested of Detention Center staff for testing team:
o Completed requisition form for each Individual to be tested

3

o Mike; Could you send them d requisition form with what needs to be completed? Previously, we
would fill out the common portions of a requisition form and send thot copy as a POF for that
specific population (Detention Center address, Physiclan Info etc. ), but 1 am unable to locate the
form online anymore.

¢ C d ition forms
individuals are within
o {2) double decker rolling carts (the plastic ones that | believe are typicaily used for meal transport)

into folders pertaining to the specific units/pods that the

Other than staff to escort us, that should be all we need Internally.
Landon

Landon Weaver

Communlty Paramedlc Coordinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsboraugh, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettig <epetti nc.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood < d gOV>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.witson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aal.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Landon Weaver
<lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katle Benedyk <kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Captain Spear {apologies for the incorrect title on the previous email)

Landon Weaver and Katie Benedyk have been added onto this email. Landon as you might recalt was part of the original
Strike Team and will be running Lead. He, Katie, Sarah Manfred and myself will be responsitile for testing, as well as
Patti's involvement as Detention Center RN. We will provide the State testing kits and Katie has generously offered to
transport the specimens to Raleigh after testing Is completed.

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
mdefmucadorangecounivac.ggv
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From; Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwaad

Cc: Robyn Waad; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (mmg,ﬁu@jhhﬂg.gg_) Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;

ewandpw@aal.com; le@shmallmedlcal com
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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangec .gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csk | gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.ne.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
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

Orange County Health Departmen

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mnb\le (410)34}7401
meefranco@ orangecuunte.gay
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From: Katie Spear
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM
To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood



Ce: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (mya.q.allen@dhhs,nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;

Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Is the surike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM

To: Katie Spear .gov>; Tim Jones <tijo
c d@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@aorangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred

<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

Mexritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

ewandpw(@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpiailmedical.com <7212@shpiailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

ync.gov>; Sheriff Charles

You are welcome to structure the testing however you'd like. If you need our team, then we may not have the
capacity to spend the entire day. We'll already stretched pretty thin trying to rally troops to help. Mike can
speak more to what's possible.

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/herhers/alia

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

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael Defranco; Sarah Allen, Myra (myra.g.
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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim lones <tijones@orangecountync.gov; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

X BOV:

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecou gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountyne.gov>; Sarah Manfred
di .gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewarti ngecountync.gov>;

ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com <7212@shplailmedical.com>
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you for a productive call yesterday. We appreciate a close partnership in order to work toward our
shared goal of stamping out this COVID outbreak as quickly as possibie. Please see previous email below for
more details on these recommendations,

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
mass testing this Thursday fer staff and inmates. We need to be in touch tomorrow (Wed) for pregame. Who
is our point person?

Thank you,

Dr. Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/eila

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Direclor, Occupational Health at UNC Haealth Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Quintana Stewart

Sent: Thursday, October 7, 2021 8:53 AM

To: Katie Spear; ‘tjones@orangecountync.gov'

Cc: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred
Subject: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

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
have tested positive for COVID-19. We know from our efforts throughout this Pandemic that timely reparting
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

i

TESTING & REPORTING
*  Allstaff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.
*  Allincarcerated individuals, regardless of n status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours
*  After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine the frequency
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
*  Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic {one or more of the following: fever, shartness of breath,
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
Pasitive individuals can be cohorted together.
*  If anyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact {exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes},
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of expasure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the last date of exposure and again on day 5, 6, or 7 from last exposure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
* Al positive and symptomatic Individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
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

*  Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
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

[]

e Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Orange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Michael DeFranco

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:36 PM

To: Landon Weaver; Katie Spear; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ca Robyn Wood,; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.: allen@dhhs nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt,
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; ip l.com; 721 pjailmedical.com; Katie
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
mdefranc@ompaesountyne.goy.

I'S
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: All email messages, including any attachments, generated from o received by this site are the peoperty of Orange County
Gavernment and arsconsered public domain subject 0 he North Caroina Pubic Record ow. The Orange County Flealth Deparment ransmis
minimol ion via email, and prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply email und destroy all copies e origia message. 1fyou el o e inappropriute
disclusure, please contact Carla Julian, OCHD HIPAA Privacy and Security Officer, at ciulian@orapzecountyncaioy.

From: Landon Weaver

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:30 PM

To: Katle Spear; Michael DeFranco' Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wond Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
l.com; 721 al.com; Katie Benedyk

Subject' RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

Whichever is easier for y'all should be just fine {correct me if | am wrong, Health folks). I think it will all have to be
redone onilne after the fact either way.

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

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DefFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica

Pettigrew <epettig| gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
gov>

Cc: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

(myra.g. dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.all hhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <qstewar gOV>; com; 721 jail ical.com; Katie Benedyk

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

From: Landan Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:21 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettlgrew

<epetti gov>; Tim Jones <tii gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <qwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred @orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wil -merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <astewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjallmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
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

* Fuliname

« Date of Birth

- Sex
« Race
¢ Ethnicity

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

Community Paramedic Caordinatar
Orange Caunty Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Or.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:51 PM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@arangeco nc.gov>; Michae! DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica
Pettigrew <epettiprew@oran gov>; Tim Jones <tij ani gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
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

To: Michael DeFranco <mdefr: gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@or .gov>; Erica Pettig:
<epettigrew nran ecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tilones@orangeco .gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

csblack gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred @orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
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

{tems requested of Detention Center staff for testing team:
. G requisition farm for each indi | to be tested
o Mike: Could you send them a requisition form with what needs to be completed? Previously, we

would fill out the common partions of a requisition form and send that copy as a PDF for that
specific populotion (Detention Center address, Physlcian info etc.), but / am unable to locate the
form onlme anymore.

¢ C ition forms

individuals are within
o {2) double decker rolling carts (the plastic ones that | believe are typically used for meal transport)

d into folders pertaining to the specific units/pods that the

Other than staff to escort us, that should be all we need internally.
Landon

Landon Weaver
Community Paramedic Coordinatar
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278
M: 919-441-2659
0:919-245-6127

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@ ync.gov>; Erica Pettig <epettigr .gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csbtackwood@orangecountync.f

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita O <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Landon Weaver
<lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Benedyk <kbenedyk@arangecountyne.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Captain Spear (apologies for the incorrect title on the previous email)

Landon Weaver and Katie Benedyk have been added onto this email. Landon as you might recall was part of the original
Strike Team and will be running Lead. He, Katie, Sarah Manfred and myself wili be responsible for testing, as well as
Patti’s involvemnent as Detention Center RN, We will provide the State testing kits and Katie has generously offered to
transport the specimens to Raleigh after testing is completed.

Landon, If you have any details that you could share with the Detention Center Team as far as information prepped
ahead of time, please do.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Seruices Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 3497401
mdefranco@orangecountvuc.gov

improviag health. inspiring change.

CONFIDENTLALITY NOTICE: A emul messages, including any tachmests generaled from ar received by this site are the property of Orange County
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disclosure, please contact Carla Julian, OCHD HIPAA Privacy and Security Officer, al gjulian@orangecoyntyne gov.

From: Katle Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra ; Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjal Imedlcg com

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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pemgrew <epettlg- intync.gov>; Tim Janes
<tijonest ountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Black d@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <n~aod@orangeccungnc.gov ; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aal.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

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

Office: (91;) 245-2077 | Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdefanCo@orangecon NG £ov

? 26 COlL
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.a.allen@dhhs,nc.gov); Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D;

Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical,com
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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Woad <rwood@arangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.2ov>;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

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

Ce: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.ne.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;

Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@®aal.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
SubJect: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Can this mass testing be done with the inmates being tested in the morning and staff around 4 pm?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smariphone
Ger Qutlook for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim lones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
cst d@ gov:
Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecguntync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilsan-
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
should be done. The person is positive. if a rapid antigen test is negative, a confirmatory PCR test needs to be
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
minimum. We have still not received guard schedules and other info d almost two weeks ago. Please
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

Medical Director, Orange County Heaith Department
Medical Director, Occupational Heaith at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Quintana Stewart

Sent: Thursday, October 7, 2021 8:53 AM

To: Katie Spear; 'tjones@orangecountync.gov'

Ce: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Woaed; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred
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
have tested pasitive for COVID-19. We know from our efforts throughout this Pandemic that timely reparting
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

+ Al staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

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
*  Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic (one or more of the following: fever, shartness of breath,
loss of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal congestion, diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills,
vomltmg) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests.
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
+  If anyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact (exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
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
antibady infusions and those who screen pasitive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms,

=
ncd
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
¢ Surgical masks need to be provided to all indi
importance of masks needs to be provided.
«  staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

and on the

Is in the jail.

Quintana Stewart, MPA
Health Director
Orange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278
Phone: 919-245-2412
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Jennifer Galassi

Fram: Landon Weaver

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:30 PM

To: Katie Spear; Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

] Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g. aIIen@dhhs nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt,
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; dp l.com; 721 P, dical.com; Katie
Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Whichever is easier for y'all should be just fine (correct me if | am wrong, Health folks). I think it will alt have to be
redone online after the fact either way.

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Caordinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From. Kane Spear <kspear@nrangecoumvnc gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:24 PM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecauntync.gov>; Michael DeFrance <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica
Pettigr gov>; Tim Jones <tijs gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<:sbIa:kwmd@orangecountvnc.gow

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orar gOV>; com; 721 Imedical.com; Katle 8enedyk
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

Fram: Landon Weaver <|lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:21PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranc gov>; Erica Pettigl
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gav>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anlta.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountvnc.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie Benedyk
<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

As far as the information goes, it laoks like the entire requisition process is online now. We will just take care of that on
the back end. The following Is the demographic info needed for each individual:

¢ Fullname

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

M: 919-241-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Katie Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:51 PM

To: Landon Weaver <iweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica
Pettigrew <epettigrew@: \c.gov>; Tim Jones <tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Waod <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
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
To: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@or: gov>; Katie Spear <kspear gov>; Erica Pettigrew

geglgrey@orangemungync gov>; Tim Jones <tilones@arangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

gov>

Cc' Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.gallen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.g0v>;
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
¢ C i form for each individual to be tested
o Mike: Could you send them a requisition form with what needs to be completed? Previously, we

would fill out the comman partlons of a requisition form and send that copy os a PDF for that
specific population (Detention Center oddress, Physician info etc.), but | am unable to locate the
Jorm online anymore.

«  Completed requisition forms organized Into folders pertaining to the specific units/pods that the

Individuals are within
+  (2) double decker rolling carts (the plastic ones that | believe are typically used for meal transport)

Other than staff ta escort us, that should be all we need internally,
Landon

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Coordinator
Orange Caunty Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsborough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

Fram' Mlchael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecoungnc gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecauntync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.go ; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Woad <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shplallmedical.com; Landon Weaver
<lweaver@qrangecauntync.gov>; Katie Benedyk <kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Sub]ect: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendatlons

Captain Spear (apologies for the incorrect title on the previous email}

Landon Weaver and Katie Benedyk have been added onto this email. Landon as you might recall was part of the ariginal
Strike Team and will be running Lead. He, Katie, Sarah Manfred and myself will be responsible for testing, as well as
Patti’s involvement as Detention Center RN. We will provide the State testing kits and Katie has generously offered ta
transpaort the specimens to Raleigh after testing is completed.

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

QOrange County Health Departm:

Office: (919) 245-2077 / \loblle (4xo) 3497401
mdefranco@orangecountync.goy.
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

Ta: Michael Defranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwoad

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.q.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com

Subject: RE: COVID Quthreak Recommendatians

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
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Subject; RE: COVID Outhreak Recommendations

Major Spear, hope you all are doing ok today. Please fet me know how you would like to praceed as far as timing
tomorrow and testing the detention center.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdefanou@emneuntyne. Loy
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Rabyn Waod; Michael Defranca; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.qov); Wilson-Meritt, Anita D;

Quintana Stewart g_w_angmm_;gm 1212@shpjailmedical.com
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Is the strike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutlaok for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tljones@aorange gov>; Sheriff Charles Black d
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wison-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
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

Ce: Rabyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
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

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
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

Thank you for a productive cail yesterday. We appreciate a close partnership in order to work toward our
shared goal of stamping cut this COVID outbreak as quickly as possible. Please see previous email below for
more details on these recommendations.

- All inmates and staff who are physically present in the jail within the last two weeks, regardless of
vaccination status, must he tested as soon as possible (ideally within the next 48 hours) with a PCR test.

- It's crucial to i diately separate any positives from negatives, even if they have been housed together.
Positives can be with other positives.

- Any positive rapid antigen test is considered a real positive during an outbreak and does not need
confirmatory testing,

- Anyone with svmptqms needs an immediate test. If a rapid antigen test is positive, no confirmatory test
should be done. The persan is positive. If a rapid antigen test is negative, a confirmatory PCR test needs to be
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
know that even one day delay during a COVID outbreak can end up extending the outbreak by weeks,

Please let us know how we can help. Given the extreme time sensitivity, we are planning on assisting with
mass testing this Thursday for staff and inmates. We need to be in touch tomarrow (Wed) for pregame, Who
is our point person?

Thank you,

Dr. Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JO, MPH she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Haealth Gare
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Quintana Stewart

Sent: Thursday, October 7, 2021 8:53 AM

To: Katie Spear; "tjones@orangecountync.gov'

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

At this point, these are our officlal OCHD recommendations:

TESTING & REPORTING

*  All staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

*  Allincarcerated individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours

¢ After this initial round of testing, the Orange Caunty Health Department will determine the frequency
of testing.

¢ The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in the last week.

¢ Al positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
¢ Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic (one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
loss of taste and smell, sare throat, cough, nasal congestion, diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills,
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
*  Ifanyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact {exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the last date of exposure and again on day 5, 6, or 7 from last exposure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
* Al positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring {at least one set
of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals to the hospltal in case
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
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* Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
at all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when interacting with known positive or
ic incarcerated i
¢ Surgical masks need to be provided to ail individuals in the jail.
importance of masks needs to be provided.

d and hasis on the

*  Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals In it.

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Realth Director

Qrange Caunty Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 3:24 PM

To: Landon Weaver, Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles
Blackwaod

Ce: Robyn Woad; Sarah Manfred; Al|en Myra (myra.g. aIIen@dhhs.nc gov); Wilson-Merritt,
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; p ol.com; 721 pj dical.com; Katie
Bene

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

| have a copy of the ones we do & | take up ta the Mayo St location. Will that work? | can get those filled out if that wilt

make everything smoother?

From: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 3:21 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecauntync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

<csblackwood@otangecountync BOV>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gav} <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita 0 <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecauntync.gov>; l.com; 721. dical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

SubJect: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

As far as the information goes, it laoks like the entire requisition process is online now, We will just take care of that on
the back end. The following is the demographic info needed for each individual:

« Full name

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

From; Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:51 PM

To: Landon Weaver <lweaver@arangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Erica
Pettigrew <gpettigrew@orangecountync.zov>; Tim Jones <tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@arangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Qulntana Stewart <gstewart@orangec gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpijallmedical.com; Katie Benedyk

<k LEOV>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you Landon. 1 can help fill out forms as soon as we can get them.

What time do you think would work for you?

From: Landon Weaver <lweaver@arangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:34 PM

To: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear -ountync.gov>; Erica igl
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim lones <tilones@arangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync,gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountyne.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.al dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
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
recommends any adjustments to the plan, | would recommend the follawing:

Itemns requested of Detention Center staff for testing team:
¢ Completed requisition form for each individual to be tested
o Mike: Could you send them a requisition form with whot needs to be completed? Previously, we
would fill out the common portions of a requisition form and send that copy as o PDF for that
specific population (Detentlon Center address, Physician info etc.), but | am unable to locate the
form anline anymare.
LI« d isition forms organized into folders pertaining to the specific units/pods that the
individuals are within
+  (2) double decker rolling carts (the plastic ones that | belteve are typically used for meal transport)

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

From: Michael Defranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear .gov>; Erica il w@orang . gov>; Tim Jones
<tliones@arangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood «sblacl_(wood@orangecuungnc EOV>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwuad@crangecountyn: fov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <mym.g.allen@dhhs.ncgov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjaiimedical.com; Landan Weaver
<lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Benedyk <kbenedvk@arangecountync.gov>

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

Landan, if you have any details that you could share with the Detention Center Team as far as information prepped
ahead of time, please do.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdefranco@orangecountyc.gov
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sherlff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (mvra.q.allen@dhhs,nc.qov); Wilson-Merritt, Anlta D; Quintana Stewart;

ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@5hg]allmedlcal.cgm
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

‘Who will supply the testing kits and be responsible for doing the testing?

Captain Spear

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, Octeber 13, 2021 1:58 PM

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
tomorrow and testing the detention center,

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

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.qov); Wilsen-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpijallmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

Is the suike tearn doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutlook for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim lones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwoad@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpfailmedical.com <7212@shpiailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations




You are welcome to structure the testing however you'd like. If you need our team, then we may not have the
capacity to spend the entire day. We'll already stretched pretty thin trying to rally troops to help. Mike can
speak more to what's possible,

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

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smaitphone
Get Qutlook for Android

Fram: Erica Pettigrew <gpettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM
To: Katie Spear <k nc.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@oran

gov>; Sheriff Charles Black d

gov:

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpiailmedical.com <7212 @shpjailmedical.com>

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

- As much as possible, limit staff from working with both COVID positive and negative foiks.

- Close and timely responses are crucial for contact tracing to happen. We need a daily check-in at
minimum. We have still not received guard schedules and other info requested almost two weeks ago. Please
know that even one day delay during a COVID autbreak can end up extending the outbreak by weeks.

Please let us know how we can help. Given the extreme time itivity, we are on assisting with
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
Medical Direclor, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
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
COVID-19 outbreak at the Orange County Detention Facility. We want to assist the Detention Center {staff &
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

o All staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

®  Allincarcerated individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
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

¢ Al positive cases of COVID-19 must be reparted to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
¢ Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic (one or more of the following: fever, shartness of breath,
loss of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal cangestion, diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills,
vomiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests.
. ic staff must be excluded from work and undergo PCR testing.

POSITIVE TEST RESULTS
* Positive staff must be excluded from work until cleared by the Orange County Health Department.
* Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuals can be cohorted together.
¢ Ifanyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact {exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the last date of exposure and again on day S, 6, or 7 from last exposure.

MONITORING & TREATMEN

¢ All positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
of vital signs daily}). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals to the hospital in case
of worsening symptoms.

®  Ali positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclonal
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

e Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 p05|t|ve individuals in it.

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
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; dp' l.com; 721 jailmedical.com; Katie
Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

As far as the information goes, it looks like the entire requisition process is onfine now. We will just take care of that on
the back end. The following is the demographic info needed for each individual:

*  Fultname

* Date of Birth

. Sex
* Race
*  Ethnlcity

Even if there is just one sheet of paper for each unit/pad that has all of the individuals within listed out with those
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

Pettigrew <epettig gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <amta wllson merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <qstewar gov>; com; 721. fical.com; Katie Benedyk

<kbenedyk@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID OQutbreak Recommendations

Thank you Landon. I can help fill out forms as soon as we can get them,

‘What time do you think would work for you?



From: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:34 PM

To: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <k gov>; Erica Pettig
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim lones <tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
kwood@ora gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecauntync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
ra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;

Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shp| ailmedical.com; Katle Benedyk

<kbenedyk@aorangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

The previous process was pretty efficient from our perspective. Unless anyone on the Detentlon Center side
recommends any adjustments to the plan, | would recommend the following:

Items requested of Detention Center staff for testing team:
« Completed requisition form for each individual to be tested
n  Mike: Could you send them a requisition form with what needs to be completed? Previously, we
would fill out the comman partions of a requisition form and send that copy as a PDF for that
specific population (Detention Center address, Physician info etc.), but lam unable ta locate the
form online anymore.
L« d isition forms
individuals are within
+  (2) double decker rolling carts (the plastic ones that | believe are typically used for meal transport)

d into folders pertaining to the specific units/pads that the

Other than staff to escort us, that should be all we need internally.
Landon

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedlc Caordinator
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillshorough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From:

ichael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM
To: Katie Spear <kspear gov>; Erlca Pettigrew <epettigrew(@ .gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwoad <csbl gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Landon Weaver
<lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Benedyk <kbenedvk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Captain Spear (apologies far the Incarrect title on the previous email}

2

Landon Weaver and Katle Benedyk have been added onto this email. Landon as you might recall was part of the criginal
Strike Team and will be running Lead. He, Katie, Sarah Manfred and myself will be responsible for testing, as well as
Patti’s involvement as Detention Center RN, We will provide the State testing kits and Katie has generously offered to
transport the specimens to Raleigh after testing is completed.

tandan, if you have any details that you could share with the Detention Center Team as far as information prepped
ahead of time, please do.

Thank yau,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Dep

Office: (919) 245-2077 / \dohde. (4 10) 349-7401
mdefac@orangesountyntgov
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CONFIDENTLALITY NOTICE: All email messages, including uny attachmenls, generaled from or received by this site are the property of Orange Counly

ang subject 0 the North Carolina Public Rexord Law. The Orange County Health Department transits
minimal canfidentia) dient/patient i ion via email, and any d review, us is prohibited. I you are not the
intended reciplent, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all coples of the original message. If sou belicve there has been un inappropriate
disclsure, plesse contact Carla Julian, OCHD HIPAA Privacy and Seeurity Officer, at riuljan@orangesountyme gov-

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Waad; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc,gov); Wilsan-Merritt, Anlta D; Quintana Stewart;

ewandpw@aal,com; 7212@shplailmedical,co
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
Ta Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <g| pettigrew@orangecountync. gov>, Tim Jones
gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <¢sblackwood@arangecountyne.
Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@arangecoun .gov>; Sarah Manfred <s manfred@orangecoun;ync gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita. wilsan-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw®@aol.com; 7212@shpijailmedical.com
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
ndefrmncooranzecountyng. gov

improving health. Insplring change.

CONFIDEN l'ul.m' NOTICE: All email messages, including sy attachinents. generated trom or received by this site are the property of Orange County
id ¢ bject o the N

orth Carolina Puhl.lc nmni Law, The Orange County Health Department transmits

minimal i m ems nd is prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, plase contact the sender by reply cmail and destroy all copies Jof the. ungmj message. If you betieve there has been an Inappropriate
Aisclosure, please contact Carla Julian, OCHD HIPAA Privicy und Security Otficer, at culian@orangecountyne goe.

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.q.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilsen-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol,com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Is the strike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outloak for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent; Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<sma d vnc.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpiailmedical.com <7212@shplailmedical.com>

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

Erica Peltigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/sila

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

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charies Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita O;
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

Get Outlook for Andraid

From: Erica g <epetti FOV>

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katie Spear <ks: gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblac BOV:

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dbhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <astewart@orangecountync.gov>;
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

- Anyone with symptoms needs an immediate test. If a rapid antigen test Is positive, no confirmatory test
should be done. The person s positive. If a rapid antigen test is negative, a confirmatory PCR test needs to be
sent. If this is 2 staff member, they cannot be at work until they have a negative PCR test.

- Please notify OCHD via phone or email of any new positives the day that they are received.

- As much as possible, limit staff from working with both COVID positive and negative folks.

- Close and timely responses are crucial for contact tracing to happen. We need a daily check-in at

minimum. We have still not received guard schedules and other Info requested almost two weeks ago. Please
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
Erica Peltigrew, MD, D, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange Gounty Health Department
Madical Director, Occupalianal Health at UNC Heallh Care



Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From; Quintana Stewart

Sent: Thursday, October 7, 2021 8:53 AM

To: Katie Spear; "tjones@aorangecountync.gov'

Cc: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manlred
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

At this point, these are aur official OCHD recommendations:

TESTING & REPORTING
®  Alistaff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.
*  Allincarcerated individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to und go a PCR test within the
next 48 hours
¢ After this initfal round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine the frequency
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
¢ Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic {one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
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
¢ ifanyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact {exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
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
of warsening symptoms.

* Al positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclonal
antibady infusions and those who screen positive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms.
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Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, ete. This includes surgical masks

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

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-M
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; d l.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Katie
Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you Landon. I can help fill out forms as soon as we can get them.

What time do you think would work for you?

From: Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:34 PM

To: Michael DeFranco <mdefr ync.gov>; Katie Spear <k untync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew

gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

<epettigr gov>; Tim Jones
iack 4 ov:

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.all nc.gov) <myra.g.all nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewar gov>; dj com; 721 com; Katie Benedyk
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
+ Completed requisition form for each individual to be tested
o Mike: Could you send them a requisition form with what needs to be campleted? Previously, we
waould fill out the common portions of a requisition form and send that copy os a PDF for that
specific population (Detention Center address, Physicion info etc.), but t am unable to locate the
formn anline anymare.
¢ Completed isition forms
individuals are within
¢ (2) double decker roliing carts (the plastic ones that | believe are typically used for meal transport)

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

0:919-245-6127 ,

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecauntync.gov>; Erica Pettigr epettij .gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@arangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountyne.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc, ov>;
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

Ltandon Weaver and Katie Benedyk have been added onto this email. Landon as you might recall was part of the original
Strike Team and will be running Lead. He, Katie, Sarah Manfred and myself will be respansible for testing, as well as
Patti’s involvement as Detention Center RN. We will provide the State testing kits and Katie has generously offered to
transport the specimens to Raleigh after testing is completed.

Landon, if you have any details that you could share with the Detention Center Team as far as mfarmatmn prepped
ahead of time, please do.

Thank you,
Mike

‘Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdefranco@orangecountync.gov
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: All emoil messages, including any attachments, generated from or received by this site are the property of Orange County
o the North Carolina Public Record Law. The Orange Caunty Health Department transmits
' fon viu email, and any unauthorized review, use, di ‘Deohibited. If you are nof the
intended recipient, please colitact oo sondr by reply cmailand destray all copies of the ariginal messag. 1F¥ou beliove there has beers an inappropriate
disclosure, please contact Carla Juliun, OCHD HIFAA Privacy and Secuity Officer, ut civlian@orangeconntyne,gov.

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

Cc: Robyn WOOd' Sarah Manfred Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
a edical

Subject: RE: COVID OuIbreak Recommendaﬁons

Who will supply the testing kits and be respansible for doing the testing?

Captain Spear



From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 1:58 PM

To: Katie Spear <k gov>; Erica Pemgrew <epe untync.gov>; Tim lones

i gov>; Sheriff Charles 1 d ] gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfved <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson- -merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Major Spear, hape you all are dolng ok today. Please let me know how you would like to proceed as far as timing
v and testing the ion center.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager
Orange County Health Department
Offce: (915) 245-2077 / Mbile (410) 349-7401
mdefranco@orancecountyne.gov

»~
4
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Improving health. Inspiring change.

CONFIDEN [LALITY NUTICE: All email messages,including any attacheats: generated trom or reeeived by lhis site ae the property of Orange County
and subject to the North Carolina Public nmni Law. The Orange County Health Department transimits

‘miaiual confi via emal. and. cevi prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, pluse et the seder by veply exmall and destoy sl coples o te onyml message. Ifyoub khm :there has beer an insppropriate
disclosure, please contact Carla Julian, OCHD 'HIPAA Privacy and Security Otficer, at

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.q.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol,com; 7212@shplailmedical.com

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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred

<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

Sub)ect: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

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
Medical Directar, Occupational Health al UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 7:53:04 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Woad; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov}; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@®aol.com; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID Outhreak Recommendations

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

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tliones@orangecountync.gov>; ; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
d@

gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@arangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <agstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you for a productive call yesterday. We appreciate a close partnership in order to work toward our
shared goal of stamping aut this COVID outhreak as quickly as possible. Please see previous email below for
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JO, MPH  she/har/hers/ella

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

To: Katle Spear; 'tjones@orangecountync.gov'

Cc: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Waod; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred
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
inmates) and Sauthern Partners to prevent further spread and decrease impact as much as possible for alf that
have tested positive for COVID-19, We know from our efforts throughout this Pandemic that timely reporting
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

« Al staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

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

« Al positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
o Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomnatic (one or more of the following: fever, shartness of breath,
|oss of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal congestion, diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills,
vomiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests.
. staff must be excluded from work and undergo PCR testing.

POSITIVE TEST RESULTS
s Positive staff must be excluded from work until cleared by the Orange County Heaith Department.
o Positive incarcerated Individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuals can be cohorted together.
«  If anyone who is unvaccinated is Identified as a close contact {exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the last date of exposure and again on day 5, 6, or 7 from last expasure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
e All positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals to the hospital in case
of worsening symptoms.
o Al positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclaonal
antibody Infusions and those wha screen positive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
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

o Surgical masks need to be provided to all individuals in the jail. Education and empbhasis on the

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

SRANGE COLNTY
HEALTH DEPARTMENT
Improving health. Inspiring change.
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwaod
Sen Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:42 PM
To: Landon Weaver
[ol] Michael DeFranco; Katie Spear; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred;
Allen, Myra (myra.g.all 1c gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
|.com; 7212@shpj; dical.com; Katie Eenedyk
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

We appreciate the partnership and will do our very best to accommodate the process you have outlined.
Sheriff Blackwood

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 13, 2021, at 2:34 PM, Landon Weaver <lweaver @orangecountync.gov> wrote:

The previous process was pretty efficient from our perspective. Unless anyone on the Detention Center
side recommends any adjustments to the plan, | would recommend the following:

Items requested of Detention Center staff for testing team:
¢ Completed requisition form for each individual to be tested
o Mike: Could you send them a requisition form with what needs ta be completed?
Previously, we would fill out the common portions of a requisition form and send
that copy as a PDF for that specific population (Detention Center address,
Physician info etc.}, but | am unable to locate the form online anymore.
* Compl ition forms ized into folders pertaining to the specific units/pods
that the individuals are within
¢ (2) double decker rolling carts (the plastic ones that  believe are typically used for meal
transport)

Other than staff to escort us, that should be all we need internally.
Landon

Landon Weaver

Cammunity Paramedic Coordinatar
Orange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr,

Hillshorough, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>;
Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Cc: Robyn Woad <r gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>;
Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D
<amta wilson- memtt@dhhs nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@crangecountync.gov>;

l.com; 721 dical.com; Landon Weaver <lweaver@orangecountync.gov>; Katie
Benedyk <kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Captain Spear (apalogles for the incorrect title on the previous email}

Landon Weaver and Katie Benedyk have been added onto this email. Landon as you might recall was
part of the original Strike Team and will be running Lead. He, Katie, Sarah Manfred and myseif will be
responsible for testing, as well as Patti’s involvement as Detention Center RN. We will provide the State
testing kits and Katie has generously offered to transport the specimens to Raleigh after testing Is
completed.

Landon, if you have any details that you could share with the Detention Center Team as far as
information prepped ahead of time, please do.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Heaith De

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410} 349-7401
cod i
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Janes; Sheiff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (nma g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; wandpw@aul com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations
Who will supply the testing kits and be responsible for doing the testing?

Captain Spear

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 1:58 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <gpettij LBOV>;
Tim lones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Black

<csblackwood@orangecountyne.gov>
Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>;

Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g. nc.gov>; Wiison-Merritt, Anita D
<anita.wilson- i .NC.2ov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Major Spear, hope you all are doing ok today. Please let me know how you would like to proceed as far
as timing tomorrow and testing the detention center.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Offi 19) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
2oy y
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Julian, OCHD HIPAA. Y Security Otficer. ut gj:

From: Katle Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra a.4.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-

Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart; w, 7212@shpjailmedical.com
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

To: Katie Spear <ksgear@orangecoungnc gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff
Charles Black £OV>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwgod @orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred @orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <mvra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-
merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandow@aol.com

<ewandpw@®@aol.com>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

You are welcome to structure the testing however you'd like. If you need our team, then we
may not have the capacity to spend the entire day. We'll already stretched pretty thin trying to
rally troops to help. Mike can speak more to what's possible.

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JO, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

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

Ce: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.n¢.gov); Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@®aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Can this mass testing be done with the inmates being tested in the morning and staff around 4
pm?

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
Charles <cshl ountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountyne.gov>; Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync, go ; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov} <myra.g.allen@dhhs.ne.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <ai ilson-
merritt@dhhs.ne.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com
<ewandgw@aol.com>; 2212@shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpijailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you for a productive call yesterday. We appreciate a close partnership in order to work
toward our shared goal of stamping out this COVID outbreak as quickly as passible, Please see
previous email below for mare details on these recommendations.

- All inmates and staff who are physically present in the jail within the fast two weeks,
regardless of vaccination status, must be tested as soon as possible (ideally within the next 48
hours} with a PCR test.

- It's crucial to i diately separate any positives from negatives, even if they have been
haused together. Positives can be with other positives.

- Any positive rapid antigen test is considered a real positive during an outbreak and does not
need confirmatory testing.



- Anyane with symptoms needs an immediate test. If a rapid antigen test is positive, no
confirmatory test should be done. The person is positive. if a rapid antigen test is negative, a
confirmatary PCR test needs to be sent. If this is 3 staff member, they cannot be at work untif
they have a negative PCR test.

- Please notify OCHD via phone or email of any new positives the day that they are received.
- As much as possible, limit staff from working with both COVID pasitive and negative folks.

- Close and timely responses are crucial for contact tracing to happen. We need a daily check-in
at minimum. We have still not received guard schedules and other info requested almast two
weeks ago. Please know that even one day delay during a COVID outbreak can end up
extending the outbreak by weeks.

Please let us know how we can help. Given the extreme time sensitivity, we are planning on
assisting with mass testing this Thursday for staff and inmates. We need to be in touch
tomorrow (Wed) for pregame. Who is our point person?

Thank you,

Dr. Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JO, MPH  she/her/hers/eila

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

Cc: Erlca Pettigrew; Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred
Subject: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Good Morning Lt. Spears & Captain Jones,

The Orange County Health Department is reaching out to provide support and guidance in light
of the ongoing COVID-19 outbreak at the Orange County Detention Facility. We want to assist
the Detention Center (staff & Inmates) and Southern Partners to prevent further spread and
decrease impact as much as possibie for all that have tested positive for COVID-19. We know
from aur efforts throughout this Pandemic that timely reporting of contacts allows us to
effectively contact trace and contain further spread.

Please share this with Patty from Southern Partners and let her know that OCHO is on standby
and ready to assist.

At this point, these are our official OCHD recommendations:

5
TESTING & REPORTING
« Al staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48
hours.
¢ Allincarcerated individi regardless of v status, need to undergo a PCR

test within the next 48 hours

o After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine
the frequency of testing.

«  The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in
the last week.

« Al positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health
Department.

SYMPTOMS
«  Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic (one or mare of the following: fever,
shortness of breath, lass of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal congestion,
diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills, vomiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR
test, regardiess of previous negative tests.
«  Symptomatic staff must be excluded from work and undergo PCR testing.

POSITIVE TEST RESULTS
s Positive staff must be excluded from work untii cleared by the Orange County Health
Department.

«  Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to
be positive, Positive individuals can be cohorted together.

s if anyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact {exposed to COVID-19 for 15
cumufative minutes), that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days fram the last date of
exposure with recommended PCR testing an day 2 from the last date of exposure and again on
day S, 6, or 7 from last exposure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
*  All positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring
(at least one set of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring
individuals to the hospital in case of worsening symptoms.
e Al positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive
monoaclonal antibody infusions and those who screen positive need to have medical care
for MAB arranged, regardless of current severity of symptoms.

)
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e Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes
surgical masks at all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when
interacting with known positive or ic incarcerated individ

»  Surgical masks need to be provided to all individuals in the jail. Education and emphasis
on the importance of masks needs to be provided.

o Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in
it.

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

Ta: Michael DeFranco; Katie Spear; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.ncgov); Wilson-Merritt,
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; p l.com; 721 pjailinedical.com; Katie
Benedyk

Subject RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

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
Sorm enline anymore,

«  Completed requisitian forms organized into folders pertaining to the specific units/pods that the

individuals are within
s (2) double decker rolling carts {the plastic ones that | believe are typically used for meal transport)

Other than staff to escort us, that should be all we need internally.

Landon

Landon Weaver

Community Paramedic Caordlnatar
Qrange County Emergency Services
510 Meadowlands Dr.

Hillsboraugh, NC 27278

M: 919-441-2659

0:919-245-6127

From: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica g pettigt gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@arangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Black d <csblack gov>

Ce: Robyn Woad <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g. hs.nc.gov) <myra.g.: .nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <qstewar gov>; d) |.com; 7212@shpijailmedical.com; Landon Weaver
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
mdefranc@arangecountyne.goy.

Improving heafth. inspiring change.
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intended cecipient, please contact the sendec by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message. lt’you helieve there has been an inappropriate
disclosure, please contact Carla Julian, GCHD HIPAA Privacy and Security Officer, at Gulian@orangecountyne.gov.

Fram: Katle Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwaad

Ce: Robyn Woad; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;

ewandpw@®aol,.com; 7212@shpiail al.col
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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim lones

<tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Black d <csblackwood@orangecountvne.gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@arangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpijailmedical.com

Subject: RE: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

Majer Spear, hope you all are doing ok today. Please let me know how you would like to proceed as far as timing
tomorrow and testing the detention center,

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department
Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
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Improving health. tnspiring change.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: Al email messages, i neruted from or received by th I Orange County

re conside subject to the North Carolina Public Recurd Lavs. Th Orange County Health Departnient transmits
winimal confidential client/patiamt intormation via email, and review, use, is pmhnhned Tf y\m are ot the
intended recipient, plase contuct the sendes by reply emailand destroy all copes of ) message. 1fyou beli

disclosure, pl fulian, OCHD HEPAA Sceurily OfTicer. ut gjuli

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Frica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.qov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;

Quintana Stewart; ewandpw®aol.com; 7212@shpiailmedical.com
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Is the swrike teamn doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Get Qutlook for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM

To. Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
gov>

Cc. Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.govs; Sarah Manfred

<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-megritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

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
Medical Director, Occupaltional Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 7:53:04 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Rabyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@®aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Subject: Re: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

I hhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;

Can this mass testing be done with the inmates being tested in the morning and staff around 4 pm?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Quttook for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@or: gov>; Tim Jones <tijs

<cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecoun gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gav>; Sarah Manfred
.gov>; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

ewandow(@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpiailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

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
vaccination status, must be tested as saan as possible (ideally within the next 48 hours) with a PCR test.

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
sent. If this is a staff member, they cannot be at work until they have a negative PCR test,

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

Please let us know how we can help. Given the extreme time itivity, we are pl. on assisting with
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

Assistant Professor, Universily of North Carolina

From: Quintana Stewart

Sent: Thursday, October 7, 2021 8:53 AM

To: Katie Spear; 'tjones@orangecountync.gov'

Cc: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Waod; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred
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

s All staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

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

¢ Allpositive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
*  Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic (one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
loss of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal cangestion, diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills,
vamiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests,
. ic staff must be excluded from work and undergo PCR testing.

POSITIVE TEST RESULTS
¢ Positive staff must be excluded from work until cleared by the Orange County Health Department.
® Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Pasitive individuals can be cohorted together.
¢ Ifanyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact {exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of expasure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the last date of exposure and again on day 5, 6, or 7 fram last exposure,

MONITORING & TREATMENT



« Al positive and symptomatic individuals must recelve appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals to the haspital in case
of worsening symptoms.

e All positive Incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monaclonal
antibady infusions and those who screen positive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms.
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«  Staff need to wear standardlzed PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
at all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when interacting with known positive or
ymp ic incarcerated individ
«  Surgical masks need to be provided to all individuals in the jail. Education and emphasis on the
importance of masks needs to be pravided.
s Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 pesitive individuals in it.

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

QOrange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillshoraugh, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:17 PM

To: Michael Defranco; Erica Pettigrew, Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs. nc_gov), Wilsan-Merritt,
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; d) l.com; 721 pjailmedical.com; Landon
Weaver, Katie Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

This sounds good however, the time is the hard part. Inmate was it’s easfer in the morning but hard for officers,
especially the ones working nights. It would be easier for officers closer to shift change time, which is at 4:30/5 pm. Qur
afternoons are more hectic for inmates, since we have 1 appearances at 2 pm then dinner at 4.

Spear

From: Michael Defranco <mdefranco@ocrangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@or .gov>; Erlca g pettige gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles k d <c gov>

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilsan-meyritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; com; 721 il ical.com; Landon Weaver
<lweaver gov>; Katle Benedyk <kb gov>

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

Orange County Health De ot

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdcfrane@oranzecountyng.eay
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imtended recplent,plse contact e sendr by reply email und destray au cuplus of the ariginal message. [fou belevs thre as been on insppropriate
disclosure, please cntact Carla Julian, OCHD HIPAA

From: Katle Spear

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 2:00 PM

Ta: Michael DeFranco; Erica Petugrew Tim Jones; Sherlff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Woad; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.q.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
ewandpw@aol.com; le@shmaﬂmedlcal com

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
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountyne.gov>

Cc: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shplailmedical.com

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Major Spear, hope you all are doing ok today. Piease let me know how you would like to proceed as far as timing
tomorrow and testing the detention center.

Thank you,
Mike

‘Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager
Orange County Health Department
Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobhile: (410) 349-7401
mdefaneo@omangeconnivnegov
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CONFIDENTLALITY NOTICE: Al emiil messages, mcludmh any attachments, generated fron) or recelved by this site are the property of Orange County
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disclosure, please contact Carla Julian, OCHD HIPAA Privacy and Security Officer, at sjulian@ornyecountyne.gov.
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From: Katle

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Waod; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs,nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjallmedical,com

Subject: Re: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

Is the swrike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutlook for Android
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Fram: Erica ig epettij FOV>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@: gov>; Tim Jones <tijo gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

<¢sblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
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

Medical Directar, Orange County Health Department
Maedical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 7:53:04 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Rabyn Wood; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita O;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212 @shpijailmedical.com

Subect; Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Can this mass testing be done with the inmates being tested in the moming and staff around 4 pm?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim lones <tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Robyn Waood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountyne.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw(@aol.com <ewandpw@aal.com>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Qutbreak Recommendations

Thank you for a productive call yesterday. We appreciate a close partnership in order to work toward our
shared goal of stamping out this COVID outbreak as quickly as possible, Please see previous emait below for
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/alla

Medical Director, Orange Gounty Health Dapartment
Medical Director, Occupalional Health at UNGC Health Care
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
inmates} and Southern Partners to prevent further spread and decrease impact as much as passible for all that
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

©  After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine the frequency
of testing.

* The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in the last week.

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
vomiting} must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests.
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
+  All positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals to the hospital in case
of worsening symptoms.
¢ Al positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclanal
antibody infusions and those who screen positive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms.
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¢ Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
at all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when interacting with known positive or
symptomatic incarcerated individuals.

¢ Surgical masks need to be provided to all i
importance of masks needs to be provided.

¢ Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

ividuals in the jail. Education and l onthe

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Orange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street

Hillsbarough, NC 27278
Phone: 919-245-2412

( ORANGE COLNTY
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Michael DeFranco

Sent: ‘Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:08 PM

To: Katie Spear; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Janes; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ca Robyn Woad; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g. allen@dhhs ne. gov), Wilson-Merritt,
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; p l.com; 721 t dical.com; Landon
Weaver; Katie Benedyk

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
mdefranco@omngecountyng.gov
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CONFIDENTIALITY NUTICE: All email messages, including any attachmets, generuted from or received hy this site ure the property of Orange County
and tto the Notth Carvlina Public Record Law. The Orange County Health Department transinits
inimal ion via enus nd review, use, discl is prohibited. If you are not the

intended recipient, please conlact the sender by reply email and destroy all capies of the original message. 1fyou believe there has béen an inappropriate
disclosure, please contact Carla Julian, QCHD HIPAA Privacy and Security Officer, at ciulian@orangecountyne.gav.

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:00 PM

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
l.com; 721 jical.com

Suh]ecl:. RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Who will supply the testing kits and be responsible for doing the testing?

Captaln Spear

From: Michael DeFranca <mdefranco@orangecauntync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 1:58 PM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones

1



<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles b gOv>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; WIIson-Memtt, Anita D <anita.wllson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <qstewart@or: gOV>; l.com; 721 i ical.com

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Major Spear, hope you all are doing ok today. Please let me know how you would like to proceed as far as timing
and testing the center.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department.
Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdefranc@oranzecountyncoy
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

Tas Erica Pettigrew; Tim Janes; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra,q.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol,com; 7212@shpjallmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Is the strike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutlook for Android

From: Erica L pettigrew@or LEOV>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM

To: Katle Spear <k gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwoad
cshlac gOv:

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountyne.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred

<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilsan-merritt @dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com <7212@shj jallmedical.com>

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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JO, MPH  she/her/hers/alla

Medical Director, Crange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health al UNG Health Care
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
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw®ao!.com; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com

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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@arangecountync.gov>; Sheiff Charles Blackwoad
<csblackwood@orangecountync gov>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilsan-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@3aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedicat.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you for a productive cafl yesterday. We appreciate a close partnership in order to work toward our
shared goal of stamping out this COVID outbreak as guickly as possible, Please see previous email below for
more details on these recommendations.

~ Allinmates and staff who are physically present in the Jai within the last two weeks, regardless of
vaccination status, must be tested as soon as possible (ideally within the next 48 hours) with a PCR test.

- It's crucial to immediately separate any posltives from negatives, even if they have been housed together.
Positives can be with other positives.

- Any positive rapid antigen test is cansidered a real positive during an outbreak and does not need
confirmatory testing.

- Anyone with symptoms needs an immediate test. If a rapld antigen test is positive, no confirmatory test

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
mass testing this Thursday for staff and Inmates. We need to be In touch tomarrow (Wed) for pregame. Who
is our point person?

Thank you,

Dr. Pettigrew

Erica Petligrew, MD, ID, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Directer, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Quintana Stewart

Sent: Thursday, October 7, 2021 8:53 AM

To: Katle Spear; ‘tjones@orangecountync.gov'

Cc: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranca; Sarah Manfred
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

o All staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to underga a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

o Allincarcerated individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours

«  After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Heaith Department will determine the frequency
of testing.

«  The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in the last week.

o Ali positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
«  Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic (one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
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
= Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuals can be cohorted together.
« If anyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact (exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
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
of worsening symptams.
« Al positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclonal
antibady infusions and those wha screen positive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms.

o
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o Staff need to wear standardized PPE Instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
at all imes, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when interacting with known positive or
symptomatic incarcerated individuals.

s Surgical masks need to be provided to all individuals in the jail. Education and emphasis on the
importance of masks needs to be provided.

e Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Heaith Dlrector

Orange Caunty Health Department
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

To: Michael DeFranco; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Janes; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

Ca Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g. allen@dhhs nc.gov); Wilsan-Merritt,
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; dp l.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

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

To: Katie Spear <k ountync.gov>; Erica g epettigr
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Black d <cshlack

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra

1l hs.nc.gov) <myra.g. nc.gov>; Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D <anita wnlsun-memtt@dhhs nc.gov>;
Quintana Stewart <qstewar gov>; com; 721 i com

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

tync.gov>; Tim Jones
gov>

(myra.g.

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

Office: (919} 245-2077 / Mabile: (410) 349-7401
mdefancoarangecountyne.gox

Improving heatlth. lnspiring chonge.
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Waod; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs,nc,gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; ewandpw@aol.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendatians

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

To: Katle Spear <kspear@arangecauntync.gav>; Tim Janes <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

C: {@orar gov:
Ce: Robyn Wood <pwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
ewandpw@aol.com <ewandpw@aol.com>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.cam>
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

Erica Pattigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Qrange County Health Department
Madical Director, Occupational Health at UNG Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Katle Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 7:53:04 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah d; Allen, Myra (myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
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

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettizgrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
ountync,gov:

Cc: Rabyn Woad <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred

<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-

Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

ewandpw@aol.com <gwandpw@aol.com>; 7212 @shpijailmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

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

- Allinmates and staff who are physically present in the ail within the last two weeks, regardless of
vaccination status, must be tested as soan as possible (ideally within the next 48 hours) with a PCR test.

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

- Please notify QCHD via phone or email of any new positives the day that they are received.

-~ As much as possible, limit staff from working with both COVID positive and negative folks.

- Close and timely responses are crucial for contact tracing to happen. We need a daily check-in at

minimum, We have still not received guard schedules and other info r d almost two weeks ago. Please
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

Or. Pettigrew

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

Sel hursday, October 7, 2021 8:53 AM

To: Katie Spear; ‘tjones@orangecountync.gov'

Cc: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Wood; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred
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
inmates) and Southern Partners to prevent further spread and decrease impact as much as possible for alf that
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

®  The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in the last week.

¢ All positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS .

+  Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic {one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
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
Positive individuals can be cohorted together,
¢ Ifanyone who Is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact {exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days fram the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
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
¢ Al positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclonal
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
*  Surgical masks need to be provided to all individuals in the jail. Ed ion and hasis on the
importance of masks needs to be provided.
¢ Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a celf with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

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

To: . Katie Spear; Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt,
Anita O; Quintana Stewart; d |.cam; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Major Spear, hope you all are doing ok today. Please let me know how yau would like to proceed as far as timing
tomorrow and testing the detention center.

Thank you,
Mike

Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
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and are considered publ tin subject to the North (‘aml ina Pnbhc Revord Law. ‘The Orane Counly Health Department transmits

I conii viu entail, and any ized review, use, discl is prohibited. If you are not the
intended reclpient, please contact the sender by reply email and iestroy ul coptes of the organal messuge. 1fvou belleve there has been an inappropriate
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Janes; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

Cc: Rabyn Waod; Michael DeFran:o, Sarah Manrred Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilsan-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; l.com; 721 om

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Is the strike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutloak for Android

From: Erica ig gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 13 2021 8:25:43 AM
To: Kalle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
gOoV>
Ce: Rubvn Wood <rwoad@orangecauntync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gav>; Sarah Manfred
gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g. dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson- merrm@dhhs nc.gov>; Qumtana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
l.com \.com>; 721 al.com <721 dical.com>
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recammendatlons

You are welcome to structure the testing however you'd like. If you need our team, then we may nct have the
capacity to spend the entire day. We'll already stretched pretty thin trying to rally troops to help. Mike can
speak moare to what's possible.

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  sheher/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Cecupational Health at UNC Health Care
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
Quintana Stewart; d) l.com; 7212 ji dical.com

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

From: Erica igrew <epettigr goV>
Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim lones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
<cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Cc: Rabyn Wood <rwoed@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilsan-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <qs(ewart@orangecountyn: BOV>;

l.com com>; 721 jaiimedical.com <721 com>

SubJect: Re: COVID Cutbreak Recommendations

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

Please let us know how we can help. Given the extreme time ivity, we are planning on assisting with
mass testing this Thursday for staff and inmates. We need to be in touch tomarrow {Wed) for pregame. Who
is our point person?

Thank you,

Dr. Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, J0, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

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

Cc: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Wood; Michael DeFrance; Sarah Manfred
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
have tested positive for COVID-19. We know from our efforts thraughout this Pandemic that timely reporting
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

+  All staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

o All incarcerated individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours

o After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine the frequency
of testing.

«  The only individuals exempted from testing are thase who are known to be positive in the fast week.

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
® Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuais not known to be positive.
Positive individuals can be cohorted together.
¢ Ifanyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact (exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumutative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the [ast date of exposure and again on day 5, 6, or 7 from last exposure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
¢ Al positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
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

«  Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
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

*  staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 pasitive individuals in it.

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Orange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412
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From: Katie Spear
Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 7:53 AM
To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
Ca Rabyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
dp |.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Subject: Re: COVID QOutbreak Recammendations

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

To: Katie Spear <k gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwoad
" q

goV:

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

d .com .com>; 721 jail ical.com <721 jail com:
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
sent. [f this is a staff member, they cannot be at work until they have a negative PCR test.

- Please notify OCHD via phone or email of any new pasitives the day that they are received.

- As much as possible, limit staff from working with both COVID positive and negative folks.

- Close and timely responses are crucial for contact tracing to happen. We need a daily check-in at
minimum. We have still not received guard schedules and other infor d almost two weeks ago. Please
know that even one day delay during a COVID outbreak can end up extending the outbreak by weeks.

Please let us know how we can help. Given the extreme time sensitivity, we are planning on aésis!ing with
mass testing this Thursday for staff and inmates. We need to be in touch tomarrow (Wed) for pregame. Who
is our point person?

Thank you,

Dr. Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JO, MPH she/herhers/ella

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

To: Katie Spear; 'tjones@arangecountync.gov'

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

¢ Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic {(one or more of the following: fever, shartness of breath,
loss of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal congestion, diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills,
vomiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests.

. ic staff must be from work and undergo PCR testing.

POSITIVE TEST RESULTS
¢ Positive staff must be excluded from work until cleared by the Orange County Health Department.
*  Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuals can be cohorted together. )
*  Ifanyone who Is unvaccinated Is Identified as a close contact (exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
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
of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place far transferring individuals ta the hospital in case
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

»  Surgical masks need to be provided to all indivi
importance of masks needs to be provided.

¢ Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuais in it.

s in the jail. Education and on the

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Qrange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Erica Pettigrew
Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:25 PM
To: Katie Spear; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.govl: Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
dj l.com; 721 jailmedical.com
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Thank you for a productive call yesterday. We appreciate a close partnership in order to work toward our
shared goal of stamping out this COVID outbreak as quickly as possible. Please see previous email below for
more detalls on these recommendations.

- All inmates and staff who are physically present in the jail within the last two weeks, regardless of
vaccination status, must be tested as soon as possible (ideally within the next 48 hours} with a PCR test.

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

- Close and timely responses are crucial for contact tracing to happen, We need a daily check-in at

minimum. We have still not received guard schedules and ather info requested almost two weeks ago. Please
know that even one day delay during a COVID outbreak can end up extending the outbreak by weeks.

Please let us know how we can help. Given the extreme time sensitivity, we are planning on assisting with
rmass testing this Thursday for staff and inmates. We need to be in touch tomorrow (Wed) for pregame. Who
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

o Al incarcerated individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours

o After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine the frequency
of testing.

« The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in the last week.

s All positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
«  Anyone (staff or inmate) that is symptomatic {one or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
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
«  Positive staff must be excluded from work untit cleared by the Orange County Health Department.
«  Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuais can be cohorted together.
«  If anyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact {exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of expasure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the last date of expasure and again on day 5, 6, or 7 from last exposure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
o All positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
of vital signs dally). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals to the haspital in case
of worsening symptoms.

s All positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criteria to receive monoclonal
antibody infusions and those who screen pasitive need to have medical care for MAB arranged,
regardless of current severity of symptoms.
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Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
at all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gawn and gloves when interacting with known positive or
symptomatic incarcerated individuals.

e Surgical masks need to be provided to all
importance of masks needs to be provided.
«  Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

in the jail. and empl on the

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

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:42 AM

To: Katie Spear; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

Ca Robyn Waod; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.allen@dhhs.ncgov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;

dp I.com; 721 hpjailmedical.com
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

We have not had a strike team for a long while now (maybe six manths?) due to staffing and resource
constraints.

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

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 8:28:25 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Janes; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Woad; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; l.com; 721 jailmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Ts the strike team doing the testing?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Get Qutlook for Android

From: Erica g epettig| gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:25:43 AM

To: Katie Spear <ksp gov>; Tim Jones <tij gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwoad

EOV>

Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gav>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecauntync.gov>; Allen, Myra {myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.all dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;

l.com di l.com>; 721 ilmedical.com <7212@shpjailmedical.com>

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
Assislant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Katie Spear
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 7:53:04 AM



To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; com; 7212@st om

Subject: Re: COVID Outhreak Recommendations

Can this mass testing be done with the inmates being tested in the morning and staff around 4 pm?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smariphone
Get Qudook for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@or ync.gov>; Tim Jones <tij
blackwood, .,

gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwoad

Cc: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.govs; Michael DeFranco gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov) <myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Memn Anita D <anita. wllson<merrltt@dhhs nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <qstewart@orangecountvn: £OV>;

l.com com>; 721 dical.com <7212@shpj dical.com>
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendatlons

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
Positives can be with other paositives.

- Any positive rapid antigen test is considered a real positive during an outbreak and does not need
confirmatory testing.

- Anyone with symptoms needs an immediate test. If a rapid antigen test is positive, no confirmatory test
should be dane. The person is positive. If a rapid antigen test is negative, a confirmatory PCR test needs to be
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
Suhject: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Good Marning Lt. Spears & Captain Jones,

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

® The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in the fast week.

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
¢  Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Pasitive individuals can be cohorted together.

*  Ifanyone who is unvaccinated is identified as a close contact {exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individuai needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
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
*  Surgical masks need to be provided to all i
importance of masks needs to be provided.
e Staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

divid

Is in the jail. Ed and is on the

Quintana Stewart, MPA

Health Director

Qrange County Health Department
300 West Tryon Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412

improving health. Inspiring chonge.
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From: Katie Spear
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:28 AM
To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
Ca Rabyn Wood; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra
{myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.govl; Wlson -Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
d aol.com; 721 j dical.com
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
To: Katie Spear <kspear gov>; Tim lones gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
csbiackwood@ gov.
Ce: Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michae! DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g.all .nc.gov) <myra.g.all hhs.nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita. wllson -merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <qstewart@crangecountvnc gov>;
com com>; 721 dical.com <721 dical.com

Sub]ect Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

You are welcome to structure the testing however you'd like. If you need our team, then we may not have the
capacity to spend the entire day. We'll already stretched pretty thin trying to rally troops to help. Mike can
speak more to what's possible.

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH she/herhers/ella

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

Ce: Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; d) .com; 721 jailmedical.com

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Can this mass testing be done with the inmates being tested in the morning and staff around 4 pm?

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

Ger Quulook for Android

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@arangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@or: gov>; Tim Jones
:csblack d SOV>

gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood




Ce: Robyn Wood <rwaod@orangecauntync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranca@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
<smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g. ihhs.ne.gov) <myra.g. dhhs.nc.gov>; Wilsen-
Merritt, Anita D <anita, wllson merrltt@dhhs nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <qstewart@crangemunlvn: gov>;

l.com l.com>; 721 iimedical.com <721 dical.com>

Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendadons

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
vaccination status, must be tested as saon as possible (ideally within the next 48 hours) with a PCR test.

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
Assistant Prolessor, University of North Garolina

From: Quintana Stewart
Sent: Thursday, October 7, 2021 8:53 AM
To: Katle Spear; 'tjones@orangecountync.gov’

Cc: Erica Pettigrew; Robyn Wood; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred
Sub)ect: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Good Morning Lt. Spears & Captain Jones,

The Orange County Health Department is reaching out to pravide support and guidance in light of the angoing
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
assist,

At this point, these are our official OCHD recommendations:

TESTING & REPORTING

«  All staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

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

o The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in the last week.

«  All positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
«  Anyone {staff or inmate) that is symptomatic {ane or more of the following: fever, shortness of breath,
Joss of taste and smell, sore throat, cough, nasal congestion, diarrhea, headache, muscle aches, chills,
vomiting) must be isolated and tested with PCR test, regardless of previous negative tests.
«  Symptomatic staff must be excluded from work and undergo PCR testing.

POSITIVE TEST RESULTS
o Positive staff must be excluded from work until cleared by the Orange County Health Department.
«  Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuals can be cohorted together.
« If anyone who Is unvaccinated Is Identified as a close contact (exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days fram the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
an day 2 from the last date of exposure and again on day 5, 6, or 7 from last exposure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
o Al positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
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
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»  Staff need to wear standardized PPE instead of gaiters, cloth masks, etc. This includes surgical masks
at all times, and surgical masks, face shields, gown and gloves when interacting with known positive or
symptomatic incarcerated individuals.

«  Surgical masks need to he provided to all individuals in the jail. Education and emphasls on the
importance of masks needs to be provided.

= staff must change all PPE after rounding on a cell with COVID19 positive individuals in it.

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

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:27 AM

To: Katie Spear; Erica Pettigrew; Tim lones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ca Robyn Wood; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra (myra.g. allen@dhhs ne.gov); Wilson-Merritt,
Anita D; Quintana Stewart; p l.com; 721 dical.com; Sarah
Manfred; Landon Weaver; Katie Benedyk

Subject: RE: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

Hi Everyhady, hope you all are doing aok. Katie, in response to your email, we have been trying to organize a team to
come out and help test, The plan Is for tomorrow and | was going to reach aut to you and check and see what time
would be the best. As Is, Landon and Katie form EMS as well as Sarah and | from Communicable Disease will be available
to test all of the incarcerated individuals {I've added them to this email for situational awareness). Any staff that is
present at this time can certainly be tested as well, however, we are not going to be able to come back at another point
in the day and test additional staff. | can get a schedule out to you with alf of the testing places in OC — there are quite a
few of them readily accessible.

‘We would be able to start as earlv as 0900-0930 tomarrow AM if you think that would work best. Again, thanks for ail of
your and c and flexib Look forward to hearing back as far as the plan and seeing you
tomorrow.

Take care,
Mike

‘Mike DeFranco, MPH, BSN, RN
Public Health Services Manager

Orange County Health Department

Office: (919) 245-2077 / Mobile: (410) 349-7401
mdefranco@omaugecountyne.eov
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From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 13, 2021 7:53 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Sherlff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Robyn Woad; Michae! Defranco; Sarah Manfred Allen, Myra (myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Slewal’( l.com; 721

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




From: Erica igrew <epettigi gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 5:24:44 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones
di gov:

gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Robyn Woad <rwood@orangecauntync.gov>; Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred

smanfr gov>; Allen, Myra {myra.g.all nc.gov) <myra.g. nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
l.com com>; 721 jailmedical.com <721 jail al.com:

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

-It's crucial to i diately separate any positives from negatives, even if they have been housed together.
Positives can be with other positives.

- Any positive rapid antigen test Is considered a real positive during an outbreak and does not need
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

Please let us know how we can help. Given the exti time itivity, we are on assisting with
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
COVID-13 outbreak at the Orange County Detention Facility. We want to assist the Detention Center (staff &
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

*  The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be pasitive in the last week.

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
*  All positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
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

*  Surgical masks need to be provided to all indivi in the jail. Ed ion and is on the
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
300 West Tryan Street
Hillsborough, NC 27278

Phone: 919-245-2412

HEALTH
Improving healith, Insplring change.
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From: Erica Pettigrew
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 8:26 AM
To: Katie Spear; Tim Jones; Sheriff Charles Blackwood
Ce: Robyn Wood; Michael Defranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra
(myra.g.all {hhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D; Quintana Stewart;
dj l.com; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Subject: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

You are welcome to structure the testing however you'd like. If you need aur team, then we may not have the
capacity to spend the entire day. We'll already stretched pretty thin trying to rally troops to help. Mike can
speak more to what's possible.

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Qrange County Health Depariment
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

Cc: Robyn Woad; Michael DeFranco; Sarah Manfred; Allen, Myra {myra.g.allen@dhhs.nc.gov); Wilson-Merritt, Anita D;
Quintana Stewart; d .com; 721 jailmedi
SubJect: Re: COVID Outbreak Recommendations

-al.com

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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@or: gov>; Tim Jones <tijg
J Lov>

gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Rabyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred
gov>; Allen, Myra (myra.g. ne.gov) <myra.g. nc.gov>; Wilson-
Merritt, Anita D <anita.wilson-merritt@dhhs.nc.gov>; Quintana Stewart <qstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
d) l.com p com>; 7212@st ical.com <721; jailmedical.com>
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

Please let us knowshow we can help. Given the time itivity, we are planning on assisting with
mass testing this Thursday for staff and inmates. We need to be in touch tomorrow {Wed) for pregame. Who
is aur point person?

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
Subect: COVID Outhreak Recommendations

Good Morning Lt. Spears & Captain Jones,

The Orange County Health Department is reaching out to pravide support and guidance in light of the ongaing
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

Please share this with Patty from Southern Partners and let her know that OCHD Is on standby and ready to
assist.

At this point, these are our official OCHD recommendations:

TESTING & REPORTING

o All staff, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the next 48 hours.

+ Al incarcerated individuals, regardless of vaccination status, need to undergo a PCR test within the
next 48 hours

s After this initial round of testing, the Orange County Health Department will determine the frequency
of testing.

¢ The only individuals exempted from testing are those who are known to be positive in the last week.

»  All positive cases of COVID-19 must be reported to the Orange County Health Department.

SYMPTOMS
«  Anyone {staff or inmate) that is symptomatic (one or more of the following: fever, shartness of breath,
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
+  Positive staff must be excluded from work until cleared by the Orange County Health Department.
»  Positive incarcerated individuals must be cohorted away from individuals not known to be positive.
Positive individuals can be cohorted together.
«  Ifanyane who Is unvaccinated is Identified as a close contact (exposed to COVID-19 for 15 cumulative minutes),
that individual needs to quarantine for 10 days from the last date of exposure with recommended PCR testing
on day 2 from the last date of exposure and again on day 5, 6, or 7 fram last exposure.

MONITORING & TREATMENT
s All positive and symptomatic individuals must receive appropriate medical monitoring (at least one set
of vital signs daily). There needs to be a plan in place for transferring individuals to the hospital in case
of worsening symptoms.
«  All positive incarcerated individuals must be screened for meeting criterla to receive monaclonal
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

To: Robyn Wood; 7212@shpjailmedical.com
Ca Tim Jones

Subject: RE: Daily check in

We have not had any more positive cases (staff or In-custody) since 10/12/2021. However, we have 1 that is the hospital
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

To: Katie Spear <kspt gov>; 7212 jailmedical.com
Subject: Daily check in

Hello Captain Spear and Nurse Patty,

1 am checking in today to determine whether you are aware of any additional positive incarcerated peaple or staff,
determine the health status of currently positive people, and te assist with any questions related to coharting positives.
For those officers/staff who did not test at your facility with OCHD, it is important as well that we review their PCR
testing.

If it is helpful to you, we can try to arrange a daily time to speak at your convenience.

Best,

Robyn Woad

OCHD Covid response nurse
919 667 5448



Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 4:46 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: MAB resource for staff

Thank you and | will share this information with the staff.

Fram: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 4:43 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles lack d <csblack gov>
Cc: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 721 ilmedical.com; Michae! DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync gov>; Quintana Stewart
<qstewart@orangecouittync.gov>; Sarah Manfred fi gov>; g Campbelt

<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: MAB resaurce for staff

Excellent. The flyer serves its purpose, aithough clearly | did not go to school for graphic design.

| wanted to make sure that staff know how to get MAB if they need it, too. They can simply call 888-850-2684
and UNC will get them taken care of right away. They can also have their personal physician refer ta them to
UNC. https://www.unchealthcare.org/coronavirus/monoclonal-antibody-infusion-theraj

Thank you all. Taday was a success - 3 of the 5 people offered MAB tock us up on it, and we had some great
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

Cc: Tim Jones; 7212 @shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Waod; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

I will make copies and pass them out along with numbers on who wants the antigen. | will get those emailed to you all
tomorrow around noon time. Thank you all for your help!!

Captain Spear

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csh!: d@: EOV:
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM
To: Erica Pettigrew <epetti

Cc: Tim Jones <tijones@oran; .gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; 7212 @shpijaitmedical.com;
Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<astewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@arangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

C.80V:

I'm fine with this
Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19,2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew @orangecolntync.gov> wrote:

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

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpijallmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JB, MPH shether/hers/ella
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

Ce: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
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

'
Also, I know Capt Spear's working hard on cohorting the new positives. Some key tips:

- best practice is keeping only positives with positives - this is most important first step

- good news is that you can put recently previously positive with new positives {so that list of 23
can be housed with these new 13 - that's much better than mixing them with anyone else)

- if there's a way to then figure out who was close contacts with thase positives and keep them
quarantined together {but away from positives, away from new intakes, and away from any
person who is not a close contact), that's ideal.

We're looking forward to helfping more tomorrow. It's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you ali
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

On Oct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@gorangecountync.gov>
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

Cc: Michael Defranco; Robyn Waod; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
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
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail | ip? This Is a very ti itive
intervention.

We are all very much aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuesday is very
short notice considering we do not yet have the results back as to who has



tested positive from the last round of testing. All that being said Thursday secems
reasonable for everyone involved, including hut not limited to the folks at SHP.

Just about every incarcerated persan is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID pasitive people as well as negative peaple who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spoken about this and agreed that we would use the same
criteria as would be nsed for any other segment of the population. It you meet
the criteria you get it, if you don’t you don't. This alsa prevents an inmate from
feeling like they have to accept the treatment.

We need logistical help from jail leadership to strategize how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails
have brought it directly to pads, We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday
works)? Also, Is It posslble for the SHP medical directar to be on site for this?
Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but
it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Qur space has always been limited and we have to wock within those limitations,
Going to the PODS to administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not
faasible. Having those who elect to have the treatment come into the booking
area and then be housed in the large holding area is the best approach,

We are also hoping ta have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning
down,

Oraft the “ane pager” you are comfortable with and we will review and apprave.

\deally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

| cannat answer ta what SHP will or will nat agree to but we can certainiy explain
the situation and see what they say.

Testing

Thank you to everyone wha helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a
success. | have not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them It is crucial
that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to cohort positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protacals asap?

1 will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don’t know what concerns were
voiced last week. If it's about SHP's testing, { would have to ask them te send you
their protocols.

Outhreak Investigation and Contact Traclng

Based on the limited information we've received it's mast likely that the virus
was Introduced by staff. The spread af COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods
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
turning positive Is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be over.

| will get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the requast was made as to
who all had worked, every rotation had cycled through. $o all squads had worked
ptior ta our being in outbreak status. All staff who tested positive were
quarantined for 10 days and returned to wark after that period and no faver for
3 days.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered.
Robyn is one of our excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official fiaison from
OCHD on the jail autbreak. Daily contact is the minimum public health
expectation during an outbreak, even If it's a message that there are no new
symptomatic or positive people. How can we imprave this? Many of our nursing
homes appreciated a set call time each day. if there is a better way for us to
communicate during your busy work days, please let us know.

I'm not sure what communication has nat been warking. | have checked with
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

Again, please know wa are working as hard a5 wa can to address the outbreak and we
are most concerned about bringing this all to a successful canclusion

Respectfully,

Sheriff 8lackwood

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Black d <csblac angec gov>; Tim Jones
<tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Katle Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>;
7212@shpjallmedical.com

Ce: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood
<rwood@arangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
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
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadershlp? This is a very time-sensitive
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
Wha can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smaothly {assuming Tuesday
works})? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
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
that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to cahart positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?
?

Outhreak Investigation and Cantact Tracing

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

To date, no meaningful contact tracing has been dane by the health department
due to lack of requested information like guard schedules. No staff member has
been quarantined. Please remember that quarantining those at highest risk of
turning positive Is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak ta be over.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emalls answered.
Robyn is one of aur excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from
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

From: Michael Defranco

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 4:21 PM

To: Katie Spear; Erica Pettigrew; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred;
Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes; Howard Blough; Grover, Joseph M

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

Capt Spear, how are you? This is Mike DeFranco. Could you do me one favor and give me a quick call at 410-
349-7401. Sarah and 1 were talking about tomorrow before and have come up with a plan that minimizes staff
and gets us in and out of the detention center before 1200, conducting the limited mAb as per those who have
stated they are i and swabbing the i 67 incarcerated persons (also being completed within the
7 day CDC guideline for congregate semngs experiencing an outbreak).

Twill not even take 5 min of your time, but this will be best discussed in ted time over the phone.
Thanks and look forward to speaking with you
Mike

Get Outlook for iQS

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 4:03:02 PM
To: Erica Pemgraw <epettigrew @«

csbl gov>

gov>; Sheriff Charles

Cc: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 721 dical.com <721. i ical.com>; Michael
DeFranco gov>; Robyn WDod rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred gov>; g Campbell

<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>; Howard 8lough
<hblough@orangecountync.gov>; Grover, Joseph M <joseph_grover@med.unc.edu>
Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

{ have got together with the nurse and Lt. Blough. We are in agreeance that it will not be possible to do both the MAB
and mass PCR testing. We wili need to schedule another day and time for PCR testing. One thought is can the PCR
testing be done during the evening hours? There is not as much activity gaing on with the staff/nurse, as in we could be
a little more efficient and not have to rush through, making sure all paperwork and samples are labeled correctly. Just a
thought.

Thank you,
Captain Spear

From: Erica ig epettig .gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 1:57 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Black

Cc: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 721 dical.com; Michael DeFranco

<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
1

<qstewart@orangecountvnc gov>; Sarah Manfred gov: (L Campbell
gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsy gov>; Grover, Joseph M

<]nseph_gruver@med.unc.edm

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

'l'hemk - you for that feedback Tcan cerlamly understand their hesnauon, particularly given the historical

d against Pe ions by medical p Is. And I certainly don’t want anyone
to feel coerced in any way. It's just hard to see people turn down potentially life-saving treatment that I would
be lining my mom or my brother up first thing if they needed it, you know?

‘We do what we can do, offer it and go from there.

Saral on our team had a great idea - since weekly testing is the recommendation in an outbreak setting, shall we
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

Medical Director, Orange Caunty Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNG Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday October 20, 2021 12:22: 02 PM

To: Erica igrew; Sheriff Charles Black

Cc: Tim lones; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subect: RE: quick question - flyer

We just added another one. So maybe they will have changed minds tonight...

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 20, 2021 11:41 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecauntync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountyne.gov>
Ce: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjallmedical.cam; Michael DeFranco
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

Only 82! That's shocking. Out of 85 or so eligible people, ouly 8 wanted this life saving medication...I'm
worried that this flyer perhaps didn't convey how important it can be. The appointments at UNC are ryplcally
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH she/har/hers/alia

Medical Director, Orange Gounty Health Departmant
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

Cc: Tim Jones; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

We have 8 incarcerated that wants the MAB tomorrow. One of those is questionable so we added him to ask questions
and hopefully agree,

Thank you,
Captain Spear

From: Katie Spear
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:57 PM
To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Ce: T|m Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco

.g0v>; Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbelt
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

| wilt make copies and pass them out along with numbers on who wants the antigen. [ will get those emailed to you all
tomorrow around noon time. Thank you all for your help!!

Captain Spear

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwaod <¢sblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew <gpettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Tim Jones <tijones@arangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpiai ical.com;
Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Rabyn Woad <r di .g0v>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mecampbell@orangecountync.gov>; lamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

I'm fine with this
Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19, 2021, at | 1:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <epertigrew @orangecountyne.gav> wrote:

Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH shesher/hers/ella

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

Cc: Tim Jones; Katle Spear; 7212@shplailmedical.cam; Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
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
Assistant Protessor, Univarsity of North Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 7:59 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212 @shpiailmedical.com; Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jait updates - important

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

Also, | know Capt Spear's working hard on coharting the new positives. Some key tips:
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
person wha s not a close contact), that's ideal.

We're looking forward to helping more tomarrow. It's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you all
have added constraints about codefendants, space, etc.

Or.P

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

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 72 12@shpiailnedical.com; Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
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

sheriff B

Sent from my iPhane

On Oct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
wrote:

Thank you for these answers, Sheriff. | know Tuesday is very soon. For cantext,
this bail got rolling over the weekend but UNC, OCHD and EMS were ali able to
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

2) UNC would need to be wiliing to be there/provide their MAB stash (I'm
checking)

3) And, of course, the sooner the treatment the better.

How about this: Could we have a couple of us come by tomarrow (Tuesday) for a
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

Medical Diractor, Orange County Heallh Department
Medical Director, Occupalional Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjsilmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranca; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

SubJect: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Monoclonal antibodies (MAB)
This life ing medicine cuts h lization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to caordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very time-sensitive
intervention.

We are all very much awsre Lhat this is tinie sensitive, howaver Tuesday is very
short notice considering we do not yet have the results back as to wha has
tested pasitive fram the last round of testing. All that being said Thursday seems
reasonable for everyone involved, Including but not limited to the folks at SHP,

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID pasitive people as well as negative peaple who were exposed.

Quintana and ) have spoken about this and agreed that we would use the same
criteria as would ae used far any other segment of the population. {f you meet
the criteria you get It, if you don’t you don’t. This also prevents an inmate from
feeling llke they have to accept the Lreatment,

We need logistical help from Jail leadership to strategize how to get this
medicine to all those who want it, Space was really tight last week. Other fails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
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Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday
waorks)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
Dr. Grover {med director of OC EMS) and | are trylng to caordinate schedules but
it Is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Qur space has always been limited and we have to wark within those limitations.
Going to the PODS to administer and abserve the inmate for an hour is not
feasible. Having those wha elect to have the treatment come into the booking
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

Draft the “one pager" vou are comfortable with and we will review and approve.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term sotution?

( cannot answer to what SHP will or will not agi2e te but we can cartainly explain
the situation and see what they say.

Testing

Thank you to everyane who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a
success. | have not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it is crucial
that Jail and medical staff work clasely with Robyn to cohort positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a capy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

1 will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don't know what concerns were
voiced last waek. If it’s about SHP’s testing, | would have to ask theni to send you
their protocols. .

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

1 will get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request was made as to
who all had worked, every rotation had cycled thraugh. So all squads had worked
prior ta our being in utbreak status. Al staff who tested positive were
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
symptomatic or positive people. How can we Improve this? Many of our nursing
homes appreciated a set call time each day. If there is a better way for us to
communicate during your busy work days, please let us know.

I'm not sure what communication has not been working. | have checked with
Major lones and Captain Spear, neither of them have been called or emailed
about this matter.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be
called or emailed immediately (within that day) in order to move quickly with
mitigation strategies.

We have not had any results of positive cases

Again, pleasa know we a2 working as hard 35 we can 1o address the cutbrzak and we
are imost concamad 3hout bringing tns all to a successfut conclusion

Respectfully,

Sheriff 8lackwood

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@arangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tifone gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@or: gov>;
7212@shpiailmedical.com

Ce: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood
<rwood@grangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so long | tried ta
bold the things we need quick answers to, Thanks.

Monoclonal antibodies (MAB)
This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.



This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to caordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This Is a very time-sensitive
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
Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoathly (assuming Tuesday
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
success. | have not yet seen the resuits, but as saon as we have them it is crucial
that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to cohort positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

I'have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Traclng

Based on the limited infarmation we've received it's most likely that the virus
was introduced by staff, The spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods
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
turning positive is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to he over.

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
Medical Director, Occupaticnal Health at UNC Health Gare
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 4:03 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Sheriff Charles Blackwoad

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Woad; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes; Howard Blough; Grover,
Joseph M

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

I have got together with the nurse and Lt. Blaugh. We are in agreeance that it will not be possible to do both the MAB
and mass PCR testing. We will need ta schedule another day and time for PCR testing. One thought is can the PCR
testing be done during the evening hours? There is not as much activity going on with the staff/nurse, as in we could be
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

To: Katie Spear <ksp gov>; Sheriff Charles csblack ountync.gov>
Cc: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 721 jailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart

<gstewar gov>; Sarah Manfred fred gov>; Margaret Campbell

gov>; Jamie Sykes <j;
<joseph_graver@med.unc.edu>
Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

gov>; Grover, Joseph M

Thank you for that feedback. I can certainly understand their hesitation, particularly given the historical

iti itted against vulnerabl lations by medical ionals. And I certainly don't want anyone
to feel coerced in any way. It's just hard to see people trn down potentially life-saving treatment that I would
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
the new posirives.

Thanks for considering,

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hersteila

Medical Director, Orange County Health Depariment
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Katie Spear

Sent; Wednesday, October 20, 2021 12:22:02 PM

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

We just added another ane. So maybe they will have changed minds tonight...

From: Erica Pettigrew <gpettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:41 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Ce: Tim Jones <tilones@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjallmedical.com; Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Rabyn Wood <nwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred fred@or ntync.gov>; Marg Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

Hi Katie -

Only 821! That's shocking. Out of 85 o so cligible people, only 8 wanted this life saving medication...I'm
worried that this flyer perhaps didn't convey how important it can be. The appointments at UNC are typically
filling up like gangbusters. What sorts of reasons did you hear about peaple declining it? How can we increase
uptake? Perhaps since we were planning on a big team there all day tomomrow we could do some medical talks
so that people can understand. Open to any ideas, Feeling bad that we have a big team volunteering.

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

Ce: Tim lones; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

We have 8 incarcerated that wants the MAB tomarrow. One of those is questionable so we added him to ask questions
and hopefully agree.

Thank you,
Captain Spear

From: Katie Spear
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:57 PM
To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@arangecountync,gov>; Erica Pettigrew
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<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Cc: Tim Jones <tijo gov>; 721 jailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco

| gov>; Robyn Waod < -ountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@grangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>
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

Cc: Tim Jones <tijones@arangecountync.gav>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; 2212@shpjailmedical.com;
Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart

<gstewart @orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

I'm fine with this

Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19, 2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <gpettigrew@orangecountync.gay> wrote:

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

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41.09 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ce: Tim lones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: quick question - flyer

Hi everyone -

Any cancerns about this flyer? Hoping this can serve to get our info disseminated to everyone

today. Alsa trying to figure out how to get a Spanish version.

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

That sounds great. We'll gonna come tomarrow morning to strategize. Probably around 9:30.

Hoping that someone from jail leadership might be around at some point to talk through
options. It aiso seems like UNC will be able to find some folks to come Thursday for a more
thorough MAB run.

Also, | know Capt Spear's working hard on cohorting the new positives. Some key tips:

- best practice is keeping only pasitives with positives - this is most important first step

- good news is that you can put recently previously positive with new positives (so that list of 23

can be housed with these new 13 - that's much better than mixing them with anyone else)

- if there's a way to then figure out who was close contacts with those pasitives and keep them
quarantined together {but away fram positives, away from new intakes, and away from any

person who is not a close contact), that's ideal.

We're looking forward to helping mare tomorrow. it's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you all

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

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 721 2@shpjailmedical.com; Michael Defranco; Robyn Weod; Quintana
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

Sent fram my iPhone

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

Qbstacles we'd have to overcome for Thursday {doable but | need help):

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

3) And, of caurse, the sooner the treatment the better.

How about this: Could we have a couple of us come by tamorrow (Tuesday) for a
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

Sent: Monday, Octaober 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

Tao: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Ce: Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Monoclonal antibodies (MAB]

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very ti itive
intervention.

We are all very much aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuesday is vary
short notice considering we do not yet have the results back as o who has
tested positive from the last round of testing. All that being said Thursday seems
reasonable for everyane invalved, including but not limited to the folks at SHP.

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
the aiteria you get it, if you don't you don't. This also prevents an inmate from
feeling like they have ta accept the treatment.

We need logistical help from jail leadership to gize how to get this
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

Out space has always heen limited and we have to wark within those limitations.
Going to the PODS to administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not
feasihlz. Raving thase who elect to have the treatment come into the baoking
area and then be housed in the large holding area is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be cansenting to vs turning
down.

Draft the “one pager” you are comfortable with and we will review and approve.
Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the jall. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it

shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

| cannot answer to what SHP will or will not agree to but we can certainly explain
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

I have not heard further about the testing protocol cancerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

1will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don’t know what cancerns were
voiced last week. If it's about SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send you
their protocols

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

Twill get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request was made as to
who all had worked, every rotation had cycled through. So al! squads had worked
prior to our being in outbreak status. All staff who tested positive were
quarantined for 10 days and returned to wark after that period and nao fever for
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
symptomatic or positive peopie. How can we imprave this? Many of our nursing
homes appreciated a set call time each day. If there is a better way for us to
communicate during your busy work days, please let us know.

I'm not sure what communication has not been werking. | have checked with
Major Jones and Captain Spear, neither of them lave been called or emailed
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

Again, pleasaknow we are working as hard as we can tg address the outbreak and we
are most concernad about bringing Lhis all 1o a successiul conclusion.

Raspectiuily.

Sheriff Blackwoed

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@grangecountync.gov>
Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM
To: Sheriff Charles Blackwoad <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones

ij ountync.gov>; Katie Spear <k ountync.gov>;
7212@shpijaiimedical.com
Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood
<rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
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

We need logistical help from Jall leadership to strategize how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Wha can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoathly (assuming Tuesday
works)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but
itis not easy since we have clinical shifts.

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
QCHD on the jail outbreak. Daily contact is the minimum public health
expectation during an outbreak, even if it's a message that there are no new
symptomatic or positive peaple. How can we imprave this? Many of our nursing
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

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michae DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes; Grover, loseph M

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

Thank you for that feedback. [ can certainly understand their hesitation, partcularly given the historical
atrocities committed against vulnerable 1 by medical p ionals. And | certainly don't want anyone
(o feel coerced in any way. [€'s just hard to see people turn down potentially life-saving treatment thac I would
be lining my mom or my brother up first thing if they needed it, you know?

We do what we can do, offer it and go from there.

Sarah on our team had a great idea - since weekly testing is the recommendarion in an outbreak setting, shall we
do another testing event tomorrow concurrent with the few MABs? How hard would it be to pull chat off, given
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

To: Erica Pettigrew; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

Cc: Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamle Sykes

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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Bl gov>
Ce: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 721 jailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<qgstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred -.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsyk gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer
Hi Katie -
Only 82!! That's shocking. Out of 85 or so eligible people, only 8 wanted this life xaving medication...I'm

worried that this flyer perhaps didn't convey how important it can be. The appointments at UNC are typically
l

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
Medical Direclor, Crange County Health Department

Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Profassor, University of North Carolina

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:23:55 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood; Erica Pettigrew

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject; RE: quick question - flyer

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
To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <cshlackwaod@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Tim Jones <tilones@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco

<mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood < d Jntync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart @orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred fred . gov>; Marg: Campbell

me gov>; Jamie Sykes <] £OV>
Sublect: RE: quick question - flyer

1 will make copies and pass them out along with numbers an who wants the antigen. ) will get those emailed to you all
tomarrow around noon time. Thank you all for your help!!

Captain Spear

From: Sheriff Charles Black d <csbl. d gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM
To: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Tim Jones <tijo ountync.gov>; Katie Spear gov>; 721 ical.com;
Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanf .gov>; Margaret Campbell

<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamle Sykes <|sykes@orangecountync.gov>
Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

I'm fine with this

Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19,2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <gpetticrew @orangecountync.gav> wrote:

Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Pettigrew, MD, UD, MPH  she/her/hers/slla

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistan! Prafessor, University of North Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41:09 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shplailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: quick question - flyer

Hi everyone -

Any cancerns about this flyer? Hoping this can serve to get our info disseminated to everyone
today. Also trying to figure out how ta get a Spanish version.

Thanksl!
Erica

Erica Peltigrew, MD, 4D, MPH  shether/hers/ella

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

Ce: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covld outbreak jail updates - important

That sounds great. We'll gonna come tomorrow morning to strategize. Probably around 9:30.
Hoping that someane from Jail leadership might be around at some point to talk through
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

- goad news Is that you can put recently previously positive with new positives (so that list of 23
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

Come Tuesday and determine what measures you can work with. We wilf call SHP and see they
can have you some help on Thursday. Hopefully we can make this work for everyone

Sheriff 8
Sent from my iPhone

On QOct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
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

3) And, of course, the sooner the treatment the better,

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

Medical Diractor, Qrange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNG Healith Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, Octcber 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

Ta: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - impartant

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
short natice considering we do not yet have the results back as to wha has
tested positive from the last round of testing. All that being said Thursday seems
reasonable for everyone involved, including but not limited to the folks at SHP.

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
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the criteria you get it, it you don’t you den't. This also prevents an inmate from
feeling like they have to accept the treatment.

We need lagistical help from jail leadership to strategize how to get this
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

Our space has always been limited and we have to work within thase limitations.
Going to the PQDS to administer snd observe the inmate for an hour is not
feasible, Having those who elect to have the treatment come into the baoking
area and then be heused in the large holding area is the best approach.

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

I cannot answer to what SHP will or will not agree to but we can certainly explain
the situation and see what they say.

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a
success. | have not yet seen the results, but as saon as we have them it is crucial
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
vaiced last week. If it's about SHP's Lesting, 1 would have to ask them to send you
their protocals.

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

1 will get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request was made as 1o
who all had worked, every rotation had cycled through. So all squads had worked
prior to out being in outbreak status. All staff who tested positive were
quarantined for 10 days and returned to wark after that period and no faver far
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

I'm nat sure what communication has not been working. | have checked with
Major Jones and Captain Spear, neither of thern have been called or emailed
about this matter.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be
called or emailed immediately (within that day) in order to move quickly with
mitigation strategies.

We have not had any results of positive cases,

Again, please know we 3re working as hard as we can to address the outbreak and we
are most concernad ahout bringing this all ta a successful conclusion.

Respectiully,

Sheriff Blackwood

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@arangecountync.gov>
Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

Ta: Sheriff Charles Bl <csblackwood@c ync.gov>; Tim Jones
<t ountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear -ountync.gov>;

7212@shpjallmedical.com
Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Rabyn Wood
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

This life g medicine cuts hospit need by 80%.

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
COVID pasitive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

We need logi | help from jail | to ize how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday
works)? Also, is it passible for the SHP medical director to be an site for this?
Dr. Graver (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but
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
success. | have nat yet seen the results, but as saon as we have them it Is crucial
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
Robyn s one of our excellent clinical COVID nurses and Is the official liaison from
OCHD on the Jail outbreak. Daily contact is the minimum public health
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  shevher/hers/ella
Medical Direclor, Orange County Health Depariment
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care

Assistant Professor, Univarsity of North Caralina
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Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, Octaber 20, 2021 12:22 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ca Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: quick question - fiyer

We just added another one. So maybe they will have changed minds tonight...

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:41 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles gov>
Cc: Tim Jones <tij; nc.gov>; 721 ical.com; Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred d gov>; g Campbel!

mc gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsyk gov>

Subject: Re: qulck question - flyer
Hi Katie -

Only 8?!! Thar's shocking. Out of 85 or so eligible people, only 8 wanted this life saving medication...I'm
worried that this flyer perhaps didn't convey how important it can be, The appointments at UNC are typically
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

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwoad; Erica Pettigrew .

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212@shplailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Rabyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

We have 8 incarcerated that wants the MAB tomorrow. One of those is questionable so we added him to ask questions
and hopefully agree.

Thank you ,
Captain Spear

From: Katle Spear

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:57 PM

To: Sheriff Charles d <cshlac angecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@arangecountync.gov>

Cc: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Woad <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred fred L EOV>; g Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

1 will make copies and pass them out along with numbers on wha wants the antigen. | will get those emailed to you all
tomorrow araund noon time. Thank you all for your help!!

Captaln Spear

Fram: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Ce: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear intync.gov>; 721 dical.com;
Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Robyn Woad <rwood@agrangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@arangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

I'm fine with this
Sheriff B

Sent trom my iPhone

Ou Oct 19,2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <epetigrew @orangecountyne.gov> wrote:

Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Patligrew, MD, D, MPH she/her/hers/slia

Medical Director, Orange County Health Depariment
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNG Health Care
Assistant Professar, University of Narth Caralina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41:09 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/sila
Medical Director, Orange County Heallh Department

Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 7:53 PM

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

- best practice is keeping only positives with pasitives - this is most important first step

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

We're looking forward to helping mare tomorrow. It's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you all
have added constraints about codefendants, space, etc.

Dr.P

Erica Petligrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hars/ella

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

see clinic patients that Thursday afternaon, | asked Dr. Grover and Dr. Woh! if

they can volunteer time but they are also busy dlinically). Can SHP provide one?

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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  shesher/hers/elia

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

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shplailmedical.com

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

tested positive from the fast round of testing. All that being said Thursday seems
reasonable for everyane involved, including but not fimited to the folks at SHP.

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
the criteria you get it, if you don’t you don't. This alsa prevents sn inmate from

feeling Jike they have to accept the treatment.

We need logistical help from jail ieadership to strategize how to get this

medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.

Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly {assuming Tuesday

works)? Also, is it possible far the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but

it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Qur space has always been limited and we have to work within those fimitations.

Going to the PODS to administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not

teasible. Having those who elect to have the treatment come inta the booking

area and then be housed in the large halding araa is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to

everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning

down.

Draft the “arie pager” you are comfortable with and we will review and approve,

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
success. [ have not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it is crucial
that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to cohort positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

I have not heard further about the testing protocot concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

1 will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don't know what concerns were
voiced last week. If it's about SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send you
their pratocals.

Outhreak Investigation and Contact Tracin,
Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus
was introduced by staff. The spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods

supports the sep. ion that the infection was pr I i across
pods by staff.

To date, no meaningful contact tracing-has been done by the health department
due to lack of requested information like guard schedules. No staff member has
been quarantined. Please remember that quarantining those at highest risk of
turning positive is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be over.

I will get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request was made as to
who alt had worked, every rotation had cycled through. So all squads had worked
priar ta our being in outhresk status, All staff who tested positive were
quarantined for 10 days and returned to work after that period and no fever for
3 days.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emaiis answered.
Rabyn is one of our excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from
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
communicate during your busy work days, please et us know.

I'm not sure what comrnunication has not been warking. I have checked with
hajor Jones and Captat Spear, neither of them have been called or emailed
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

Apain, please know we are working 3s hard as we ¢an to addrass the oulbreak and we
ara most concerned about bringing this all to 3 succassful canclusion.

Respectfully,

Sheriff Blackwood

From: Erica ig <epettig .EOV>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles csblack d@or gov>; Tim lones

<tiio intync.gov>; Katie Spear <ks ountync.gov>;
7212@shpjailmedical.com

Cc: Michael Defranco <mdefr: a .g0V>; Rabyn Wood

< d ountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewar -ountync.gov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred @ .gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Hi everyone -

Here are the fatest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so long | tried to
bold the things we need quick answers to. Thanks.

Monaclonal antibodies (MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coardinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAI
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail I ? This is a very ti itive
intervention.



Just about every incarcerated person is eligibie for this because it can be used for
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
works)? Also, is it passible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
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

To date, no meaningful contact tracing has been dane by the heaith department
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

Assistant Profassar, University of Narth Carolina

Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:46 AM

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

Their reason was this is a new thing and they didn’t want to be “test subjects”.

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:41 AM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles B

Cc: Tim Jones <tlJ gov>; 721 [ l.com; Michael DeFranco

<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart

<qstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsyl .goV>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

Hi Katie -

Only 871! Thar's shocking. Out of 85 or so eligible people, only 8 wanted this life saving medication...I'm
worried that this flyer perhaps didn't convey how important it can be. The appointments at UNC are typically
filling up like gangbusters. What sorts of reasons did you hear about people declining it? How can we increase
uptake? Perhaps since we were planning on a big team there all day tomorrow we could do some medical talks
5o that people can understand. Open 1o any ideas. Feeling bad that we have a big team volunteering.

Thanks
Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/har/hers/ella

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

To: Sheriff Charles <cshlack gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Cc: Tim Jones gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael Defranco

<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@arangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@arangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred @orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mecampbell@orangecountync.gov>; famle Sykes <jsvkes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

{ will make copies and pass them out along with numbers on who wants the antigen. [ will get those emailed to you all
tomorrow around noon time. Thank you all for your helpll

Captain Spear

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew <gj igrew@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@oran gov>; 721. il l.com;
Michae! Defranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rweod@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsvkes@orangecountync.gov>

Sub]ect: Re: quick question - flyer

T'm fine with this
Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19, 2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Petdgrew <gpeltiorew @orangecountync.gov> wrote:

Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH sha/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Meadical Director, Occupational Health at UNG Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41:09 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
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

Erica Pettigrew, MO, D, MPH  she/her/hers/olla

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

Subject: Re: covid outhreak jail updates - impartant

That sounds great. We'll gonna come tomorrow morning to strategize. Prabably around 9:30.
Hoping that someone from jail leadership might be around at same point to talk through
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

-if there's a way to then figure out who was close contacts with those positives and keep them
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

or.P

Erica Pettigrew, M, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

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

Ce: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Michae! DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana

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

On Oct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Eri!:a Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
wrote:

Thank you for these answers, Sheriff. | know Tuesday is very soon. For context,
this ball got rolling aver the weekend but UNC, OCHD and EMS were all able to
scramble and find volunteers to help on that day.

We certainly need to find a day that works for all teams involved. One thing to
clarify - sorting out the new positives won't actuaily have much impact on MAB
because people are eligible whether they are positive or just exposed.

Obstacles we'd have to overcome for Thursday (doable but | need help):

1) We need a physician on site (I'm only a part time dac with the health dept - |
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
sense of how many people are interested, help with any coharting issues, and
then (assuming we can overcome #1 and #2) we can plan for full event
Thursday?

Thanks for considering.
Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/slla

Medical Director, Orange County Health Oepartment
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212 @shpijailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Woad; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Monaoclonal antibodies (MAB)

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

We are all very much aware that this is time sensitive, howeve:r Tuesday is very
short notice considering we do not yet have the results back as to who has
tasted positive fram the last round of testing. A that being said Thursday seems
reasonable for everyone invalved, Including but not limited to the folks at SHP.

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
the criteria you get L, if you don’t you don't. This also prevents an inmate from
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

Our space has always been limited and we have to work within those limitations.
Going to the PODS to adiminister and observe the inmate for an hour is not
feasible. Having those who elect to have the treatment came into the hooking
area and then be haused in the large holding area is the best approach.

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

I have nat heard further abaut the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

1will have ta defer to Quintana on this as | don’t know what concerns were
voiced last week. If it's about SHP's testing, 1 would have to ask them to send you
their protoc

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
been quarantined, Please remember that quarantining those at highest risk of
turning positive is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be over.

1 will get you a copy of the scheduie but by the tine the request was made as ta
who all had waorked, every ratation had cycled through. 5o all squads had worked
prior to our heing in outbreak status. All staff who tested positive were
quarantinad for 10 days and returned to work aftar that period and na fever for
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



I'm nat sure what communication has not been working, | have checked with
Major Jones and Captain Spear, neither of them have been called or emailed

about Lhis matter,

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

Again. please know we ar2 woiking as hard 35 we can (o address the outbreak and we
are most concernad about bringing this all to a succassiul canclusion.

Respectiully,

Sheriff 8lackwoed

From: Erica igrew <epetti ountync.gov>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

Ta: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijone: gov>; Katie Spear angecountync.gov>;
7212@shpjailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranca@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Waod
<rwood@aorangecountyne.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.£ov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@grangecountync.gov>

Suhbject: covid outbreak jail updates - important

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
medicine to all those who want It. Space was really tight last week. Other jails
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
it is nat easy since we have clinical shifts.

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
Who can get us a copy of the rapld antlgen testing protocols asap?

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus
was introduced by staff. The spread of COVID into distinct, non-mixing pods
supparts the separate conclusion that the infection was promulgated across
pods by staff.

To date, no meaningful contact tracing has been done by the health department
due to lack of requested information like guard schedules. No staff member has
beeng ined. Please r ber that q ining thase at highest risk of
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

To: Katie Spear; Sheqiff Charles Blackwood

Ca: Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael Defranco; Robyn Woad; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

Hi Kate -

Only 82! Thar's shocking. Out of 85 or so eligible people, only 8 wanted this life saving medicadion...'m
worried that this flyer perhaps didn't convey how important it can be. The appointments at UNC are typically
filling up like gangbusters. What sorts of reasons did you hear about people declining it? How can we increase
uptake? Perhaps since we were planning on a big team there 4l day tomorrow we could do some medical talks
so that people can understand. Open to any ideas. Feeling bad that we have a big team volunteering.

Thanks
Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH shether/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupalional Heallh at UNG Health Care
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

We have 8 Incarcerated that wants the MAB tomorrow. One of those is questionable so we added him to ask questions
and hopefully agree.

Thank you ,
Captain Spear

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:57 PM

To: Sheriff Charles d <cst d gov>; Erica Pettig!

<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Tim Jones <tijs ountync.gov>; 721, pj ical.com; Michael DeFranco

<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Waod <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart

<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred gOV>; g Campbell
gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsy gov>

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer




I will make copies and pass them out along with numbers on who wants the antigen, | will get those emailed to you all

tomorrow around noon time. Thank you all for your help!!

Captain Spear

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM
To: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountyne.gov:

Cc: Tim Jones <tij vne.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; 7212 @shpiallmedical.com;
Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart

<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbelt
<mcampbeil@qgrangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

I'm fine with this

Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19,2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <epettisrew @orangecountyne.ov> wrote:

Spanish version, hat off the presses

Erica Petligrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/herhers/ella

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

today. Also trying to figure out haw to get a Spanish version,
Thanks!

Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JO, MPH she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department

Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Garolina.

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 7:59 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim Jones; Katje Spear; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - impartant

That sounds great. We'll gonna come tomorrow morning to strategize. Probably around 9:30,

Hoping that someone from jail leadership might be around at some point to tatk through
options. It also seems like UNC will be able to find some folks to come Thursday for a more
thorough MAB run.

Also, | know Capt Spear's warking hard on coharting the new positives. Some key tips:

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

Ce: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212 @shpijsilmedical.com; Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
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
see clinic patients that Thursday afternoon, | asked Dr. Grover and Dr, Wohl if
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/olia
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

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212 @shplaiimedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Woad; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Monoclonal antibodies (MAB)

This life ing medi cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very time-sensitive
intervention.

We are all very much aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuasday is very
short notice cansidering we do not yet have the results back as to who has
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
criteria as wauld be used for any other sagment of the population. If you meet
the criteria yau get it, if you don’t you den’t. This also prevents an inmate from
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
Geing to the PODS to administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not
feasible. Having those who elect to have the treatment come into the baoking
area and then he housed in tha large holding area is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be cansenting to vs turning
down.

Draft the “one pager” you are cotnfortable with and we will review and apprave,

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

cannat answer to what SHP wilt or will not agree to but we can certainly explain
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

H



| will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don’t know what concerns were
voiced last week, If it’s about SHP's testing, [ would have to ask them to send you
their protocols.

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus
was introduced by staff. The spread of COVID Into distinct, non-mixing pods
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

| will get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request was made as to
wha all had worked, every rotation had cycled through. So all squads had worked
prior to our being in outbreak status. Afl staff who testad positive vere
quarantined far 10 days and returned to work after that period and no faver for
3 days

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered.
Robyn is one of our excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from
OCHD on the jail outbreak. Daily contact Is the minimum public health
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

¥m not sure what communication has not been warking. | have checkad with
Major Jones and Captain Spear, neither of then have oeen called or emaited
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

Again, please know we are working 2z hard as we can to address the outbreak and we
4ra maost concerned about bringing this all to 3 succassful condusion.

Respectiully,

Sheriff Blackwood

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a
success. | have nat yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it is crucial
that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to cohort positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocal concerns volced last week.
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
turning pasitive is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be over.

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
homes appreciated a set call time each day. If there Is a better way for us to
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
work her on ing this k out.

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

From: Erica Pettigi epettil .gov>

Sent: Sunday, Octaber 17,2021 9:34 PM

Tao: Sheriff Charles Blackwaod <csblackwood@arangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tilones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>;
7212@shpiailmedical.com

Ce: Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood
<rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mecampbell@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: covid outbreak jall updates - important

Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so long | tried to
bold the things we need quick answers to. Thanks.

Manaclgnal antibodies (MAB)

This life ing medicine cuts hospi ion need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jall leadership? This is a very time-sensitive
intervention.

Just about every incarcerated person Is ellgible for this because it can be used for
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

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be wiiling to send back to
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

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 11:24 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwaod; Erica Pettigrew

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

We have 8 incarcerated that wants the MAB tomorraw. One of those is questionable so we added him to ask questions
and hopefully agree.

Thank you,
Captain Spear

Fram: Katie Spear
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:57 PM

To: Sheriff Charles k d gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
€c: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 721 jailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco
mdefran gov>; Robyn Wood <r gov>; Quintana Stewart
<qstewart@orangecountyne,gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred NC.gOV>; B Campbell
mc gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsy ync.gov>

Subect: RE: quick question - flyer

1 will make copies and pass them out along with numbers on who wants the antigen. | will get those emailed to you all
tomarrow around noon time. Thank you all for your helpll

Captain Spear

From: Sheriff Charles k d <cshlack gov>
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew -angecountync.gov>
Cc: Tim Jones <tijor ountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear gov>; 721 iail al.com;
Michael DeFranco <mdef ountync.gov>; Robyn Wood .gov>; Quintana Stewart

<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <|svkes@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

I'm fine with this

Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19, 2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <gpettigrew @orangecountyue. gov> wrote:



Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Protessor, University of North Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41:09 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranca; Robyn Wood; Quintana
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/slia

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

Ce: Tim Jones; Katle Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outhreak jail updates - important

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

We're looking forward tc helping mere tomorrow. It's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you alt
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

Obstacles we'd have to overcome for Thursday {doable but [ need help):

1) We need a physician on site (I'm only a part time doc with the heaith dept - |
see clinic patients that Thursday afternaon, | asked Dr. Grover and Dr. Wohl if
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
sense of how many people are interested, heip with any cohorting issues, and
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
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Cara
Assistant Professor, University of North Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Monday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpiailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Moanaclonal antibadies (MAB}

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

We are afl very much aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuesday is very
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

Quintana and | have spoken about this and agreed that we wottld use the same
criteria as would be used far any other segment of the population, If you meet
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
have brought it directly to pods. We Just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday
works)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be an site for this?
Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but
it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Qur space has always been limited and we have to work within those limitations.
Going Lo the PODS to administer and observe the inmate for 3 hour is not
feasible. Having those who elect to have the treatment come into the booking
srea and then be haused in the large holding area Is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning
down.

Draft the "one pager” you are comfortable with and we will review and approve.

Ideally this medicine should be pravided and administered by the medical staff
of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

| cannot answer to what SHP will or will not agree Lo but we can certainly explain
the situation and see what they say.

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a
success. | have not yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it Is crucial
that jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to cohart positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protacols asap?

I will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don't know what concerns were
voiced last week. if it's about SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send you
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

| will get you a copy of the schedule but by the tinie the request was made as fo
who all had worked, 2very rotation had cycled through. So all squads had warked
prior ta our being In outbs eak status. All staff who tested positive were
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
Major Jones and Captain Spear, acither of thein have been called or emailed
about this matter.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be
called or emailed immediately (within that day} in order to move quickly with
mitigation strategies.

We have nat had any results of positive cases.

Again, please know we are warking as hard as we can to address the outbraak and we
ara maost cancerned about bringing this all to a successful canclusion.

Respectiully,

Sherlff Blackwood

From: Erlca Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Bl d d@ ntync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gove;
7212@shpijailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountyne.gov>; Robyn Waod
<rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbel!
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

Monoclonal antibodies {MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail | hip? This is a very ti ity
intervention.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID positive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

We need logistical help from jail | to strategize how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Wha can pregame wlth us to have Tuesday go smoothly {assuming Tuesday
works)? Also, Is it possible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to caordinate schedules but
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

Ideally this medicine should be provided and ini d by the medical staff
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

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calis and emails answered.
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH  she/herthers/ella
Medical Dirsctor, Orange Gounly Health Department
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

1 will make copies and pass thern out along with numbers on who wants the antigen. ! will get those emailed to you all
tomorrow around noon time. Thank you all for your help!!

Captain Spear

From: Sheiff Charles Black d di gov:
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM
To: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Cc: Tim Jones <tijones@arangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear intync.gov>; 721 jai ical.com;
Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<qstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
| gov>; famie Sykes <ji gov:
Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

I'm fine with this
Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Ocr 19,2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew @oranaecountync.gov> wrote:

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

Cc: Tim Jones; Katle Spear; 7212@shplailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
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

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com; Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Camphell; Jamie Sykes

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

- best practice is keeping only positives with positives - tl'ﬁs is most important first step

- good news s that you can put recently previously positive with new positives {so that list of 23
can be housed with these new 13 - that's much better than mixing them with anyone else}



- if there's a way to then figure out who was close contacts with thase positives and keep them
quarantined together {but away from positives, away from new intakes, and away from any
person wha is not a close contact), that's ldeal,

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

Ce: Tim lones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael Defranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
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

Thank you far these answers, Sheriff. | know Tuesday is very soon. Far context,
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

How abaout this: Could we have a couple of us come by tomorrow {Tuesday) for a
dry run and strategy session? We could do a few administrations, get a better
sense of how many people are interested, help with any cohorting issues, and
then (assuming we can overcomne #1 and #2) we can plan for full event
Thursday?

Thanks for considering.

Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH shesher/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Depariment
Medical Director, Occupational Health al UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, Universily of North Caralina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim lones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpiailmedical.com

Ce: Michael Defranco; Rabyn Woad; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
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Campbell; Jamie Sykes
Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Manoclonal antibodies (MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very ti
intervention.

We are ail very much aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuasday is very
short notice considering we do not yet have the results back as Lo who has
tested positive from the last round of testing. All that being said Thursday seems
reasonable tor everyane involved, including but not limited to the folks at SHP.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID posltive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spoken about this and agreed that we would use the same
criteria as wauld be used for any other segment of the population, It you meet
the criteria you get it, if you don’t you don't. This also prevents an inmate lrom
feeling like they have to accept the treatment

We need logistical help from jail | to strategize how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Whao can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday
works)? Also, Is it passible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but
it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Our space has ahvays been limited and we have to work within those limitations.
Going to the PODS to administer and observa the inmate for an hour is not
5

feasible. Having those who elect to have the Leatment come into the booking
area and then be housad in the large holding area is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning
down.

Draft the “one pager” you are comlortable with and we will reviews and approve

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

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass tessing event last Thursday a
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

| wilt have to defer to Quintana on this as | dan’t know what concerns were
voiced last week. I it's about SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send you
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

| will get you a copy of the schadule but by the time the request was made as to
who all had worked, every rotation had cycled through. 5o all squads had worked
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
communicate during your busy work days, please let us know,

' not sure what communication has not been working. | have checked with
Major Jones and Captain Spear, neither of them have beern called or emailed
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

Agzain, please know we are working as hard as vee can to address the autbreak and we
are mosk concerned about bringing this 30l to a successtul canchysion

Respectfuily,

Sheriff Blackwood

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Sunday, Octaber 17, 2021 9:34 PM
To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones

i gov>; Katie Spear S0V>;
7212@shpjailmedical.com
Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Waod
<rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewart@orangecountync.gov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountyne.gov>; Margaret Campbeil
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
intervention,

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

Thank you to everyone who heiped make the mass testing event last Thursday a
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
: Erica Pettigrew
Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical. com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Woad;
Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes
Subject: Re: quick question - flyer
Attachments: ogjailMAB_spanish.docx

I'm fine with this
Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19,2021, at 11:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew @orangecountync.gov> wrote:

Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care
Assistant Professor, Universily of Narth Carolina

From: Erica Pettigrew

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 8:41:09 AM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Cc: Tim Jones; Katle Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
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

Erica Peftigraw, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/elia

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupatlonal Health at UNC Health Care
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

Subject: Re: covid outbreak Jail updates - important

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

- good news Is that you can put recently previously positive with new positives (so that list of 23
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
Assistant Professor, University of Notth Carolina

From: Sherlff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Manday, October 18, 2021 2:23:11 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew

Cc: Tim lones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Come Tuesday and determine what measures you can work with. We will cali SHP and see they
can have you some help on Thursday. Hopefully we can make this work for everyone

Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
wrote:

Thank you for these answers, Sheriff. | know Tuesday is very soon. Far context,
this ball got rolling over the weekend but UNC, OCHD and EMS were all able to
scrambte and find volunteers to help an that day.

We certainly need to find a day that warks for ali teams involved. One thing to
clarify - sorting out the new positives won't actually have much impact on MAB
because people are eligibie whether they are positive or just exposed.

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

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwoad

Sent: Manday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim Jones; Katle Spear; 7212@shpjallmedical.com

Ce: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: cavid outbreak jail updates - important

Monaclonal antibodies (MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Daes that work for jail leadership? This is a very ti ive
intervention.




We are all very much aware that this is lime sensitive, however Tuesday is very
short notice considering we do not vet have the results back as to who has
tested positive fram the last round of testing. All that being said Thursday seems
reasonable for everyane involved, including but not fimited to the folks at SHP,

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID positive people as well as negative peaple who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spoken about this and agreed that we would use the same
criteria as would be used for any other segment of the population. If you meat
the criteria you get it, if you den’t you don’t. This alsa prevents an inmate from
feeling like they have to accept the treatient.

We need logistical help from jail leadership to strateglze how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight fast week. Other jails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday
works)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medical director to be an site for this?
Dr. Grover {(med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to coordinate schedules but
it is not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Qur space has always been limited and we have to work within thosz limitations.
Going to the PODS to administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not
feasible, Having those who elect 1o have the treatment come into the gooking
area and then be noused in the large holding area is the best approach.

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning
down.

Draftthe "ane pager” you are comfortable with and we will review and approve,

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

1 cannot answer to what SHP will ar wilt not agree o but we can certainly explain
the situation and see what they say.

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a
success. | have not et seen the results, but as soon as we have them it is crucial
that jail and medical staff wark closely with Robyn to cohort pasitives away
from negatlves, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protacols asap?

1will have to defer to Quintana on this as | don’t know what concerns were
voiced last week, If it's ahout SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send you
thair protocols.

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

Lwill get you 2 capy of the schedule but by the time the request was made 35 to
who all had worked, every rotation had cycled through. $o all squads had worked
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priar to our being in cutbreak status, All staff whao tested positive were
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
homes appreciated a set cail time each day. if there is a better way for us to
communicate during your busy wark days, please let us know.

I'm not sure wrat comemunication has not been working. | have checked with
Major Jones and Captain Spear, neither of them have been calted or emailed
about this matter.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be
called or emailed immediately (within that day) in order to move quickly with
mitigation strategies.

We have net had any results of positive cases.

Again, please know we are working as hard 3s we can to address the outbreak and we
are most concerned shout bringing this afl 1o a successful conclusion.

Respectfully,

Sheniff Blackwood

From: Erica gl pettigl gov>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM
To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood gov>; Tim Jones
ij gov>; Katie Spear <ksps gov>;
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7212@shpjailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFrance <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Rabyn Wood
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

Manoclonaf antibodies (MAB)

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

We need | help from jail leadership to ize how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight last week. Other jails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly {assuming Tuesday
works})? Also, is it passible for the SHP medical director to be on site for this?
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
that Jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn ta cohort positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

Outbreak [nvestigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've received it's most likely that the virus
was introduced by staff, The spread of COVID into dlstinct, non-mixing pods
supports the separate conclusion that the infection was promulgated across
pods by staff.

To date, no meaningful contact tracing has been done by the health department
due to lack of req d inf ion like guard schedules. No staff member has
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
Medical Directar, Occupalional Health at UNC Health Care

Assistant Professor, University of Narth Carolina

Jennifer Galassi

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 2:07 PM

To: Sarah Manfred; Erica Pettigrew; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Ca Tim Jones; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood: Quintana
Stewart; Margaret Campbell; Jamie Sykes; Howard Blough; Grover, Joseph M; Katie
Benedyk

Subject: RE: Testing

If it would help we can do like last time. The nurse and myself can be in the lobby to test staff. | can do paperwork while
the nurse does the actual swabbing.

Spear
From: Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 1:50 PM
To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles

gov>
Cc: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 7212@st com; Michael Defranco
or gov>; Robyn Wood gov>; Quintana Stewart

<qstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell <mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes
<jsykes@orangecountync.gov>; Howard Blough <hblough@orangecountync.gov>; Grover, Joseph M
<joseph_grover@med.unc.edu>; Katie Benedyk <kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: RE: Testing

Yes, we certainly can. Since we will only be one team, it would be more efficient if we could get a list of staff
who intend to test with full names and dates of birth by Monday.

Sarah T. Manfred MPH, RN, BSN, PCCN
Communicable Disease Nurse

Orange County Health Department
smanfred@arangecountync.gov
919.245.2386

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 1:35 PM

To: Sarah Manfred <smanf - gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@arangecountync.gov>; Sheriff
Charles d <csblack d: gov>
Ce: Tim lanes <tij ountync.gov>; 721 dical.com; Michael DeFranco

<mdefi ountync.gov>; Robyn Waod <r ountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell <mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes
<jsvkes@orangecountync.gov>; Howard Blough <hblough@orangecauntync.gov>; Grover, Joseph M
<jgseph_grover@med.unc.edu>; Katie Benedyk <kbenedyk@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: Testing

Staff included right...

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Qutlook for Andioid

From: Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 1:30:53 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear tync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew <epettigr ountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles
Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpiailmedical.com <72 L2@shpjailmedical.com>; Michae!
Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell <mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes
<jsvkes@orangecountync.gov>; Howard Blough <hblough@orangecountync.gov>; Grover, Joseph M

<loseph grover@med.unc.edu>; Katle Benedyk <kbenedyk@arangecountync.gov>

Subject: Testing

Dear Captain Spear,

Katie (paramedic/vaccinator) and | {communicable disease nurse) can test on Tuesday 10/26 around 9

am. We prefer the morning because we have to place requisitions for each sample, match the requisitions
with the specimens and drive them ourselves to the state lab in Raleigh. We’d only need one officer to
accompany us to each pod for testing and hope to be done within 2 hours as we do not need to test anyone
who has already tested positive during this outbreak.

Thank you.
Best,

Sarah 7. Manfred MPH, RN, BSN, PCCN
Communicable Disease Nurse

Orange County Health Department
smanfred@orangecountync.gov
919.245.2386

From: Katle Spear <kspear@arangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 4:03 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood

<cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>

Cc: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountyne.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco

<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Waod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart

<gstewart@aq) ecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred @orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
bell ountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <j gov>; Howard Blough

<hblough@orangecountync.gov>; Grover, loseph M <[oseph grover@med.unc.edu>

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

| have got together with the nurse and Lt. Blough. We are In agreeance that it will not be posslble to do both the MAB
and mass PCR testing. We will need to schedule another day and time for PCR testing. One thought is can the PCR
testing be done during the evening hours? There is not as much activity going on with the staff/nurse, as in we could be
a little more efficlent and not have to rush through, making sure all paperwork and samples are labeled correctly. Just a
thought.
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Thank you,
Captain Spear

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2021 1:57 PM

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Black d <csblack | ountync.gov>
Cc: Tim lones <tij gov>; 721 jail ical.com; Michael DeFranco

ountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwoad angecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecauntync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecauntync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>; Graver, Joseph M
<ioseph_grover@med.unc.edu>
Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

Thank you for that feedback. I can certainly und: d their hesitation, particularly given the historical
it itted against vulnerable populations by medical p ionals. Aud I certainly don't wanc anyone

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
that we'll be there with a team anyway? We'll have around 15 less peaple to test than last week anyway, given
the new positives.

Thanks for considering,

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Haalth Care
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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles d <csblac -ountync.gov>
Ce: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; 7212 @shpijailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountyne.gov>; Margaret Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>

Subject: Re: quick question - flyer

Hi Katie -

Only 82!! Thar's shocking. Out of 85 or so eligible people, only 8 wanted this life saving medication...I'm
worried that this flyer perhaps didn't convey how important it can be. The appointments at UNC are typically
filling up like gangbusters. What sorts of reasons did you hear about people declining it? How can we increase
uptake? Perhaps since we were planning on a big team there ail day tomorrow we could do some medical talks
so that people can understand. Open to any ideas. Feeling bad that we have a big team volunteering.

Thanks
Erica

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/har/hars/sila

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

To: Sheriff Charles Biackwood; Erica Pettigrew

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212 @shpijailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
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
To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangec .gov>; Erica Pettigrew

epetti .BQV>
Cc: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync.gov>; 7212@shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco

fr ountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood @orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart

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
tomorrow around noon time. Thank you all for your helph!

Captain Spear
From: Sheriff Charles Black d <csblack d ountync.gov:

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:53 PM

To: Erica Pettigrew <gpettigrew@arangecountync.gov>

Ce: Tim Jones <tij gov>; Katie Spear <ksp intync.gov>; 721 fai ical.com;
Michael Defranco <mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecauntync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred fred gov>; M t Campbell

mc ountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <j £OV:
SubJect: Re: quick question - flyer

I'm fine with this
Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19, 2021, at 11:49 AM, Erxica Pettigrew i @0rangecountyne. sov> wrote:

Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Peltigrew, MD, UD, MPH she/her/hers/ella

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

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 2212@shpjsilmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Waod; Quintana
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

- best practice is keeping only positives with positives - this is mast important first step

- goad news is that you can put recently previously positive with new positives {so that list of 23
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

We're looking forward to helping more tomorrow. It's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you al!
have added constraints about cadefendants, space, etc.

Dr. P

Erica Peltigrew, MD, JO, MPH  she/her/hers/elia

Medical Direclar, Orange Gounty Health Department
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



Obstacles we'd have to overcome for Thursday (doable but [ need help):

1) We need a physician on site (I'm only a part time dac with the heaith dept -1
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

How about this: Could we have a couple of us come by tomarrow (Tuesday}) for a
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

Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNC Health Care -
Assistant Protessor, University of North Carolina

From: Sheriff Charles Blackwood

Sent: Monday, October 18, 2021 10:03:20 AM

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim lones; Katie Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: covid outbreak jail updates - important

Monaclonal antibodies (MAB}
This lif ing medicine cuts hospi need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Daes that work for jail leadership? This is a very time-sensitive
intervention.

We are all very much aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuesday is very
short notice considering we do nat yet have the results back as to who has
tested positive from the last round of testing. All that being said Thursday seems
reasonable for everyane involved, including but not limited to the folks at SHP,

Just about every incarcerated persan is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID positive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spaken ahout this and agreed that we would use the same
criteria as would be used for any other segment of the population. If you meet
the critedia you get it, if you don’t you don't, This also prevents an inmate from
feeling like they have to accept the treatment

We need logistical help from jail feadership to strategize how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight fast week. Other jails
have brought it directly to pods. We just need assistance thinking innovatively.
Who can pregame with us to have Tuesday go smoothly (assuming Tuesday
works)? Also, is it possible for the SHP medicai director to be on site for this?
Dr. Grover (med director of OC EMS) and | are trying to caordinate schedules but
itis not easy since we have clinical shifts.

Qur space has ahways been limited and we have to wark within those limitations.
Going to the PODS to administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not
feasible. Having those who elect to have the treatment come into the booking
area and then he housed in the large holding area is the best approach,

We are also hoping ta have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning
down.

Draft the "one pager” you are comfortable with and we will raview and approve,

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

| cannat answer ta what SHP will or will not agree te but we can certainly explain
the situation and see what they say.

Testing

Thank you to everyone who helped make the mass testing event last Thursday a
success. | have nat yet seen the results, but as soon as we have them it Is cruclal
that Jail and medical staff work closely with Robyn to cohort positives away
from negatives, as well as contact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protacol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

twill have to defer to Quintana on this as | dan't know what cancerns were
voiced last week. If it’s about SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send you
their protocols,

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
due to lack of requested information tike guard schedules. No staff member has
been quarantined. Please remember that quarantining those at highest risk of
turning positive is one of the fastest ways for an outbreak to be aver.

| will gef you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request was made as to
wha all had worked, avery ratation had cycled through. So all squads had worked
prior ta our being in outbreak status. All staff who tested positive wera
quarantined for 10 days and returned to work after that period and no fever for
3 days.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered.
Robyn is ane of our excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from
QOCHD on the jail outbreak. Daily contact-is the minimum public health
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

1'm not sure what conununication has not been working. | have checked with
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

Again, please know we are working as hard as we can 1o address the outbieak and vre
ar2 mast concerned ahout bringing this all to a successiul conclusion.

Respectfully,

Sheriff Blackwood

From: Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync gov>
Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM
Ta: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@orangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>;
7212@shpjailmedical.com
Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood

T gov>; Quintana Stewart <qstewart@orangecguntync.gov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred@arangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell

I . BOV>

Subject: covid outbreak jail updates - important
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Hi everyone -

Here are the latest updates. Full of crucial details but since it's so long I tried to
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
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail | ip? This is a very ti
intervention.

Just about every incarcerated persan is eligible for this because It can be used for
COVID positive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

We need logistical help from jail to how to get this
medicine to all those who want it. Space was really tight last week. Qther jails
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
calfed or emailed immediately (within that day) in order to move quickly with
mitigation strategies.

That's it for now. Please fet me know any feedback on how we can continue to
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

From: Sarah Manfred

Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 1:31 PM

To: Katie Spear; Erica Pettigrew; Sheriff Charles Blackwaod

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
accompany us to each pad for testing and hope to be dane within 2 hours as we do not need to test anyone
who has already tested pasitive during this outbreak.

Thank you.
Best,

Sarah T. Manfred MPH, RN, BSN, PCCN
Communicable Disease Nurse
QOrange County Health Department

smanfred@orangecountync.gov
919.245.2386

From: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, Octcher 20, 2021 4:03 PM

To: Erlca Pettigrew <epettig: gov>; Sheriff Charles
gov>

Cc: Tim Jones <tij gov>; 721 hpjail ical.com; Michael Defranco

<mdefranco@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart

<qstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell

<mcampbell@arangecountync.gov>; Jamie Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>; Howard Blough

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
Ce: Tim Jones <tijones@orangecountync gov>; 7212@shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco
<mdefranco@orangecountync.zov>; Robyn Wood <rwoeod@orangecountyne.gov>; Quintana Stewart
<gstewart@orangecountync.gov>; Sarah Manfred FOV>; garet Campbell
<mcampbell@orangecountyne.gov>; Jamle Sykes <jsykes@orangecountync.gov>; Grover, Joseph M
<joseph_grover@med.unc.edu>

Subject: Re: quick questian - flyer

Thank you for that feedback Ican cendlnl 'y understand their he\uauon, particularly given the historicai

itted against vul lations by medical p Is. And [ certainly don't want anyone
to teel coerced in any way. It's just hard to see people wm do\nm potentially life-saving treatment thac T would
be lining my mom or my brother up tirst thing if they needed it, you know?

‘We do what we can do, offer it and go from there,

Sarah on our team had a great idea - since weekly testing is the recommendation in an outbreak setting, shall we
do another testing event tomorrow concurrent with the few MABs? How hard would it be to pull that off, given
that we'll be there with a team anyway? We'll have around 15 less people to test thau last week anyway, given
the new positives.

Thanks for considering,

Erica Paltigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

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

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212 @shpjailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Rabyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
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

To: Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>; Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwoad@arangecountync.gov>

Cc: Tim lones <tijo ntync.gov>; 721 fical.com; Michael DeFranco
angecountync.gov>; Robyn Wcod <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart

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

Ce: Tim Jones; 7212 @shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Wood; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE: quick question - flyer

Erica-

‘We have 8 incarcerated that wants the MAB tomarrow. One of those is questianable so we added him to ask questions
and hopefully agree.

Thank you,
Captain Spear

From: Katie Spear

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 3:57 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <cshlackwood@orangecountync.gov>; Erica Pettigrew
<epettigrew@grangecountync.gov>

Cc: Tim Jones <tif ountync.govs; 721. .com; Michael DeFranco

<mdefranca@orangecountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart

<gslewag_@arangecoun!ync gov>; Sarah Manfred <smanfred@orangecountync.gov>; Margaret Campbell
me gov>; Jamie Sykes <j; Rov>

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

Ce: Tim Jones <tij -ountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear v>; 721 hpjailmedical.com;

Michael DeFranco <mdeft ountync.gov>; Robyn Wood <rwoad@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart
g;\cwart@orangecountync gov> Sarah Manfred Bov>; M; Campbell

; Jamie Sykes k gov;

Subject: Re: quick question - ﬂyer



I'm fine with this
Sheriff B

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 19,2021, at | 1:49 AM, Erica Pettigrew <¢pettisrew @orangecountync.gav> wrote:

Spanish version, hot off the presses

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH  sha/her/hers/elia

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

Cc: Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 7212@shplailmedical.cam; Michael DeFranco; Robyn Woad; Quintana
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/herhers/ella

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

Cc; Tim Jones; Katie Spear; 2212@shpiailmedical.com; Michael DeFranca; Robyn Wood; Quintana
Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret Camphell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: Re: covid outbreak Jail updates - Important

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

- best practice is keeping only positives with pasitives - this is most Important first step

- good news is that you can put recently previously positive with new positives (so that list of 23
can be housed with these new 13 - that's much better than mixing them with anyane else)

- if there's a way to then figure out who was close contacts with those positives and keep them
quarantined together (but away from positives, away from new intakes, and away from any
person who is not a close contact), that's ideal.

We're laoking forward to helping more tomorrow. It's a logic puzzle for sure, and then you all
have added constraints about codefendants, space, etc.

Dr.P

Erica Pettigrew, MD, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella

Medical Director, Qrange Gounty Health Depariment
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNG Health Care
Assistant Professor, University of North Garalina

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

On Qct 18, 2021, at 2:06 PM, Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>
wrote:

Thank you far these answers, Sheriff. | know Tuesday is very soon. For context,
this ball got rolling over the weekend but UNC, OCHD and EMS were all able to
scramble and find volunteers to help an that day.

We certainly need to find a day that works for all teams involved. One thing to
clarify - sorting out the new positives won't actually have much impact on MAB
because peaple are eligible whether they are positive or just exposed.

Obstacles we'd have to overcome for Thursday {doable but | need help):

1) We need a physician on site (I'm only a part time doc with the health dept - |
see clinic patients that Thursday afternoon, | asked Dr. Grover and Dr. Wohi if
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

How about this: Could we have a cauple of us come by tomorrow (Tuesday) for a
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

Erica Pettigrew, MD, D, MPH shesher/hers/eila
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

To: Erica Pettigrew; Tim lones; Katle Spear; 7212@shpjailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranca; Robyn Waod; Quintana Stewart; Sarah Manfred; Margaret
Campbell; Jamie Sykes

Subject: RE; covid outbreak jail updates - Important

Monoclonal antibodies (MAB)

This life-saving medicine cuts hospitalization need by 80%.

This Tuesday 10/19

We have been trying to coordinate with UNC, OCHD and EMS for another MAB
day this Tuesday. Does that work for jail leadership? This is a very til ive
intervention. '

We aie all very much aware that this is time sensitive, however Tuasday is very
short natice cansidering we de not yet have the rasults back as fo who has
tested positive from the last round of tasting. All that being said Thursday seems
reasonable for everyone invelved, including but not limited to the folks at SHP.

Just about every incarcerated person is eligible for this because it can be used for
COVID positive people as well as negative people who were exposed.

Quintana and | have spoken about this and agreed that we would use the same
criteria as would be usad far any other segment of the population. If you meet
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the criteria vou get it, if you don’t you don't. This aisa prevents an inmate from
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

Our space has always been limited and we have to work within thase [imitations
Going to the PODS to administer and observe the inmate for an hour is not
feasible, Having those who zlect 1o have the treatment come into the booking
area and then he housed in the large holding area is the best approach

We are also hoping to have a one pager you might be willing to send back to
everyone so they can understand what they would be consenting to vs turning
down.

Draft the “one pager” you are comfartable with and we will review and approve.

Ideally this medicine should be provided and administered by the medical staff
of the jail. The medication is free and SHP can simply sign up and get it
shipped. How can we pursue this better longer-term solution?

| cannot answer ta what SHP will or will not agree to but we can certainly 2xplain
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
from negatives, as well as cantact tracing staff.

| have not heard further about the testing protocol concerns voiced last week.
Who can get us a copy of the rapid antigen testing protocols asap?

1 will have to defer to Quintana on this as { don’t know what concerns were
voiced last week. If it's ahout SHP's testing, | would have to ask them to send you
their protocals.

Outbreak Investigation and Contact Tracing

Based on the limited information we've recelved it's most likely that the virus
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

'wiil get you a copy of the schedule but by the time the request was made as ta
who all had warked, every rotation had cycled through. So ali squads had worked
prior to our heing in outbrezk status. All staff who tested positive were
quarantined for 10 days and returned to wark after thal geriad and no fever for
3 days,

Communication

‘We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered.
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
communicate during your busy work days, piease et us know.

I'm nat sure what communication has not been working. | have checked with
Major lanes and Captain Spear, neither of them have been called or emailed
about this matter.

When a new positive staff or incarcerated person is found, Robyn needs to be
called or emailed immediately (within that day) In order to move quickly with

mitigation strategies.

We have not had any results of positive cases.

Again, please know we are working as hard as we can to address the cutbreak and we
are most concemed about bringing this all ta a successful conclusion,

Respectfully,

Sheriff Blackwood

From; Erica Pettigrew <epettigrew@orangecountync.gov>

Sent: Sunday, October 17, 2021 9:34 PM

To: Sheriff Charles Blackwood <csblackwood@orangecountync.gov>; Tim Jones
<tijones@arangecountync.gov>; Katie Spear <kspear@orangecountync.gov>;
7212@shpijailmedical.com

Cc: Michael DeFranco <mdefranco@arangecountync.gav>; Robyn Wood

<rwood@orangecountync.gov>; Quintana Stewart <gstewar ountync.gov>;
Sarah Manfred <smanfred @ .g0V>; Margaret Campbell

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
COVID positive peaple as well as negative people who were expased.

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

was intraduced by staff, The spread of COVID into distinct, nan-mixing pods
supports the separate conclusian that the infection was promulgated across
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
turning positive is one of the fastest ways for an autbreak to be over.

Communication

We continue to struggle at times to have phone calls and emails answered.
Robyn is one of our excellent clinical COVID nurses and is the official liaison from
OCHD an the jail outbreak. Daily contact is the minimum public health
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

That's it for now. Please let me know any feedback on haw we can continue to
work together on stamping this outbreak out.

Erica Pettigrew

Erica Pettigrew, MO, JD, MPH  she/her/hers/ella
Medical Director, Orange County Health Department
Medical Director, Occupational Health at UNG Health Care

Assistant Professor, University of North Garolina



